United States.
Environmental Protection
Administration Acquires Wanagement
Agency

LEPA
LISAE avironmental Protection

LEPA
LISAE avironmental Protection

USAEnvironmental Protection Context Admisory Committees

Ace molly him and June 1982

Office of Administration

Management and Organization

```
/ SHOW
User entered document, key - 3374
ACCN
                  1 3374
TYPE
                  2 CAT
DB
                  3 ELAL
                  4 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Advisory
5 Committees: charters rosters and accomplishments
MTI
 :
                  6 June 1994
MYDATE
                  7 0794
CALLNO
                  8 EPA-202-B-94-002
RN
                  9 EPA-202-B-94-002
LOCATION
                 10 elad
```



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY WASHINGTON, D.C. 20460

OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATION AND RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

The enclosed publication furnishes information on Environmental Protection Agency advisory committees – their charters, members, activities and accomplishments. Also, it contains a listing of recent committee reports filed with the Library of Congress, an alphabetical index of committee members, a copy of the Federal Advisory Committee Act and the GSA Final Rule, as amended.

Public advisory committees are important in the Federal decision-making process. They provide opportunity for citizen involvement and input on national policies and programs. Members of EPA's advisory committees contribute knowledge and expertise in highly specialized and technical areas. The open forum of advisory committee meetings also provides citizens with a better understanding of the decisions made by EPA.

If you are interested in receiving our monthly meeting schedule or in continuing to receive our annual publication, please complete and return the form attached.

If you have any questions concerning a specific advisory committee, feel free to contact the Designated Federal Officer listed in the enclosed publication for that advisory committee.

Kathy Petruccelli, Director

AFFIX POSTAGE HERE

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ATTN: Shelley Allen-Moorefield, (3203) 401 M Street, S.W. Washington, D.C. 20460



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY WASHINGTON, D.C. 20460

THE ADMINISTRATOR

Through its federal advisory committees, EPA forms partnerships with a variety of constituents who are interested and qualified to provide expertise on environmental issues. These independent committees provide a wide range of scientific and technical expertise to me and my senior staff as we develop and implement this nation's complex environmental program. Their advice and recommendations are critical to our joint effort to improve the environment.

A significant accomplishment in this era of environmental and regulatory complexity is EPA's pioneer work in the federal use of negotiated rulemaking processes to develop new regulations. The report describes a number of policy dialogue and negotiated rulemaking advisory committees. The collaboration of these special advisory committees often results in understanding and cooperation among groups having no prior purpose or opportunity to work together, and frequently results in better rules for all.

This year is also distinguished by the creation of the National Environmental Justice Advisory Council (NEJAC), which held its first meeting in May, 1994. NEJAC members provide advice to the Agency about how to achieve environmental protection for all so that no segment of the population, regardless of race, ethnicity, or income, bears a disproportionately high and adverse effect of pollution.

The challenges of preserving health and protecting the environment motivate EPA to cooperate with other federal agencies, states, tribes, local governments, business, industry, non-profit organizations, and academia. We continue to depend on the expert advice of dedicated committee members and others to help the Agency make informed decisions, and to advise us in our mission of protecting the Earth's ecosystems, natural resources, and human health.

Caraln. Enous

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Advisory Committees Charters, Rosters, and Accomplishments June 1994



This publication was prepared by the Management and Organization Division,
Office of Administration,
Office of Administration and Resources Management

If you have questions about EPA's Advisory Committee Program contact Mary Beatty, EPA Committee Management Officer, on (202) 260-5037

Additional copies may be obtained by contacting Shelley Allen-Moorefield, Committee Management Assistant, on (202) 260-5038

EPA ADVISORY COMMITTEES

CONTENTS

	PAGE
MESSAGE FROM THE ADMINISTRATOR	iii
ARCHITECTURAL AND INDUSTRIAL MAINTENANCE COATINGS NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING ADVISORY COMMITTEE	1
BIOTECHNOLOGY SCIENCE ADVISORY COMMITTEE	8
CLEAN AIR ACT ADVISORY COMMITTEE	13
CLEAN AIR SCIENTIFIC ADVISORY COMMITTEE (of the Science Advisory Board)	23
COUNCIL ON CLEAN AIR COMPLIANCE ANALYSIS (of the Science Advisory Board)	27
DIALOGUE COMMITTEE ON HAZARDOUS WASTE IDENTIFICATION	31
DIALOGUE COMMITTEE ON PHOSPHORIC ACID WASTES	37
ENVIRONMENTAL FINANCIAL ADVISORY BOARD	43
ENVIRONMENTAL STATISTICS TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE	52
FEDERAL FACILITIES ENVIRONMENTAL RESTORATION DIALOGUE COMMITTEE	58
FIFRA SCIENTIFIC ADVISORY PANEL	66
GULF OF MEXICO PROGRAM POLICY REVIEW BOARD	72
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE	78
MANAGEMENT ADVISORY GROUP TO THE ASSISTANT ADMINISTRATOR FOR WATER	84
NATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND TECHNOLOGY	89

EPA ADVISORY COMMITTEES

CONTENTS

<u>P</u>	AGE
NATIONAL AIR POLLUTION CONTROL TECHNIQUES ADVISORY COMMITTEE	. 110
NATIONAL DRINKING WATER ADVISORY COUNCIL	. 115
NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION ADVISORY COUNCIL	. 120
NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE ADVISORY COUNCIL	. 125
RISK ASSESSMENT AND MANAGEMENT COMMISSION	. 132
SCIENCE ADVISORY BOARD	. 137
SMALL NONROAD ENGINES NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING ADVISORY COMMITTEE	. 158
SMALL TOWN ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING TASK FORCE	. 163
WOOD FURNITURE MANUFACTURING INDUSTRY NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING ADVISORY COMMITTEE	. 168
<u>Appendix</u>	
Advisory Committee Reports Filed with the Library of Congress Since 6/30/92	. 175
Federal Advisory Committee Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-463), and Related Amendments	. 183
GSA Final Rule, Amended, effective October 5, 1989	. 191
Index of Members and Designated Federal Officers	. 201

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

ARCHITECTURAL AND INDUSTRIAL MAINTENANCE COATINGS NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING ADVISORY COMMITTEE (NRAC)

- 1. <u>PURPOSE</u>. This charter establishes the Architectural and Industrial Maintenance Coatings Negotiated Rulemaking Advisory Committee, in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA), 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c) and the Negotiated Rulemaking Act, 5 U.S.C. Sections 581-590.
- 2. <u>AUTHORITY</u>. It is determined that establishment of this Committee is in the public interest and supports EPA in performing its duties and responsibilities under Section 183(e) of the Clean Air Act, as amended.
- 3. <u>OBJECTIVE AND SCOPE OF ACTIVITY</u>. The Committee will serve as an integral part of EPA's development of a rulemaking approach to control volatile organic compounds (VOC's) from Architectural and Industrial coatings. It will attempt, via face-to-face negotiations, to reach consensus on concepts and language to use as the basis of rules implementing Section 183 (e) of the Clean Air Act, as amended.
- 4. <u>FUNCTIONS</u>. The Committee's function is to assist directly in the development of rules to control VOC emissions from Architectural and Industrial Maintenance Coatings. With the participation of knowledgeable, affected parties, EPA expects to develop a practical, protective approach to controling these VOC emissions at less cost than traditional rulemaking. In addition, the Committee's success or lack thereof will help EPA assess the procedures and circumstances which best foster successful negotiations.
- 5. <u>COMPOSITION</u>. The Committee will consist of approximately twenty-five (25) members, appointed by the EPA Deputy Administrator, plus a facilitator who will serve as Chair. Members will represent the following segments of the population in appropriate mix and balance:
 - Affected Industry
 - Consumers
 - Environmental Groups
 - Federal Agencies
 - Labor
 - State and Local Air Pollution Agencies

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

Appropriate members shall be selected and appointed for the duration of the negotiation itself. A full-time salaried official or regular employee of the Agency will serve as the Designated Federal Officer and will be present at all meetings. The Designated Federal Officer is authorized to adjourn any meeting whenever it is determined to be in the public interest to do so. The Committee is authorized to form workgroups for any purpose consistent with this Charter. Such workgroups shall report back to the full Committee. Workgroups have no authority to make decisions on behalf of the full Committee nor can they report directly to the Agency.

EPA may pay travel and per diem expenses when necessary and appropriate, and may compensate members as provided for under the Negotiated Rulemaking Act of 1990. The Committee's estimated annual operating cost is approximately \$75,000, which includes .4 work years of staff support. EPA's Office of Policy, Planning and Evaluation will provide administrative and process support to the Committee.

- 6. <u>MEETINGS</u>. Meetings shall be held as necessary, at the call of the Chair, with an agenda for each meeting approved in advance by the Designated Federal Officer. Committee meetings will be called, announced, and held in accordance with the EPA Committee Management Manual. This manual contains the Agency's policies and procedures for implementing FACA. Among other things, FACA requires open meetings and an opportunity for interested persons to file comments before or after meetings, or to make statements to the extent that time permits.
- 7. <u>DURATION</u>. The Committee will terminate one year after establishment, unless the Deputy Administrator determines that the Committee will finish its work within 30 days of the original termination date. If the Deputy Administrator makes such a determination, he can extend the termination date by 30 days without further consultation with GSA. In the event more time is needed, EPA may seek an extension under Section 14 of FACA.

September 21, 1992
Agency Approval date

October 2, 1992
GSA Consultation Date

F. Henry Habicht II
Deputy Administrator

October 14, 1992
Date filed with Congress

July 31, 1994
Date of Temporary Extension

FACILITATOR

Mr. John Ehrmann Senior Associate Keystone Center P.O. Box 8606 Keystone, CO 80435-7998

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Mr. Chris Kirtz Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street, S.W. Room 408 WT, 2136 Washington, DC 20460 (202) 260-7565

MEMBERS

Mr. Mike Andrews
Representative of the Health
& Safety Department
International Brotherhood of Painters
& Allied Trades
AFL-CIO-CFL
1750 New York Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

Mr. Bernie Appleman Executive Director 4516 Henry Street Suite 301 Pittsburgh, PA 15213-3728

Mr. S. William Becker
Executive Director
State and Territorial Air Pollution
Program Administrators/Association
of Local Air Pollution Control
Officials
(STAPPA/ALAPCO)
444 North Capitol Street, NW
Suite 307
Washington, DC 20001

Mr. Dan Belik
Enforcement Program Supervisor
Rule Development
Bay Area Air Quality Management
District (BAAQMD)
939 Ellis Street
San Francisco, CA 94104

Mr. Earl K. Borman
Senior Vice President
L & F Products
A Unit of Eastman Kodak
225 Summit Avenue
Montvale, NJ 07645

Mr. Jack J. Bracco Market Development Architecture & Industrial Maintenance Coatings Miles, Inc. MoBay Road Pittsburgh, PA 15202

Mr. J. Andrew Doyle
Executive Director
National Paint and Coatings
Association
1500 Rhode Island Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20005-5597

Mr. Charles Field National Association of Home Builders 1201 15th Street, NW 4th Floor Washington, DC 20005-2800

Mr. Marcel Gaschke Group Marketing Manager Polymers Division CIBA-GEIGY Corporation Seven Skyline Drive Hawthorne, NY 10532-2188

Mr. G. Lawrence Gettier
Traffic Control Project Engineer
North Carolina Dept. of Transportation
Century Center - Traffic Engineering
Branch
P.O. Box 25201
Raleigh, NC 27611

Mr. Jay Haines Attorney at Law Haines & Riley 4180 La Jolla Village Dr. Suite 540 La Jolla, CA 92037 Ms. Madelyn Harding
Product Compliance and
Registration
The Sherwin-Williams Company
101 Prospect Avenue, N.W.
440 Midland Building
Cleveland, OH 44115-1075

Mr. David Hawkins Senior Attorney Natural Resources Defense Council 1350 New York Avenue, NW Suite 300 Washington, DC 20005

Mr. Robert Irvine
Senior Environmental Engineer
SIP Revision Unit
State of Michigan - Department of
Natural Resources
Air Quality Division
Box 30028
Lansing, MI 48909

Mr. Bruce Jordan
Director, Emission Standard Division
Office of Air Quality Planning and Standards, (MD-13)
U. S. Environmental Protection Agency
411 W. Chapel Hill
Durham, NC 27701

Mr. Chris Kirtz
Director, Consensus and Dispute
Resolution Program
U. S. Environmental Protection Agency
401 M Street S.W. (2136)
Washington, DC 20460

Mr. Ned B. Kisner President Triangle Coatings, Inc. 1930 Fairway Drive San Leandro, CA 94577

Mr. Robert J. Klepser Carboline Company 350 Hanley Industry Court St. Louis, MO 63144-2410

Mr. James F. Lawrence Senior Vice President Cargill, Inc. P.O. Box 9300 Minneapolis, MN 55440

Mr. Carl Minchew
Assistant to the Technical
Director
Benjamin Moore & Co.
134 Lister Avenue
Newark, NJ 07105

Mr. Kenneth J. Murray Environmental Affairs Manager Exxon Chemical P.O. Box 536 Linden, NJ 07036

Mr. Peter Nicholson Market Manager Industrial Finishes Rohm and Haas Co. Independence Mall West Philadelphia, PA 19105 Mr. John Peart Federal Highway Administration 6300 Georgetown Pike McLean, VA 22102

Mr. John Prinz
Vice President Research, Development
& Quality
Sinclair Paint Company
Division of Insilco Corporation
6100 S. Garfield Avenue
Commerce, CA 90040-3611

Mr. Tim Race Chemist U. S. Army Corps of Engineers 2902 Newmark Drive P.O. Box 9005 Champaign, IL 61826-9005

Mr. Jim Sainsbury Manager, Product Regulation The Glidden Company 925 Euclid Avenue Cleveland, OH 44115

Mr. Vincent R. Sandusky
Executive Vice President
Painting and Decorating Contractors
of America
3913 Old Lee Highway
Suite 33B
Fairfax, VA 22030

Dr. Joel Schwartz Staff Scientist Coalition for Clean Air 122 Lincoln Blvd. Suite 201 Venice, CA 90291

Ms. Christine Stanley Product Development Manager Ameron Protective Coatings 201 N. Berry Street Brea, CA 92622

Mr. William Stewart
Director, Regulatory Affairs
The Valspar Corporation
1101 Third Street South
Box 1461
Minneapolis, MN 55440

Mr. John Stone Chemist G.S.A. Paint & Chemicals Commodity Center 9FTE-10 400 15th Street, SW Auburn, WA 98001

Ms. Peggy Taricco
Manager of Solvent Control Section
California Air Resources Board
2020 L Street
Sacramento, CA 95812

Mr. Bob Warland
Regional Air Pollution Control
Engineer, Region IV
New York State DEC Regional
Headquarters
2176 Guilderland Avenue
Schenectady, NY 12306

Mr. Robert Wendoll Chairman Environmental, Legislative and Regulatory Advocacy Program 4885 E. 52nd Place Los Angeles, CA 90040

Mr. Ronald White Deputy Director, National Programs American Lung Association 1726 M Street N.W. Suite 902 Washington, DC 20036

Mr. R. Sam Williams Forest Products Laboratory One Gifford Pinchot Drive Madison, WI 53705-2398

Mr. Richard Williamson Executive Vice President Trinity Coatings Co. 1800 Park Place Avenue P.O. Box 2488 Fort Worth, TX 76113-2488

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

In July 1993, the Committee agreed in principle to the elements of a comprehensive proposed rulemaking controlling emissions from Architectural and Industrial Maintenance Coatings. EPA expects to publish a consensus proposed rule in 1994.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

BIOTECHNOLOGY SCIENCE ADVISORY COMMITTEE

1. <u>PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY</u>. This Charter is reissued to renew the Biotechnology Science Advisory Committee for an additional two year period in accordance with the requirements of the Federal Advisory Committee Act, 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c). Also, this Charter is revised to remove the requirement that the Committee have one scientist member who also serves as a member of the FIFRA Scientific Advisory Panel.

The Biotechnology Science Advisory Committee was established by the Agency on December 1986 to meet the needs for specialized support for Agency consideration of biotechnology issues and to respond to the mandate for "agency based scientific advisory committees" appearing in the Office of Science and Technology Policy announcement of December 31, 1984 (49 F.R. 50905) and November 14, 1985 (50 F.R. 47174).

- 2. <u>SCOPE OF ACTIVITY</u>. The activities of the Committee will include analyzing problems, conducting reviews, holding meetings, providing reports, making recommendations, forming study groups, and other activities needed to meet the Committee's objectives, including the use of consultants as necessary.
- 3. <u>OBJECTIVES AND RESPONSIBILITIES</u>. The Committee will provide expert scientific advice to the Administrator and Assistant Administrators concerning issues relating to risks and other effects of applications of modern biotechnology. The Committee shall provide reports and recommendations directly to the Administrator and to the Assistant Administrator(s) and will do so in a timely manner. The Committee responsibilities will include:
 - Consideration of scientific issues referred by Program Office Directors;
 - Comparison of case reviews to evaluate internal scientific consistency among programs;
 - Assessment, in participation with the Science Advisory Board, of issues requiring research and referral to appropriate Agency research committees;
 - Recommendation of issues to be referred to interagency coordinating committees through appropriate delegates;

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

- As appropriate, participation in review and evaluation of specific regulatory applications and submissions;
- As appropriate, consultation and coordination with the FIFRA Scientific Advisory Panel established by the Administrator pursuant to section 25(d) of the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act as amended;
- As appropriate, consultation and coordination with the Science Advisory Board established by the Administrator pursuant to the Environmental Research, Development and Demonstration Authorization Act of 1978;
- Consultation and coordination with other Agency advisory groups, as requested by the Administrator.
- 4. <u>MEMBERSHIP</u>. The Committee will consist of 11 voting members, including nine scientists and two persons representing the general public, appointed by the Deputy Administrator. Most members will be appointed as Special Government Employees. Members will be appointed for three years. If a vacancy occurs on the committee due to expiration of a term, the Deputy Administrator may extend the term of a committee member (not to exceed six months) until a new member is appointed to fill the vacancy. Subcommittees must include at least one member of the full committee. The Deputy Administrator will appoint from the membership a Chairperson of the full committee. The Deputy Administrator or the Deputy Administrator's designee will appoint Chairpersons of subcommittees or panels as needed, after consultation with the Chairperson. The committee will be supplemented by consultants when they are needed to extend the range of expertise and experience of the standing committee.

Scientist members of the Committee will be selected on basis of their professional qualifications to examine the questions of hazard, exposure and risk to humans, other non-target organisms and ecosystems or their components due to production and release of organisms for purposes regulable under statutes for which the Environmental Protection Agency has responsibility.

As a minimum, the Committee shall have one scientist member who also serves as a member of the Administrator's Science Advisory Board Executive Committee. Other members can also have joint membership on this Committee and the Science Advisory Board or its various committees or study groups.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

In addition, there will be non-voting representatives from each Federal agency represented on the Biotechnology Science Coordinating Committee of the Federal Coordinating Council for Science, Engineering and Technology.

The Committee is authorized to form subcommittees or panels for any purpose consistent with this charter. The Administrator or the Administrator's designee shall review the need for such subcommittees and panels at least yearly to decide which should be continued. The subcommittees and panels will operate under the direction of the Committee.

5. <u>MEETINGS</u>. The Committee will meet at the request of the Administrator or the Administrator's designee. Meetings will be called, announced, and held in accordance with the EPA Manual on Committee Management. The Manual provides for open meetings of advisory committees; requires that interested persons be permitted to file written statements before or after meetings, and for oral statements by interested persons to the extent time permits. Meetings or portions thereof may be closed to comply with statutory restrictions concerning dissemination of proprietary and confidential information; however, the Agency is committed to having open meetings to the greatest extent possible. A full-time salaried officer or employee of the Agency, who will serve as the Designated Federal Officer will be present at all meetings and is authorized to adjourn any such meeting whenever it is determined to be in the public interest.

It is anticipated that the full Committee will meet approximately three times per year, supplemented by subcommittee meetings as needed. The estimated annual operating costs for the Committee will be approximately \$160,000 which includes 1.5 work-years of staff support. Support for the Committee's activities will be provided by the Office of the Administrator, EPA or other appropriate offices as necessary.

6. <u>DURATION</u>. The Biotechnology Science Advisory Committee has been renewed for two years and may be extended beyond that date if authorized in accordance with Section 14 of the Federal Advisory Committee Act.

October 2, 1992 Agency Approval Date F. Henry Habicht II
Deputy Administrator

Occtober 19, 1992
GSA Consultation Date

November 19, 1992
Date Filed with Congress

CHAIRPERSON

Vacant

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Dr. Elizabeth Milewski Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street S.W., 7101 Washington, DC 20460 202/260-6900

MEMBERS

Dr. Peter Day (97)
Director, Center for
Agricultural Molecular Biology
Environmental and Natural
Resources Building
Cooks College, Rutgers University
P.O. Box 231, Biotech Center
New Brunswick, NJ 08903

Mr. Charles E. Hess (94) University of California Davis, CA 95616-8769

Dr. Conrad Istock (97)
University of Arizona
Department of Ecology and
Evolutionary Biology
Tuscon, AZ 85721

Ms. Kathleen H. Keeler (94) University of Nebraska School of Biological Sciences Lincoln, NE 68588-0343 Ms. Jeanne Poindexter (94)
International Program Office
Columbia University
Dept. of Biological Sciences
Barnard College
3009 Broadway
New York, NY 10027-6598

Mr. Mark Sagoff (94)
University of Maryland
Institute for Philosophy and
Public Policy
College Park, MD 20742

Dr. Olan Yoder (97)
Cornell University
Department of Plant Pathology
334 Plant Science Building
Ithaca, NY 14853

NOTE: Terms expire November 30 of the year indicated by member's name

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The Biotechnology Science Advisory Committee (BSAC) held a meeting of the Subcommittee on Plant Pesticides, including transgenic plant pesticides, on July 13, 1993. The Subcommittee reviewed a set of scientific issues being considered by the Agency in determining whether a pesticidal substance produced in a plant is exempt from the requirement of a food tolerance if it is an inherent plant pesticide derived from a known food source and meets certain other criteria.

The Subcommittee also commented on the feasibility of using *in vitro* digestibility studies as toxicity assays.

The BSAC and the FIFRA Scientific Advisory Panel held a Joint Subpanel meeting on the proposed rule for plant pesticides on January 21, 1994.

The joint Subpanel considered a set of scientific issues being evaluated by the Agency for: (1) a proposed policy statement that generally describes how EPA proposes to regulate plant-pesticides under FIFRA and FFDCA; (2) a proposal under FIFRA describing the changes in the 40 CFR that define the scope of regulation for plant-pesticides under FIFRA and implements parts of EPA's program for plant-pesticides; (3) a proposed exemption from the requirement of a tolerance for coat proteins from plant viruses when produced in plants; (4) a proposed exemption from the requirement of a tolerance for nucleic acids produced in plants as part of a plant-pesticide; and (5) a proposed exemption from the requirement of a tolerance for categories of plant-pesticides that will result in significantly different dietary exposures.

The BSAC meetings have been very useful to the Agency in providing guidance on science issues raised by Agency rulemaking efforts and policy needs, and on other scientific issues pertinent to program needs in biotechnology. Moreover, the BSAC has provided a forum for Agency interaction with the public on biotech science issues. The BSAC has been one of the few available mechanisms by which industry, academia, and public interest groups have come together to comment on issues of importance regarding biotechnology. The BSAC will continue to play an active and productive role in the EPA biotechnology program as a result of the on-going development of the biotechnology industry.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

CLEAN AIR ACT ADVISORY COMMITTEE

1. <u>PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY.</u> This charter is reissued to renew the Clean Air Act Advisory Committee which was originally established on November 19, 1990 in accordance with the requirements of the Federal Advisory Committee Act, 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c).

The purpose of the Advisory Committee is to provide independent advice and counsel to the Environmental Protection Agency on policy and technical issues associated with implementation of the Clean Air Act of 1990.

2. <u>SCOPE OF ACTIVITY.</u> The Advisory Committee shall provide independent advice and counsel on the development of policy and programs necessary to implement and enforce the requirements of Clean Air Act amendments enacted in 1990. The Advisory Committee shall be consulted on economic, environmental, technical, scientific, and enforcement policy issues.

The Advisory Committee shall hold meetings, analyze issues, conduct reviews, perform studies, produce reports, make necessary recommendations, and undertake other activities necessary to meet its responsibilities. Comments, evaluations, and recommendations of the Advisory Committee and responses from the Agency shall be made available for public review.

Establishment of subcommittees is authorized for purposes consistent with this charter. Such subcommittees will report to the Committee.

3. <u>OBJECTIVES.</u> The Advisory Committee shall advise on the development, implementation, and enforcement of the new and expanded regulatory and market-based programs required by the Clean Air Act of 1990, with the exception of the provisions of the Act that address acid rain. A separate committee has been established to advise the Agency on the acid rain provisions of the Act. The programs falling under the purview of the committee include those for meeting National Ambient Air Quality Standards, reducing emissions from vehicles and vehicle fuels, reducing air toxics emissions, issuing operating permits and collecting fees, and carrying out new and expanded compliance authorities. The Clean Air Act Advisory Committee may advise on issues that cut across several program areas, including acid rain.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

The responsibilities of the Advisory Committee include providing the Agency with advice on the following:

- Approaches for new and expanded programs, including those using innovative or market-based means to achieve environmental improvements.
- Potential health, environmental, and economic effects of programs required by the new amendments and the potential impacts on the public, the regulated community, state and local governments, and other federal agencies.
- Policy and technical contents of proposed major EPA rulemaking and guidance required by the Clean Air Act in order to help effectively incorporate appropriate outside advice and information.
- Integration of existing policies, regulations, standards, guidelines, and procedures in programs for implementing requirements of the Act.
- 4. <u>COMPOSITION.</u> The Advisory Committee shall be composed of approximately 50 members, including the chairperson, and shall be selected and appointed by the Deputy Administrator for two-year terms. Members of the Committee shall be selected on the basis of their professional qualifications and diversity of perspectives that will enable them to provide advice and guidance to the Agency in implementing the new Clean Air Act amendments.

Advisory Committee members shall be appointed in a balanced representation from the following sectors: business and industry; academic institutions; state and local governments; unions; nongovernmental and environmental organizations and service groups. Most members will be appointed as representatives of non-federal interests.

The Advisory Committee is authorized to form subcommittees to consider specific issues or actions and report back to the Committee.

5. <u>MEETINGS.</u> Meetings will be held at least four times a year or as necessary, as determined by the Chairperson. A full-time employee of the Agency, who will serve as the Designated Federal Officer, will be present at all meetings and is authorized to adjourn any meeting whenever it is determined to be in the public interest. Each meeting will be conducted in accordance with an agenda approved in advance of the meeting by the Designated Federal Officer.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

The estimated annual operating cost of the Advisory Committee is \$125,000, which includes 0.6 workyears of staff support. The Office of Air and Radiation will provide the necessary support for the Committee.

6. <u>DURATION.</u> The Advisory Committee shall be needed on a continuing basis and may be renewed beyond its initial two-year period, as authorized in accordance with section 14 of the Federal Advisory Committee Act.

October 22, 1992 Agency Approval Date F. Henry Habicht II
Deputy Administrator

November 6, 1992
GSA Consultation Date

November 19, 1992

Date Filed with Congress

CHAIRPERSON

Ms. Mary D. Nichols
Assistant Administrator for
Air and Radiation
US EPA
401 M Street SW
Washington, DC 20460

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Ms. Karen Smith Special Assistant to the Assistant Administrator Office of Air and Radiation US EPA - 401 M Street, S.W. Washington, DC 20460 (202) 260-6379

MEMBERS

State/Local Government

Mr. S. William Becker
Executive Director
State and Territorial
Air Pollution Program
Administrators/
Association of Local Air
Pollution Control Officials
444 North Capitol Street, NW
Washington, DC 20001

Mr. Iwan Choronenko, Director Air Pollution Control Program Environmental Protection Commission of Hillsborough County 1410 N. 21st Street Tampa, FL 33605

Ms. Mary A. Gade Director Illinois Environmental Protection Agency IEPA, 2200 Churchill Rd. Springfield, IL 62794-9276 Mr. Steve Del Gludice Councilman Prince Georges County County Administration Building County Council Second Floor Upper Marlboro, MD 20772

Mr. Daniel S. Greenbaum
Commissioner
Executive Office of
Environmental Affairs
Massachusetts Department of
Environmental Protection
1000 Cambridge St.
Boston, MA 02114

Ms. Beverly Hartsock
Deputy Executive Director
Texas Natural Resources
Conservation Commission
P.O. Box 13087
Austin, TX 78711-3087

Mr. Charles R. Imbrecht Chairman California Energy Commission 1516 - 9th Street Sacramento, CA 95814

Mr. Gary Mauro Chairman Texas Land Commission 1700 North Congress Ave. Suite 835 Austin, TX 78701

Mr. Howard Yerusalim Secretary of Transportation Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Transporation and Safety Building Commonwealth Ave. and Forster St. Harrisburg, PA 17120

Academic Institutions

Mr. William M. Auberle, P.E. Associate Prof., Civil Eng. Northern Arizona University P.O. Box 4092 Flagstaff, AZ 86011-4092

Dr. Michael Gelobter
Director & Professor
of Environmental Studies
Program on Environmental Policy
Columbia University School of
International and Public Affairs
1420 West 118th Street, Room 1313
New York, NY 10027

Mr. William Goldsmith Prof. Urban Planning Cornell University Ithaca, NY 14853

Unions

Mr. Ron Carver
International Brotherhood of
Teamsters
2500 Louisiana Ave.
Washington, DC 20001

Mr. Thomas C. Tighe International Union of Operating Engineers 1125 17th Street NW Washington, DC 20036

Environmental/Public Interest Groups

Governor Tony Earl Former Governor-Wisconsin Center for Clean Air Policy 444 North Capitol St. Suite 602 Washington, DC 20001

Mr. Stephen L. Gerritson Executive Director Lake Michigan Air Director's Consortium 2350 East Devon Ave. Suite 242 Des Plaines, IL 60018

Dr. Thomas J. Godar, M.D.
Director, Pulmonary Disease Section
St. Francis Hospital & Medical
Center
114 Woodland Street
Hartford, CT 06105

Mr. David Hawkins, Esq.
Senior Attorney
National Resources Defense Council
1350 New York Ave. N.W.
Washington, DC 20005

Mr. Richard Moore Co-Chair Southwest Network for Environmental Economic Justice Albuquerque, NM 87109

Trade Associations

Mr. Ben Cooper Senior VP for Governmental Affairs Printing Industries of America 100 Dainderfield Road Alexandria, VA 22314

Ms. Josephine S. Cooper VP, Environmental American Forest & Paper Association 1111 19th NW Suite 800 Washington, DC 20036

Utilities

Mr. Vincent J. Brisini Environment Manager Pennsylvania Electric Company 1001 Broad St. Johnstown, PA 15907

Mr. Lawrence R. Codey President Public Service Electric and Gas Company 80 Park Plaza Newark, NJ 07101

Mr. Charles H. Goodman Vice President Southern Company Services, Inc. P.O. Box 2625 Birmingham, AL 35202

Mr. Peter E. Jonker Manager, Policy & Planning Southern California Gas Company 555 West Fifth St. Los Angeles, CA 90013-1011

Industries

Dr. F. Peter Boer Executive Vice President W.R. Grace and Company One Town Center Road Boca Raton, FL 33486-1010

Mr. James H. Caldwell, Jr. TGAL, Incorporated Tracy's Landing, MD 20779

Mr. Robert H. Campbell President & Chief Executive Officer Sun Company, Inc. 1801 Market Street Philadelphia, PA 19103-1699

Mr. George A. Davidson, Jr. Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Consolidated Natural Gas Company CNG Tower 625 Liberty Ave. Pittsburgh, PA 15222

Mr. Donald A. Deieso President & Chief Executive Officer Research Cottrell Companies P. O. Box 1500 Sumerville. NJ 08876

Mr. Robert L. Ecklin Senior Vice President Environmental Products Division Corning Incorporated MP WX 02 01 Corning, NY 14831

Dr. Richard F. Eizember
Executive Director of
Corporate Environmental
Affairs and Planning
Eli Lilly Company
Lilly Corporate Center
Indianapolis, IN 46285

Mr. Ben G. Henneke, Jr. President EnviroFuels, Inc. 320 South Boston, Suite 1501 Tulsa. OK 74103-4704

Mr. John A. Johnson
Vice President
Safety, Health and Environmental
Affairs
The Boeing Company
P.O. Box 3707, MS 7E-HA
Seattle, WA 98124-2207

Mr. Charles D. Malloch
Director
Regulatory Management
Environmental Policy Staff
Monsanto Company
800 North Lindbergh Boulevard
St. Louis, MO 63167

Ms. Theresa Parrone
Director
Air & Water Quality Programs
Tekronix, Inc.
MS 40-000
P.O. Box 500
Beaverton, OR 97077-0001

Ms. Helen O. Petrauskas
Vice President
Environmental and Safety
Engineering
Ford Motor Company
The American Road
Dearborn, Mich 48121

Mr. Walter Quanstrom
Vice President
Environmental Affairs and Safety
Amoco Corporation
Mail Code 4905A
200 East Randolph Drive
Chicago, IL 60601

Mr. Henry B. Schacht Chairman & Chief Executive Officer Cummins Engine Company, Inc. 500 Jackson Street Columbus. IN 47202-3005

Mr. Robert Schaffhauser Vice President Englehard Corporation 101 Wood Avenue Iselin, NJ 08830-0770

Mr. William Shapiro
Manager, Regulation
and Compliance
Volvo Cars of North America
Volvo Drive
Rockleigh, NJ 07647-0913

Dr. Bruce Stram
Vice President
Corporate Strategy and Planning
Enron Corporation
1400 Smith Street
P.O. Box 1188
Houston, TX 77251-1188

Mr. J. William Sugar Director Environmental Affairs Anheuser-Busch Companies One Busch Place St. Louis, MO 63118-1852 Mr. Robert J. Trunek
Senior Vice President
Manufacturing, Engineering
& Technology
ARCO Products Company
1055 West 7th Street
PAC 3385
Los Angeles, CA 90017-2503

Mr. Thomas Zosel, Manager Pollution Prevention Programs 3M Corporation 900 Bush Street St. Paul, MN 55144

Lawyers/Consultants

Mr. Norman Emerson Emerson & Associates 550 North Brand Blvd. Suite 530 Glendale, CA 91203

Mr. Larry Feldcamp, Esq. Partner Baker & Botts 3000 One Shell Plaza Houston, TX 77002

Mr. William H. Lewis, Esq. Counsel to Clean Air Implementation Project Morgan, Lewis & Bocklus 1800 M Street, NW Washington, DC 20036

Mr. Steve Owens, Esq. Brown & Bain 2901 North Central Ave. Phoenix, AZ 85012-2788

Mr. Patrick Rahrer, Esq. Chairman, New Source Review, Subcommittee CAAAC Hogan & Hartson 555 13th Street, NW Washington, DC 20004

Mr. Robert A. Wyman, Partner Latham and Watkins 633 West 5th Street Los Angeles, CA 90071

NOTE: Terms expire March 31, 1996

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

With passage of the 1990 Clean Air Act Amendments, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) began to revise its new source review (NSR) rules to incorporate the requirements of the 1990 Amendments. In conjunction with the revision, EPA began considering ways to simplify the NSR process. To facilitate its efforts to identify potential methods for simplifying the NSR process, EPA decided to conduct 3 workshops, open to the public, to solicit comments from interested parties.

EPA considered the input provided by the three public workshops as invaluable and that it was time to select appropriate options in order to formulate policy and regulations. To accomplish this, EPA decided that the Subcommittee on New Source Review, constituted as part of the Clean Air Act Advisory Committee, be formulated to assist in choosing courses of action.

On July 7, 1993, EPA gave notice of the establishment of the NSR Reform Subcommittee (58 FR 36407) under the auspices of the Clean Air Act Advisory Committee (55 FR No. 217, 46993) which was established pursuant to the Federal Advisory Committee Act (5 U.S.C. APP. 1). The Subcommittee's purpose is to provide independent advice and counsel to EPA on policy and technical issues associated with reforming NSR rules.

The NSR Reform Subcommittee met for the first time on July 20-21, 1993. This meeting addressed NSR issues related to best available control technology (BACT) and Class I areas. As a result of the discussions, the Subcommittee decided to form six subgroups to address broad BACT and Class I area topics. The Subcommittee charged the subgroups with discussing the identified issues and developing recommendations for resolving their respective issues.

Another Subcommittee meeting was held on November 8-9, 1993, to review draft options and recommendations developed by the subgroups on specific areas regarding Class I area impacts on BACT. In addition, the Subcommittee addressed NSR applicability-related issues. At this meeting, two new subgroups were formed: NSR Applicability and Existing Source Impacts on Class I areas.

The Subcommittee met on January 20 and 21, 1994. The primary focus of this meeting was to have the Subcommittee reach a final consensus regarding recommendations on Class I permitting issues, control technology determinations and NSR applicability.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

CLEAN AIR SCIENTIFIC ADVISORY COMMITTEE (of the Science Advisory Board)

- 1. <u>PURPOSE</u>. This charter renews the Clean Air Scientific Advisory Committee of the Science Advisory Board in accordance with the requirements of section 9(c) of the Federal Advisory Committee Act, 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c).
- 2. <u>AUTHORITY</u>. The Committee was specifically directed by law on August 7,1977, under section 109 of the Clean Air Act, as amended [ACT], (42 U.S.C. 7409), and the charter was renewed on August 6, 1979; July 22, 1981; August 1, 1983; July 23, 1985; August 7, 1991; and September 30, 1993.
- 3. OBJECTIVE AND SCOPE OF ACTIVITY. The Committee shall provide independent advice on the scientific and technical aspects of issues related to the criteria for air quality standards, research related to air quality, source of air pollution, and the strategies to attain and maintain air quality standards and to prevent significant deterioration of air quality. The Committee shall hold meetings, perform studies, make necessary site visits, and undertake other activities necessary to meet its responsibilities. The Committee will coordinate its activities with other Committees of the Science Advisory Board and may, as it deems appropriate, utilize the expertise of other committees and members of the Science Advisory Board. Establishment of subcommittees is authorized for any purpose consistent with this charter. Subgroups that do not function independently of the parent committee are subject to all FACA requirements except separate chartering. The Committee will report to the Administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency.
- 4. <u>FUNCTIONS</u>. The Committee will review criteria documents for air quality standards and will provide independent scientific advice in response to the Agency's request and, as required by section 109 of the Act shall:
- Not later than January 1, 1980, and at five year intervals thereafter, complete a review of the criteria published under section 108 of the Clean Air Act and the national primary and secondary ambient air quality standards and recommend to the Administrator any new national ambient air quality standards or revision of existing criteria and standards as may be appropriate,
- Advise the Administrator of areas where additional knowledge is required concerning the adequacy and basis of existing, new, or revised national ambient air quality standards,

- Describe the research efforts necessary to provide the required information,
- Advise the Administrator on the relative contribution to air pollution concentrations of natural as well as anthropogenic activity, and
- Advise the Administrator of any adverse public health, welfare, social, economic, or energy effects which may result from various strategies for attainment and maintenance of such national ambient air quality standards.
- 5. <u>COMPOSITION AND MEETINGS</u>. The Administrator will appoint a Chairperson and six members including at least one member of the National Academy of Sciences, one physician, and one person representing State air pollution control agencies for terms up to four years. Members shall be persons who have demonstrated high levels of competence, knowledge, and expertise in the scientific/technical fields relevant to air pollution and air quality issues. Members of the Committee also become members of the Science Advisory Board, and the Chairperson of the Committee, or his designee, shall serve as a member of the Executive Committee of the Science Advisory Board. Most members will serve as Special Government Employees.
- 6. <u>MEETINGS</u>. The Committee will meet three to six times per year. A full time or permanent part-time Federal officer or employee of the Agency, who will serve as the Designated Federal Officer (DFO), will be present at all meetings and is authorized to adjourn any such meeting whenever this official determines it to be in the public interest. The Committee may not conduct any meetings in the absence of the DFO or his/her designee. Committee meetings will be called, announced, and held in accordance with the EPA Committee Management Manual. The manual contains the Agency's policies and procedures for implementing FACA. Among other things, FACA requires open meetings, and an opportunity for interested persons to file comments before or after meetings, or to make statements as permitted by the Committee's guidelines and to the extent that time permits. Support shall be provided by EPA through the Offices of the Science Advisory Board. The estimated annual operating cost totals approximately \$185,000 and 2.0 FTEs.
- 7. <u>DURATION</u>. The Committee will be needed on a continuing basis. This charter will be effective until August 7, 1995, at which time the Committee charter may be renewed for another two-year period.

September 27, 1993 Agency Approval Date Carol M. Browner Administrator

September 30, 1993
Date Filed with Congress

CLEAN AIR SCIENTIFIC ADVISORY COMMITTEE (of the Science Advisory Board)

CHAIRPERSON

Dr. George Wolff (94) General Motors Research Labs P.O. Box 9055 Warren, MI 48090

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Mr. Randall Bond Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street, SW, (1400F) Washington, DC 20460 (202) 260-8414

MEMBERS

Dr. Stephen Ayres (95)
Director, Office of Internal
Medicine Studies,
VCU/MCU, Box 565
Richmond, VA 23298

Dr. Patricia Buffler (95)
Dean, Professor of Epidemiology
School of Public Health
University of California
Berkeley, CA 94720

Dr. Jean Ford (94) School of Public Health 60 Haven Avenue, Rm. B1-123 New York, NY 10032 Dr. Benjamin Y.H. Liu (94) Department of Engineering University of Minnesota Minneapolis, MN 55455

Dr. Paulette Middleton (95)
University Cooperation for
Atmospheric Research
Box 3000
Boulder, CO 80307-3000

Dr. James Price (95)
Texas Natural Resource Conservation
Commission
P.O. Box 13087
Austin, TX 78711-3087

NOTE: Terms expire on September 30 of the year indicated by member's name

CLEAN AIR SCIENTIFIC ADVISORY COMMITTEE (of the Science Advisory Board)

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The Clean Air Scientific Advisory Committee (CASAC) is a statutory advisory group (established under section 109 of the Clean Air Act as amended on August 7, 1977). CASAC has an independent charter, but it operates under the administrative umbrella of the Science Advisory Board (SAB) and its Chair serves as a member of the Executive Committee. CASAC primarily reviews documents relating to National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS). By law, these standards are to be re-evaluated by EPA every 5 years. In practice, however, the process often takes longer. CASAC does not set the review schedule; rather, it is responsive to Agency time tables.

CASAC met three times on a number of topics throughout FY 1993. In addition to a December planning meeting, CASAC met in June to review the draft air quality criteria document for oxides of nitrogen (NOx), and a draft research strategy for alternative fuels developed by the Office of Research and Development. CASAC members have provided the Agency with written comments on both issues within the NOx review, closure being reached in July, 1993. CASAC also met in August, 1993 to review the draft criteria document and staff paper for SOx. CASAC members made numerous suggestions for the improvement of both documents. CASAC issued two letter reports and a commentary: a) Alternative Fuels Research Strategy Review (EPA-SAB-CASAC-LTR-93-014); b) NOx Closure (EPA-SAB-CASAC-LTR-93-015); and c) Ozone Criteria Document Development Schedule (EPA-SAB-CASAC-COM-93-004).

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

COUNCIL ON CLEAN AIR COMPLIANCE ANALYSIS (of the Science Advisory Board)

- 1. <u>PURPOSE</u>. This Charter establishes the Council on Clean Air Compliance Analysis in accordance with requirements of the Federal Advisory Committee Act, 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c).
- 2. <u>AUTHORITY</u>. The Council was specifically directed under section 812 of the Clean Air Act, as amended on November 15, 1990 (42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq.).
- 3. OBJECTIVE AND SCOPE OF ACTIVITY. The Council shall provide independent advice on technical and economic aspects of analyses and reports which the Agency prepares concerning the impacts of the Clean Air Act on the public health, economy, and the environment of the United States. The Council shall hold meetings, make necessary site visits and undertake other activities, necessary to meet its responsibilities. The Council will coordinate its activities with other committees of the Science Advisory Board and may, as it deems appropriate, utilize the expertise of other committees and members of the Science Advisory Board. Use of consultants and establishment of subcommittees is authorized for any purpose consistent with this charter providing subcommittees report back to the full Council. The Council will report to the Administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency.
- 4. <u>FUNCTIONS</u>. As required by the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990, the Council shall:
- review the data to be used or any analysis required under section 812 and make recommendations on the use of such data, review the methodology used to analyze such data and make recommendations on the use of such methodology, and prior to the issuance of a report to Congress required under section 812, review the findings of such report, and make recommendations concerning the validity and utility of such findings.

At the Agency's request, the Council will:

• review other reports and studies prepared by the Agency relating to the benefits and costs of the Clean Air Act, and provide advice on areas where additional knowledge is necessary to fully evaluate the impacts of the Clean Air Act and the research efforts necessary to provide such information.

- <u>COMPOSITION AND MEETINGS</u>. The Council shall consist of at least 9 members. appointed by the Administrator for terms of two years, after consultation with the Secretary of Commerce and the Secretary of Labor. Most members will be appointed as Special Government Employees subject to the conflict-of-interest restrictions. Administrator shall appoint a chairperson. Members of the Council shall be recognized experts in the fields of economics analysis, the health and environmental effects of air pollution, environmental sciences, or such other fields that the Administrator determines to be appropriate. The chairperson of the Council shall serve as a member of the Executive Committee of the Science Advisory Board. Other members of the Council may be members of the Science Advisory Board and may also serve on its various other committees or study groups. It is expected that the Council will meet two to four times per year. A full time employee of the Agency, who will serve as the Designated Federal Officer, will be present at all meetings and is authorized to adjourn any meeting whenever it is determined to be in the public interest. Support shall be provided by EPA through the offices of the Science Advisory Board. The estimated annual operating cost totals approximately \$150,000 and 1.5 work-years of staff support.
- 6. <u>DURATION</u>. The Council will be needed on a continuing basis, and may be renewed beyond its initial two-year period following the date of enactment of the Act establishing this Council, as authorized in accordance with section 14 of the Federal Advisory Committee Act.

March 13, 1992 Agency Approval Date

F. Henry Habicht II
Deputy Administrator

March 31, 1992
Date Filed with Congress

COUNCIL ON CLEAN AIR COMPLIANCE ANALYSIS (of the Science Advisory Board)

CHAIRPERSON

Dr. Richard Schmalensee (94)
Department of Economics
Massachusetts Institute of Technology
Room E52-456
Cambridge, MA 02139

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Dr. Samuel Rondberg Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street, S.W., 1400F Washington, D.C. 20460 (202) 260-2559

<u>MEMBERS</u>

Dr. Ronald Cummings (94) Department of Economics University of New Mexico Albuquerque, NM 87131

Dr. Daniel Dudek (94) Environmental Defense Fund 257 Park Avenue South New York City, NY 10010

Dr. A. Myrick Freeman (94)
Professor, Department of Economics
Department of Economics
Bowdoin College
Brunswick, ME 04011

Dr. Robert Mendelsohn (95) Yale School of Forestry 360 Prospect Street Yale University New Haven, CT 06511

Dr. William Nordhaus (95) Professor Department of Economics Yale University New Haven, CT 06520 Dr. Wallace E. Oates (94) Professor Department of Economics University of Maryland College Park, MD 20742

Dr. Paul R. Portney (94) Resources for the Future 1616 P Street, N.W. Washington, DC 20036

Dr. Thomas H. Tietenberg (95) Professor Department of Economics Colby College Waterville, ME 04901

Dr. Kip Viscusi (94)
Professor
Department of Economics
Duke University
Durham, NC 27706

NOTE: Terms expire on September 30 of the year indicated by member's name

COUNCIL ON CLEAN AIR COMPLIANCE ANALYSIS (of the Science Advisory Board)

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The CAACAC is a statutory advisory group (mandated by the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990) under the administrative umbrella of the SAB. Like the Clean Air Scientific Advisory Committee, it reports directly to the Administrator and has a separate charter. The CAACAC and the Environmental Economics Advisory Committee have complimentary responsibilities and some overlap in membership, but the CAACAC primary mission is to conduct an on-going review of the Agency's retrospective and prospective analyses of the cost/benefit impacts of the Clean Air Act.

The CAACAC met three times during FY93, and released three letter reports: a) Review of the Agency's study to analyze impacts of the Clean Air Act (EPA-SAB-CAACAC-LTR-93-006); b) Review of the Agency's retrospective study to analyze benefits of the Clean Air Act (EPA-SAB-CAACAC-LTR-93-007); and c) Review of the Agency's prospective study to analyze benefits of the Clean Air Act (EPA-SAB-CAACAC-LTR-93-011).

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

DIALOGUE COMMITTEE ON HAZARDOUS WASTE IDENTIFICATION

- 1. <u>PURPOSE</u>. This charter establishes the Dialogue Committee on Hazardous Waste Identification in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA), 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c).
- 2. <u>AUTHORITY</u>. It is determined that this Committee is in the public interest and supports the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) in performing its duties and responsibilities under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act.
- 3. OBJECTIVE AND SCOPE OF ACTIVITY. The Dialogue Committee will provide a forum to discuss appropriate procedures and standards to identify and govern safe management of mixtures and derivatives of hazardous waste, contaminated media, and remediation waste. It is hoped that a consensus on the most feasible process changes may be possible but, at a minimum, EPA would like to ensure that all process changes are identified and thoroughly evaluated. The output of the Dialogue Committee will be options for modifying regulations for the identification and management of waste regulated by RCRA.
- 4. <u>FUNCTIONS</u>. The Committee's function is to identify and evaluate modifications to the current RCRA regulations and to facilitate the exchange of ideas and information among the interested parties. The evaluation should include the technical and economic feasibility of the regulatory changes and modifications in the volume and/or risks posed by wastes regulated under the current regulations. With the participation of knowledgeable, affected parties, EPA expects to identify a list of feasible regulatory changes.
- 5. <u>COMPOSITION</u>. The Committee will consist of not more than 25 members. Members will represent the following segments of the population in appropriate mix and balance for the task at hand.

Categories of Members:

- environmental groups
- States
- representatives from the waste treatment industry
- industry

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

Appropriate members shall be selected and appointed for the duration of the Dialogue Committee. Workgroups may meet for any purpose consistent with this Charter. Such workgroups shall report back to the full Committee unless separately chartered. Workgroups that report directly to the Agency must be separately chartered. Unchartered workgroups have no authority to make decisions on behalf of the full Committee. Workgroups that do not function independently of the parent advisory committee are subject to all FACA requirements except separate chartering, unless exempt from such requirements under the GSA Rule (41 CFR 101-6.1004(k)).

EPA may pay travel and per diem expenses when necessary and appropriate. The Committee's estimated annual operating cost is approximately \$100,000 which includes 1 work-year of staff/contractual support. EPA's Office of Policy, Planning and Evaluation will provide administrative and process support to the Committee.

- 6. <u>MEETINGS</u>. A full-time or permanent part-time officer or employee of the Agency will serve as the Designated Federal Officer (DFO) and will be present at all meetings. The DFO is authorized to adjourn any meeting whenever it is determined to be in the public interest to do so. The Committee may not conduct any meetings in the absence of the DFO or his/her designee. Meetings shall be held as necessary, at the call of the Chair, with an agenda for each meeting approved in advance by the DFO. Committee meetings will be called, announced, and held in accordance with the EPA Committee Management Manual. The Manual contains the Agency's policies and procedures for implementing FACA. Among other things, FACA requires open meetings, and an opportunity for interested persons to file comments before or after meetings, or to make statements as permitted by the Committee's guidelines and to the extent that time permits.
- 7. <u>DURATION</u>. The Committee will terminate by June 8, 1995, unless the Deputy Administrator determines that the Committee will finish its work within 30 days of this date. If the Deputy Administrator makes such a determination, he can extend the termination date by 30 days without further consultation with GSA. In the event more time is needed, EPA may seek an extension under §14 of FACA.

May 13, 1994 Agency Approval Date	Rober M. Sussman Administrator
May 31, 1994 OMB Approval Date	
June 7, 1994 Date Filed with Congress	

CHAIRPERSONS

Mr. Michael Shapiro
Director, Office of Solid Waste
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
401 M Street S.W.
Washington, DC 20460

Mr. Fred Hanson
Director, Oregon Department of
Environmental Quality
811 S.W. 6th Avenue
Portland, OR 97204-1390

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Mr. Chris Kirtz Environmental Protection Agency 40l M Street S.W., 2136 Washington, DC 20460 (202) 260-7565

MEMBERS

Waste Management Industry

Mr. Douglas MacMillan Institute of Chemical Waste Management 1730 Rhode Island Avenue, NW Washington, DC 20003

Industry

Dr. Harvey Alter Manager, Resource Policy U.S. Chamber of Commerce 1615 H Street, NW Washington, DC 20062

Mr. Karl Bourdeau Beveridge & Diamond P.C. 1350 I Street, NW Washington, DC 20005

Mr. Mark Hopkins Chevron, Room 3848 575 Market Street San Francisco, CA 94105 Mr. Richard Fortuna Hazardous Waste Treatment Council 6915 15th Street, NW Washington, DC 20005

Mr. Rick Olson DOW Chemical USA 2030 Dow Center Midland, MI 48674

Mr. Robert Scarberry General Electric 3135 Easton Turnpike Fairfield, CT 06431

EPA

Mr. Michael Shapiro, Director Office of Solid Waste U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, DC 20460

States

Mr. Fred Hanson Director, Oregon Department of Environmental Quality 811 SW Sixth Avenue Portland, OR 97204-1390

Mr. Thomas Kennedy ASTSWMO 444 N. Capitol Street, NW Suite 388 Washington, DC 20001

Environmentalists

Ms. Karen Florini EDF 1875 Connecticut Avenue, NW Suite 1016 Washington, DC 20009

Consultant

Mr. David Lennett P.O. 71 Litchfield, ME 04350 Mr. Mel Hohman Director, Waste Management Division U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 1, JFK Federal Building 1 Congress Street Boston, MA 02203

Mr. Pat Matuseski Minimum Pollution Control Agency 520 Lafayette Road, N. St. Paul, MN 55155

Ms. Catherine Sharp Haz Waste Mgt Service-0205 Oklahoma Department of Health 1000 Northeast 10th Street Oklahoma City, OK 73117-1299

Ms. Linda Greer NRDC 1350 N.Y. Avenue, NW Suite 300 Washington, DC 20005

DIALOGUE COMMITTEE ON HAZARDOUS WASTE IDENTIFICATION

Facilitators

Mr. Michael Young Endispute 300 Park Avenue Suite 501 NYC, NY 10022 Ms. Denise R. Madigan Endispute 1201 Connecticut Ave 19th Floor Washington, DC 20036

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The Dialogue Committee on Hazardous Waste Identification, Co-chaired by a State and by an EPA representative, established two workgroups: one on Contaminated Media; the other on Process Waste issues. The full Committee and workgroups met numerous times during FY 1993. The Committee is now considering recommendations from the Contaminated Media Group having to do with definitional issues, storage, and removal. The Committee is also reviewing recommendations from the Process Waste Group regarding allowable exemption, entrance and exit levels.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

DIALOGUE COMMITTEE ON PHOSPHORIC ACID WASTES

- 1. <u>PURPOSE</u>. This charter renews the Dialogue Committee on Phosphoric Acid Production Wastes which was originally established on December 7, 1992 in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA), 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c).
- 2. <u>AUTHORITY</u>. It is determined that establishment of this Committee is in the public interest and supports the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) in performing its duties and responsibilities under the Toxic Substances Control Act and the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act.
- 3. OBJECTIVE AND SCOPE OF ACTIVITY. The Dialogue Committee will provide a forum to address any existing or potential risks to human health or the environment from phosphoric acid production wastes by identifying technically and economically feasible changes to the current phosphoric acid production process. These process changes should not introduce significant new environmental or human health risks. It is hoped that a consensus on the most feasible process changes may be possible but, at a minimum, EPA would like to ensure that all process changes are identified and thoroughly evaluated. Differing positions on the evaluations, as well as the reasons for those differences will be identified. The output of the Dialogue Committee will be the identification of one or more process changes that can later be considered for application to phosphoric acid facilities on a case-by-case facility specific basis.
- 4. <u>FUNCTIONS</u>. The Committee's function is to identify and evaluate changes to the current phosphoric acid production process and to facilitate the exchange of ideas and information among the interested parties. The evaluation should include the technical and economic feasibility of the process changes and what reduction in the volume and/or toxicity of the current wastes would result from such process changes. With the participation of knowledgeable, affected parties, EPA expects to develop a list of feasible process changes.
- 5. <u>COMPOSITION</u>. The Committee will consist of not more than 40 members, appointed by the EPA Deputy Administrator, plus an EPA official that will serve as Chair. Members will represent the following segments of the population in appropriate mix and balance for the task at hand.

Categories of Members:

- public interest groups
- representatives from the phosphoric acid industry

- States
- Federal agencies

Appropriate members shall be selected and appointed for the duration of the Dialogue Committee. Most members will be appointed as representatives of non-federal interests. A full-time salaried official or regular employee of the Agency will serve as the Designated Federal Officer and will be present at all meetings. The Designated Federal Officer is authorized to adjourn any meeting whenever it is determined to be in the public interest to do so. The Committee is authorized to form workgroups for any purpose consistent with this Charter. Such workgroups shall report back to the full Committee. Workgroups have no authority to make decisions on behalf of the full Committee nor can they report directly to the Agency.

EPA may pay travel and per diem expenses when necessary and appropriate. The Committee's estimated annual operating cost is approximately \$180,000 which includes 1 work-year of staff/contractual support. EPA's Office of Policy, Planning and Evaluation will provide administrative and process support to the Committee.

- 6. <u>MEETINGS</u>. Meetings shall be held as necessary, at the call of the Chair, with an agenda for each meeting approved in advance by the Designated Federal Officer. Committee meetings will be called, announced, and held in accordance with the EPA Committee Management Manual. This manual contains the Agency's policies and procedures for implementing FACA. Among other things, FACA requires open meetings, and an opportunity for interested persons to file comments before or after meetings, or to make statements to the extent that time permits.
- 7. <u>DURATION.</u> The Committee will terminate by September 30, 1994. In the event more time is needed, EPA may seek an extension under Section 14 of FACA.

September 20, 1993 Agency Approval Date Carol M. Browner Administrator

August 12, 1993 GSA Consultation Date

September 30, 1993
Date Filed with Congress

September 30, 1994

Date of Temporary Extension

DIALOGUE COMMITTEE ON PHOSPHORIC ACID WASTES

CHAIRPERSON

Mr. Larry Longanecker U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Pollution Prevention & Toxics 401 M Street, SW Washington, DC 20460

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OOFFICER

Mrs. Deborah Dalton Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street, S.W., MC-2136 Washington, DC 20460 (202) 260-5495

MEMBERS

Facilitator

Mr. Greg Bourne Southeast Negotiation Network College of Architecture Georgia Institute of Technology Atlanta, GA 30332

Mr. Joseph Baretincic Director, Environmental Services IMC Fertilizer, Inc. P.O. Box 1035 Mulberry, FL 33860

Mr. Daniel R. Bushman U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Pollution Prevention & Toxics Mail Code 7406 401 M Street, SW Washington, DC 20460

Mr. John F. Cochrane J.R. Simplot Company P.O. Box 912 Pocatello, ID 83204 Mr. Phil Coram
Florida Department of Environmental Regulation
Division of Water Facilities
& Industrial Waste Water
2600 Blair Stone Road
Tallahassee, FL 32399-2800

Mr. Paul Davidson Nature Conservancy P.O. Box 4125 Baton Rouge, LA 70821

Ms. Jacolyn Dziuban U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Radiation Programs Mail Code 6602J 401 M Street, SW Washington, DC 20460

Mr. Richard A. Flye
The Fertilizer Institute
C/O McKenna & Cuneo
1575 Eye Street, NW
Washington, DC 20005

DIALOGUE COMMITTEE ON PHOSPHORIC ACID WASTES

Mr. Bob Hall
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Office of Solid Waste
Mail Code OS-323W
401 M Street, SW
Washington, DC 20460

Mr. Larry D. Hinson Manager, Environmental Affairs Mobil Mining & Minerals Co. P.O. Box 311 Nichols, FL 33830

Ms. Connie Landers U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region IV 345 Courtland Street, NE Atlanta, GA 30365

Mr. Mike Lloyd Research Director for Chemical Processing Florida Institute of Phosphate Research 1855 W. Main Bartow, FL 33830

Mr. David McNaught Pamlico/Tar River Foundation P.O. Box 1854 Washington, DC 27889-1854

Mr. Eugene McNeil
Director, Safety, Health
& Environment
Occidental Chemical Corporation
P.O. Box 300
White Springs, FL 32096

Mr. E.O. Morris Manager of Environment Cargill Fertilizer, Inc. 8813 Highway 41 South Riverview, FL 33569

Mr. Jim Mulligan
Regional Supervisor
North Carolina of Environmental
Management Regulatory Support
P.O. Box 2188
Washington, DC 27889-2188

Ms. Anita Peterson
Solid Waste Division
Louisiana Department of
Environmental Quality
P.O. Box 2188
Baton Rouge, LA 70884-2178

Mr. Scott Prothero U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Pollution Prevention & Toxics 401 M Street, SW Mail Code 7406 Washington, DC 20460

Mr. Doug Rader North Carolina Environmental Defense Fund 128 E. Hargett Street, Suite 202 Raleigh, NC 27601

Ms. Gloria C. Rains Chairman 5314 Bay State Road ManaSota - 88 Palmetto, FL 34221

DIALOGUE COMMITTEE ON PHOSPHORIC ACID WASTES

Mr. Paul Robinson Southwest Research & Information Center P.O. Box 4524 Albuquerque, NM 87106

Ms. Suzi Ruhl
Legal Environmental
Assistance Foundation
1115 North Gadsden
Tallahassee, FL 32303-6327

Mr. Bernard J. Scheiner Supervisory Metallurgist U.S. Department of the Interior Bureau of Mines Tuscaloosa Research Center P.O. Box L Tuscaloosa, AL 35486-9777

Mr. William A. Schimming Manager, Environmental Affairs Texasgulf, Inc. P.O. Box 48 Aurora, NC 27806

Ms. Myra M. Soroczak Manager, Materials Charazterization Tennessee Valley Authority P.O. Box 1010 Muscle Shoals, AL 35660 Mr. Jeff Voorhis Texas Water Commission P.O. Box 13087 Capital Station Austin, TX 78711-3087

Mr. Edward E. Walker Freeport McMoRan, Inc. P.O. Box 61119 New Orleans, LA 33830

Mr. Sam Zamani, P.E.
Manager of Industrial Wastes
Florida Department of Environmental
Regulation
3804 Coconut Palm Drive
Tampa, FL 33619

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The Dialogue Committee on Phosphoric Acid Wastes met four times in fiscal year 1993. Prior to the second meeting the Committee members had an opportunity to tour a phosphoric acid production plant in central Florida and to discuss with plant managers the various processes being employed in the production of phosphoric acid. Committee members have received briefings and data on the different production methods and have considered the pros and cons of various process changes with regard to pollution prevention or waste reduction. In fiscal year 1994, the Committee will conclude its deliberations and recommend to the Agency whether certain process changes have potential for real reductions in the pollution resulting from the production of phosphoric acid.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

ENVIRONMENTAL FINANCIAL ADVISORY BOARD

1. <u>PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY.</u> This Charter renews the Environmental Financial Advisory Board, which was originally established on February 25, 1991, in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Advisory Committee Act, 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c).

The purpose of the Advisory Board is to provide authoritative analysis and advice to the EPA Administrator regarding environmental finance issues to assist EPA in carrying out its environmental mandates. It is determined that this Board is in the public interest in connection with the performance of duties imposed on the Agency by law.

Environmental legislation reauthorized or proposed by Congress in recent years has placed significant additional resource requirements on all levels of government, increasing their infrastructure and administrative costs. At the same time, limited budgets and changes in federal tax laws have constrained traditional sources of capital. Growing needs and expectation for environmental protection, as well as increasing demands in all municipal service areas, make it increasingly difficult for states and local governments to find the resources to meet their needs. The resulting strain on the public sector jeopardizes the quality and delivery of environmental services.

2. <u>SCOPE OF ACTIVITIES.</u> The Advisory Board will focus upon environmental finance issues at the federal, state, and local levels, particularly with regard to their impact upon local governments and small communities. The Board will address the capacity issue of state and local governments to carry out their respective environmental programs under current federal tax laws. The Board will endeavor to increase the total investment in environmental protection by facilitating greater leverage of public and private environmental resources to help ease the environmental financing challenge facing our nation.

Local governments must pay for the construction and operation of environmental facilities, such as wastewater treatment plants, solid waste facilities, and drinking water facilities. Their need for resources, both financial and technical, particularly in the face of the growing demand for increasingly expensive environmental services, calls for support from all levels of government and from the private and non-profit sectors. At the same time, federal and state resources for environmental programs are expected to remain fairly constant relative to the growth in costs associated with new legislative and program requirements.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

The activities of the Advisory Board will include analyzing problems, conducting meetings, presenting findings, and other activities necessary for the attainment of the Board's objectives. The Board will issue advisory statements to the EPA Administrator reflecting the opinions of the Board. The Board may also develop reports and issue papers, as necessary, and solicit comments from persons who are not members of the Board.

- 3. <u>OBJECTIVES.</u> The Advisory Board is assigned the role of providing advice on the critical environmental financing issues facing our nation, consistent with current federal tax laws. Objectives consistent with this role include:
- Reducing the cost of financing environmental facilities and discouraging polluting behavior;
- Creating incentives to increase private investment in the provision of environmental services and removing or reducing constraints on private involvement imposed by current regulations;
- Developing new and innovative environmental financing approaches and supporting and encouraging the use of effective existing approaches;
 - Identifying approaches specifically targeted to small community financing;
- Assessing government strategies for implementing public-private partnerships, including privatization and operations and maintenance issues, and other alternative financing mechanisms; and
- Reviewing governmental principles of accounting and disclosure standards and how they affect environmental programs.
- 4. <u>OPERATION OF EFAB.</u> Members of the Advisory Board are selected on the basis of their professional qualifications and diversity of perspectives and backgrounds that will enable them to provide advice and guidance to the Administrator on environmental financing issues. The Advisory Board consists of a group of independent experts drawn from all levels of government, including elected officials; the finance, banking, and legal communities; business and industry; national organizations; and academia. The group shall be of sufficient size and diversity to provide the range of perspectives required to assess the various issues pertaining to environmental financing. Most members will be appointed as representatives of non-federal interests. The Board will consist of approximately forty members and is authorized to form subgroups to report back to the Board. Subgroups that do not function independently of the parent advisory committee are subject to all FACA requirements except separate chartering.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

The Deputy Administrator or his/her designee appoints individuals to serve on the Board. Appointments will be established on a staggered basis, and members may be reappointed to the Board. The Deputy Administrator or a designee will also appoint members of the Board to serve as the Chair and Vice Chair.

5. <u>MEETINGS</u>. The Board will have at least two scheduled meetings each year, and each subgroup will meet at least twice each year and such meetings may be either during or subsequent to Board meetings. An EPA employee will serve as the Designated Federal Officer (DFO) of the Board, who will be present at all meetings and is authorized to adjourn meetings whenever it is in the public interest. Meetings will be called, announced, and held in accordance with the EPA Committee Management Manual. The Manual contains the Agency's policies and procedures for implementing FACA. Among other things, FACA requires open meetings, and an opportunity for interested persons to file comments before or after meetings, or to make statements as permitted by the Board's guidelines and to the extent that time permits.

Budgetary support for the Advisory Board is provided through the Environmental Financing Program staff in EPA's Office of the Comptroller. This staff serves as the executive secretariat to the Board and performs staff support and related assignments. The FY 1994 estimated annual operating costs total approximately \$350,000.00, which includes 3.5 workyears of staff support.

6. <u>DURATION.</u> The Advisory Board may be needed on a continuing basis. This charter will be in effect for two years from the date it is filed with the Congress. After that two-year period, the charter may be renewed for another two years, as authorized in accordance with Section 14 of the Federal Advisory Committee Act.

March 8, 1994 Agency Approval Date Robert M. Sussman
Deputy Administrator

March 16, 1994
GSA Consultation Date

March 31, 1994

Date Filed With the Congress

ENVIRONMENTAL FINANCIAL ADVISORY BOARD

CHAIRPERSON

Ms. Robin L. Wiessmann Principal (12/31/95) Artemis Capital Group, Inc. Park Avenue Tower 65 East 55th Street, 9th Floor New York, NY 10022

VICE CHAIRPERSON

Mr. Richard B. Geltman (3/31/96) Senior Associate Linton, Mields, Reisler & Cottone, Ltd. 1225 Eye St., NW, Suite 300 Washington, DC 20005

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Mr. Herbert Barrack
Assistant Regional
Administrator for Policy
and Management
U.S. EPA Region 2
26 Federal Plaza
New York, NY 10278
212/264-2520

MEMBERS

Congressional

Honorable Pete V. Domenici U.S. Senate (3/31/96) 434 SDOB Washington, DC 20510

State Officials

Mr. Pete Butkus (3/31/95)
Department of Community
Development
State of Washington
906 Columbia Street, SW
P.O. Box 48319
Olympia, WA 98504

Honorable William J. Coyne U.S. House of Representatives 2455 Rayburn House Office Building (3/31/96) Washington, DC 20515 Ms. Sarah W. Eubanks (3/31/95) Executive Director Michigan Municipal Bond Authority 2nd Floor Treasury Building 430 West Allegan Street Lansing, MI 48922

Mr. Shockley D. "Hap" Gardner, Jr. (3/31/95) Executive Director Virginia Resources Authority P.O. Box 1300 Richmond, VA 23210 Ms. Deborah A. Photiadis (3/31/95)
Executive Director
Governor's Advisory Council on
Privatization
State of Maryland
45 Calvert Street
Annapolis, MD 21401-1907

Local Officials

Honorable Stephen Goldsmith Mayor of Indianapolis (3/31/96) 2501 City-County Building Indianapolis, IN 46204

Mr. Robert J. Mulready (3/31/95) City Administrator City of Lewiston, Main City Hall Lewiston, ME 04240

Ms. Mary Ellen Whitworth (3/31/95)
Director, Environmental Policy
City of Houston
Office of the Mayor
901 Bagby, 1st Floor, Box 1562
Houston, TX 77251

Academia

Mr. Paul F. Levy (3/31/95)
Visiting Lecturer
Massachusetts Institute of
Technology
MIT Room 3-411
Cambridge, MA 02139

Mr. Robert P. Schwartz (3/31/95)
Executive Director
The University of Tennessee
Municipal Technical Advisory Service
600 Henley Street, Suite 120
Knoxville, TN 37996

Business and Industry

Ms. Jodie Bernstein (3/31/95)
Vice President
Ethics & Environmental
Relations
WMX Technologies, Inc.
Oak Brook, IL 60521

Mr. Joseph D. Blair (3/31/95) J.D. Blair & Company, Inc. 99 Summer Street, Suite 100 Boston, MA 02110

Mr. George A. Raftelis (3/31/95)
Raftelis Environmental
Consultant Group, Inc.
6100 Fairview Tower
Suite 615
Charlotte, NC 28210

Dr. Jim J. Tozzi (3/31/96)
Multinational Business
Services, Inc.
11 Dupont Circle, Suite 700
Washington, DC 20036

Ms. Susan F. Vogt, Director Environmental Policy, (3/31/95) Training and Regulatory Affairs Georgia-Pacific Corporation 1875 Eye St, NW, Suite 775 Washington, DC 20006

Banking, Finance, and Legal

Hon. Beryl F. Anthony, Jr. (3/31/96) Attorney Winston & Strawn Attorneys at Law 1400 L Street, NW Washington, DC 20005

Mr. Mitchell W. Berger (3/31/95)
Berger & Shapiro
Attorneys at Law
100 Northeast Third Avenue
Suite 400
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301

Mr. George H. Butcher, III (3/31/96) Vice President, Municipal Finance Goldman, Sachs & Co. 85 Broad Street New York, NY 10004

Mr. William H. Chew (3/31/96) Senior Vice President Municipal Finance Department Standard & Poor's Corporation 25 Broadway, 22nd Floor New York, NY 10004

Mr. Eufard L. Cooper (3/31/95)
Vice President, Public Finance
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette
Securities Corp.
140 Broadway
New York, NY 10005

Ms. Patricia Garrison-Corbin (3/31/95) P.G. Corbin and Company, Inc. 1411 Walnut Street Suite 1225 Philadelphia, PA 19103 Mr. Michael Curley (3/31/96) Hall, Curley & Co. 3820 Dance Mill Road Phoenix, MD 21131

Hon. Maynard Jackson (3/31/96) Chairman Jackson Securities, Inc. 55 Marietta Street, Suite 1870 Atlanta, GA 30303

Mr. William B. James (3/31/96) Director O'Brien Partners Inc. 505 Park Avenue New York, NY 10022

Ms. Susan P. LeGros (3/31/96)
Partner
Montgomery, McCracken, Walter
& Rhoads
Three Parkway, 20th Floor
Philadelphia, PA 19102

Mr. David M. Lick (3/31/96)
Partner
Loomis, Ewert, Ederer, Parsley,
Davis & Gotting, P.C.
232 South Capitol Avenue
Suite 1000
Lansing, MI 48933

Mr. Marlin L. Mosby, Jr. (3/31/95) Managing Director Public Financial Management, Inc. 4735 Spottswood Avenue Memphis, TN 38117

ENVIRONMENTAL FINANCIAL ADVISORY BOARD

Mr. George V. Pedraza (3/31/95) Vice President Public Finance Group Texas Commerce Bank 1020 N.E. Loop 410 San Antonio, TX 78209

Ms. Heather L. Ruth (3/31/96)
President
Public Securities Associations
40 Broad Street
New York, NY 10004-2373

Mr. Warren W. Tyler (3/31/96) Vice President State Savings Bank 20 East Broad Street Columbus, OH 43215

Ms. Frieda K. Wallison (3/31/95)
Partner
Jones, Day, Reavis & Pogue
1450 G Street, NW
Washington, DC 20005-2088

Mr. Neil Yoskin (3/31/95)
Partner, Picco, Mack, Herbert,
Kennedy, Jaffe & Yoskin
50 West State Street, Suite 1000
Trenton, NJ 08607

Associations and Organizations

Mr. Peter M. Emerson (3/31/95) Senior Economist Environmental Defense Fund 1800 Guadalupe Austin, TX 78701 Ms. Deeohn Ferris (3/31/95)
Director, Environmental
Projects
Lawyers Committee for Civil
Rights Underlaw
1400 Eye Street, NW, Suite 400
Washington, DC 20005

Ms. Roberta H. Savage (3/31/95)
Executive Director
Association of State and
Interstate Water Pollution
Control Administrators
750 First Street, NE
Suite 910
Washington, DC 20002

Ms. Elizabeth Ytell (3/31/95)
Director
Environmental Services Division
Rural Community Assistance
Corporation
2125 19th Street, Suite 203
Sacramento, CA 95818

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The Environmental Financial Advisory Board (EFAB) was established in 1989 to provide authoritative analysis and advice on environmental finance to the EPA Administrator to assist the Agency in carrying out its mission. Operating under the Federal Advisory Committee Act, EFAB is currently organized into three committees: Paying for Environmental Mandates; Education and Communication; and International.

The Board and it's committees met numerous times in 1992-1993 to analyze environmental financing issues and alternatives and to develop formal reports and advisory statements. EFAB activities and products during this period included:

- May 1992 -- The Board met in Washington, D.C. and released a formal progress report, <u>Narrowing the Gap: Environmental Finance for the 1990s</u>.
 This report outlined the major recommendations contained in EFAB's first four advisories and laid out directions for future Board activities.
- June 1992 -- EFAB's Paying for Mandates Committee served as the official review forum for the EPA State Capacity Task Force report entitled, <u>Alternative Financing Mechanisms for Environmental Programs</u>.
- September 1992 -- EFAB issued a joint report with EPA's Clean Air Act Advisory Committee entitled, <u>The Clean Air Act of 1990: A Guide to Public Financing Options</u>. This report addresses ways that states and localities can meet the costs of implementing their clean air programs.
- October 1992 -- The Board met in Washington, D.C. to discuss innovative financing ideas and to work on developing new advisories.
- December 1992 -- EFAB's Education and Communication Committee met in Washington, D.C. to continue to examine ways to better market environmental financing techniques.
- February 1993 -- The Board met in Washington, D.C. to discuss local government finance issues and to work in committee sessions on urban, international and marketing advisories.
- March 1993 -- EFAB formally released an advisory entitled, <u>Urban Environmental Policy: Steps Toward Environmental Equity</u>, <u>Reduced Environmental and Health Risks</u>, and Urban Revitalization.

ENVIRONMENTAL FINANCIAL ADVISORY BOARD

- July 1993 -- The Board transmitted to the Administrator a report entitled,
 Financing Environmental Infrastructure Along the United States-Mexican
 Border and in Eastern Europe and the Former Soviet Republics.
- September 1993 -- EFAB's International Committee chair participated in discussions with EPA and Treasury officials on developing mechanisms for financing environmental activities along the U.S.-Mexican border.
- November 1993 -- The International Committee met in Washington, D.C. to review initiatives for financing environmental facilities in the U.S.-Mexican border region. The Committee also examined approaches for financing the clean-up of hazardous waste sites in this region.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

ENVIRONMENTAL STATISTICS TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

1. <u>PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY</u>. This Charter is reissued to renew the Agency's Environmental Statistics Technical Advisory Committee (ESTAC) of the American Statistical Association which was originally established on April 10, 1992 in accordance with requirements of the Federal Advisory Committee Act, 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c).

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency's (U.S. EPA's) Environmental Statistics Program has seven major activities: compiling and analyzing environmental quality measures; promulgating guidelines for collecting data; coordinating the collection of environmental quality measures with Federal information gathering activities; making required data readily accessible; publishing timely summary measures; gathering conditions and trends information; and coordinating with EPA research offices to identify data needs.

The American Statistical Association has consented to the Agency's utilization of the ESTAC for the purpose of providing independent scientific advice and counsel to the Agency on matters involving environmental statistics. The Technical Advisory Committee is not utilized as an EPA advisory committee when it deliberates on other matters, including those related to its internal administration.

2. <u>SCOPE OF ACTIVITY</u>. The Technical Advisory Committee shall provide advice on the technical aspects and the results of the analyses of the U.S. EPA's Environmental Statistics Program, including how they can be presented in a balanced, carefully documented and useful way. The Committee will also provide advice concerning statistical research needed to develop appropriate methods for analyzing and displaying environmental data. The Technical Advisory Committee shall be consulted on technical, scientific and analytical matters involving the U.S. EPA's Environmental Statistics Program.

The Technical Advisory Committee shall hold meetings, analyze issues, conduct reviews, perform studies, produce reports, make necessary recommendations and undertake other activities necessary to meet its responsibilities. The reports of the Technical Advisory Committee will be presented to the Assistant Administrator for the Office of Policy, Planning and Evaluation.

Establishment of subcommittees is authorized for any purpose consistent with this charter. Such subcommittees will report back to the Committee.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

- 3. <u>OBJECTIVES</u>. The Technical Advisory Committee is assigned the role to advise on scientific and technical matters involved in the activities of the U.S. EPA's Environmental Statistics Program. Responsibilities consistent with this role include providing advice concerning the following:
 - the scientific and technical methods and approaches of analyses of environmental data;
 - the nature, quality and appropriateness of the scientific and technical data to be used:
 - the methods for determining the nature and character of environmental trends;
 - the methods of displaying and presenting environmental data and trends;
 - the research needed to support the activities of the U.S. EPA'S Environmental Statistics Program;
 - the analyses of data quality and cleanup for proper presentation;
 - the scientific and technical nature and character of annual and special reports; and
 - any other scientific and technical matter involved in the activity of the U.S. EPA's Environmental Statistics Program that are deemed appropriate.
- 4. <u>COMPOSITION</u>. The Committee is a committee of the American Statistical Association. In view of the goals and purposes for which the Committee's advice is sought, its utilization is expected to be continuing in nature.

The Technical Advisory Committee shall be composed of between 6 and 12 nationally and internationally known experts in environmental statistics and environmental data collection and analysis. Members shall be appointed by the Deputy Administrator of the US Environmental Protection Agency from among individuals representing environmental organizations, academia, research organizations, industry, federal, state, and local governments, and other appropriate entities. Members will be selected from a list of candidates provided by the American Statistical Association. Members shall serve for a 3-year term, with a possible second term of 3 years. Most members will be repre-

sentatives of non-federal interests. Members shall be paid travel expenses and compensation for special projects. The Chairman will be elected by the Committee in consultation with the Designated Federal Officer.

5. <u>MEETINGS</u>. Meetings shall be held twice a year, or as necessary, as called by the Chairperson and approved by the Designated Federal Officer. A full-time employee of the Agency, who will serve as the Designated Federal Officer, will be present at all meetings and is authorized to adjourn any meeting whenever it is determined not to be in the public interest. Each meeting will be conducted in accordance with an agenda approved in advance of the meeting by the Designated Federal Officer.

The estimated annual operating cost of the Technical Advisory Committee is \$15,000 plus 0.6 work years of staff support. The U.S. EPA's Environmental Statistics Program will provide the necessary support for the Committee.

- 6. <u>ADMINISTRATION</u>. When the Technical Advisory Committee is utilized as a federal advisory committee, the conduct of their meetings shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Act, including the following:
- (1) A meeting shall not be held except at the call of, or the advance approval of, the Designated Federal Officer who also approves the agenda which lists the matters to be considered at the meeting. The Designated Federal Officer who may be either a full-time or permanent part-time Government employee will be designated by the Agency.
- (2) A meeting shall not be conducted in the absence of the Designated Federal Officer, who shall be authorized to adjourn any advisory committee meeting whenever he or she determines it not to be in the public interest.
- (3) Minutes shall be kept of each committee meeting. The minutes shall include the time and place of the meeting; a list of the committee members, staff, members of the public presenting oral or written statements, and Agency employees present; a complete summary of matters discussed and conclusions reached; copies of all reports received, issued, or approved by the committee; a description of the extent to which the meeting was open to the public; and an estimate of the number of members of the public who attended the meeting. The accuracy of the minutes shall be certified by the committee chairperson.
- (4) Committee meetings shall be open to the public and a notice shall be published in the <u>Federal Register</u> at least 15 days before each meeting, except for emergency situations. The notice should include the name of the advisory committee, the

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

time, place, purpose of the meeting (including, where appropriate, a summary of the agenda), and information that the meeting will be open to the public. Other forms of notice, such as press releases, are to be used to the extent practicable.

- (5) Each committee meeting shall be open to the public and interested persons shall be permitted to attend and appear before the committee, subject to reasonable limitations of space and time. Meetings may be closed to the public only as authorized by § 10(d) of the Federal Advisory Committee Act (5 U.S.C., Appendix 1), as amended, and applicable regulations. Interested persons may file written statements with the committee at any time.
- 7. <u>DURATION</u>. The Environmental Statistics Technical Advisory Committee shall be needed on a continuing basis. The Charter will be in effect for two years from the date it is filed with Congress and may be renewed for another 2-year period, as authorized in accordance with Section 14 of the Federal Advisory Committee Act.

March 8, 1994
Agency Approval Date

Robert M. Sussmann
Deputy Administrator

March 16, 1994 GSA Consultation Date

April 10, 1994

Date Filed with Congress

ENVIRONMENTAL STATISTICS TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

CHAIRPERSON

Mr. Richard Beckman (95) Group Leader Statistics Group Los Alamos National Laboratory MS-F600 Box 1663 Los Alamos, NM 87545

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICIAL

Dr. C. Richard Cothern Environmental Protection Agency Environmental Statistics and Information Division OPPE, Mail Code 2163 Washington, D.C. 20460 (202) 260-2734

MEMBERS

Mr. John C. Bailar (95) 468 N Street, S.W. Washington, DC 20024

Mr. Nihua Duan (95)
RAND Corporation
Econ 2
1700 Main Street
Santa Monica, CA 90406

Mr. Richard Gilbert (95) Battelle-Northwest Laboratories PO Box 999 Richland, WA 99352

Mr. Dan Krewski (95)
Chief of Biostatistics
Health and Welfare Canada
Room 109
Environmental Health Center
Tunney's Pasture
Ottawa, Ontario, CA K1A 0L2

Ms. Louise Ryan (95)
Division of Biostatistics
Dana-Farber Cancer Institute
44 Binney Street
Boston, MA 02115

Mr. Andrew Solow (95) Woods Hole Oceanographic Institute Woods Hole, MA 02543

Ms.Linda J. Young (95) Biometry Department University of Nebraska 103 Miller Hall East Campus Lincoln, NE 68583-0172

NOTE: Terms expire April 10 of the year indicated by member's name

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The Environmental Statistics Technical Advisory Committee met for the first time this past year in two sessions. The first was at the annual meeting of the American Statistical Association in San Francisco, California, August 10, 1993. At this meeting the background of statistics in EPA and the status of the proposed Bureau of Environmental Statistics was discussed. The second meeting was held by audio conference call January 20, 1994 and recommendations were developed concerning the National Environmental Goals Project. The Committee was able to better understand the interrelationships, and roles of the EPA, the proposed Bureau of Environmental Statistics, and the Committee. Their first substantive accomplishment was a set of constructive suggestions to be used in the data analysis for the EPA-wide National Environmental Goals Project. With the Committee's input, the quality of data and analyses upon which the Agency will determine whether national environmental goals are being attained, should be considerably enhanced.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

FEDERAL FACILITIES ENVIRONMENTAL RESTORATION DIALOGUE

- 1. <u>PURPOSE</u>. This charter establishes the Federal Facilities Environmental Restoration Dialogue Committee, in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Advisory Committee (FACA), 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c).
- 2. <u>AUTHORITY</u>. It is determined that establishment of this Committee is in the public interest and supports EPA in performing its duties and responsibilities under Section 120 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA), Section 6001 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), and other authorities pertaining to the environmental restoration of federal facilities.
- 3. OBJECTIVE AND SCOPE OF ACTIVITY. The Committee will provide a forum to refine and further develop issues related to environmental restoration activities at federal facilities. The forum will facilitate the exchange of ideas and information among interested parties. It is hoped that consensus may be possible on these issues, but at a minimum, EPA would like to ensure that issues are thoroughly refined and that differing positions, as well as the reasons for those differences, are identified. A final report describing the results of the dialogue will be prepared.
- 4. <u>FUNCTIONS</u>. As indicated above, the Committee's function is to assist directly in the development of EPA and federal agency efforts to address federal facility environmental restoration programs. With the participation of knowledgeable, affected parties, EPA expects to develop a practical approach to federal agency environmental restoration efforts which will best protect human health and the environment within guidelines and principles that have broad public support and national applicability.
- 5. <u>COMPOSITION</u>. The Committee will consist of not more than forty (40) members, appointed by the EPA Deputy Administrator, plus a facilitator who will serve as Chair. Members will represent the following interests in an appropriate mix and balance:

Categories of Members:

- Public interest/environmental groups
- Tribal Government and Native American representatives
- State Government representatives
- Federal Agency representatives
- Other Interested and Affected Parties

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

Appropriate members shall be selected and appointed for the duration of the Committee's charter. A full-time salaried official or regular employee of the Agency will serve as the Designated Federal Officer and will be present at all meetings. The Designated Federal Officer is authorized to adjourn any meeting whenever it is determined to be in the public interest to do so. The Committee is authorized to form work groups for any purpose consistent with this Charter. Such work groups shall report back to the full Committee. Work groups have no authority to make decisions on behalf of the full Committee nor can they report directly to the Agency.

Under the Federal Advisory Committee Act, EPA may pay travel and per diem expenses when necessary and appropriate. The Committee's estimated annual operating cost is approximately \$200,000, which includes .5 work years of staff support. EPA's Office of Enforcement will provide administrative and process support to the Committee.

- 6. <u>MEETINGS</u>. Meetings shall be held as necessary, at the call of the Chair, with an agenda for each meeting approved in advance by the Designated Federal Officer. Committee meetings will be called, announced, and held in accordance with the EPA Committee Management Manual. This manual contains the Agency's policies and procedures for implementing FACA. Among other things, FACA requires open meetings and an opportunity for interested persons to file comments before or after meetings, or to make statements to the extent that time permits.
- 7. <u>DURATION</u>. The Committee will terminate by June 30, 1993, unless the Deputy Administrator determines that the Committee will finish its work within 30 days of the original termination date. If the Deputy Administrator makes such a determination, he may extend the termination date by 30 days without further consultation with GSA. In the event more time is needed, EPA may seek an extension under Section 14 of FACA.

March 13, 1992 Agency Approval Date F. Henry Habicht II
Deputy Administrator

April 29, 1992 GSA Consultation Date

April 29, 1992
Date Filed with Congress

September 30, 1994
Date of Temporary Extension

FEDERAL FACILITIES ENVIRONMENTAL RESTORATION DIALOGUE COMMITTEE

CHAIRPERSON

Mr. Timothy Fields
Director
Superfund Revitalization Office
Environmental Protection Agency
401 M Street, SW (MC-5104)
Washington, DC 20460

CO-CHAIRPERSON

Mr. Barry Breen
Acting Director
Federal Facilities Enforcement
Program
Environmental Protection Agency
401 M Street, SW (MC-2261)
Washington, DC 20460

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Ms. Marilyn Null Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street, SW (2262) Washington, DC 20460 (202) 260-5686

MEMBERS

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Mr. George C. Hofer Chief, Federal Facility Superfund Branch Environmental Protection Agency 1200 6th Avenue HW-124 Seattle, WA 98101

Mr. Jon D. Johnston Federal Facility Section Environmental Protection Agency Region IV, 345 Courtland Street NE Atlanta, GA 30365

Department of Defense

Ms. Sherri Wasserman Goodman Deputy Under Secretary of Defense Department of Defense The Pentagon, Room 3E808 Washington, DC 20301

Department of the Air Force

Mr. Alan P. Babbitt
Acting Deputy Assistant Secretary of the Air Force (Environment, Safety & Department of the Air Force SAF/MIQ
1660 AF Pentagon, Room 5C866
Washington, DC 20330-1660

FEDERAL FACILITIES ENVIRONMENTAL RESTORATION DIALOGUE COMMITTEE

Department of the Army

Mr. Lewis D. Walker
Deputy Assistant Secretary of the Army
(Env., Safety & Occupational Health)
Department of the Army
The Pentagon, Room 2E577
Washington, DC 20310-0103

Department of the Navy

Ms. Elsie Munsell
Deputy Assistant
Secretary of the Navy (Env. & Safety)
Department of the Navy
2211 Jefferson Davis Highway
Arlington, VA 22244-5110

Department of Energy

Ms. Cindy Kelley
Director
Office of Public Accountability-ERWM
U.S. Department of Energy (EM-4)
1000 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, DC 20585

Mr. James D. Werner Director Office of Analysis & Planning-ERWM U.S. Department of Energy (EM-6) 1000 Independence Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20585

Ms. Kitty Taimi
Policy Advisor to the Assistant Secretary
for Environment Safety and Health
Department of Energy
EH-1 Room 7A121
1000 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, DC 20585

Other Federal Agencies

Dr. Mark M. Bashor
Associate Administrator
Agency for Toxic Substances
& Disease Registry
1600 Clifton Rd., N.E., Mail Stop E-28
Atlanta, GA 30333

Dr. Jonathan P. Deason Director Office of Environmental Affairs Department of the Interior 1849 C Street, NW Room 2340 Washington, DC 20240

Mr. Sam Higuchi
Environmental Compliance
& Safety Officer
U.S. Department of Commerce/NOAA
1325 East West Highway
SSMC-2/OA3X1/RM4434
Silver Spring, MD 20910

Ms. Joyce Jatko
Chief, Environmental
Management Branch
NASA Headquarters Code JXG
300 E Street, SW
Washington, DC 20546

Mr. Bill Opfer
Hazardous Waste Management
Coordinator
U.S. Department of Agriculture
14th & Independence Ave, SW
Washington, DC 20250

FEDERAL FACILITIES ENVIRONMENTAL RESTORATION DIALOGUE COMMITTEE

Environmental, Citizen & Labor Organizations

Mr. Drew Caputo
Attorney
Natural Resources Defense Council
1350 New York Avenue, N.W.
Suite 300
Washington, DC 20005

Mr. Tim Connor Analyst Energy Research Foundation South 1016 Buena Vista Drive Spokane, WA 99204

Ms. Bonnie L. Exner-Rader President Citizens Intelligence Network 12600 West Colfax C-310 Lakewood, CO 80215

Ms. Cathy Hinds (NTCF)
Military Toxics Project
National Toxics Campaign
P.O. Box 845
Sabattus, ME 04280

Mr. Ralph Hutchison
Coordinator
Oak Ridge Environmental
Peace Alliance
P.O. Box 1101
Knoxville, TN 37801

Mr. Richard Miller
Policy Analyst
Oil Chemical Atomic
Workers Union (OCAW)
2090 Northhampton Street
Holyoke, MA 01040

Mr. John B. Moran
Director, Safety & Health
Laborers' Health & Safety Fund of
North America
905 16th Street, NW
Washington, DC 20006-1765

Mr. Lenny Siegel
Director
Pacific Studies Center
222B View Street
Mountain View, CA 94041

Mr. J. Ross Vincent
Chair, Pollution Campaign Steering
Committee
Sierra Club
504 Starlite Drive (81005)
P.O. Box 4375
Pueblo, CO 81003

Environmental Justice Organizations

Ms. Pat Bryant Executive Director Gulf Coast Tenants Organization 1866 North Gayoso Street New Orleans, LA 70119

Mr. Michael Guerrero Southwest Organizing Project 211 10th Street SW Albuquerque, NM 87102

Dr. Mildred McClain Executive Director Citizens for Environmental Justice P.O. Box 1841 1115 Habersham Street Savannah, GA 31401

FEDERAL FACILITIES ENVIRONMENTAL RESTORATION DIALOGUE COMMITTEE

Native American Organizations & Tribal Representatives

Mr. William H. Burke Board of Trustees Confederate Tribes of the Umatilla Reservation Old Mission Highway P.O. Box 638 Pendleton, OR 97801

Mr. Russell Jim
Manager, Environmental Restoration and
Waste Management Program
Yakima Indian Nation
622 West 1st Street
Watato, WA 98951

Mr. Stanley Paytiamo
Environmental Engineer
c/o Pueblo Office of Environmental
Protection
I-40 Exit 102, South
P.O. Box 370
Acomita. NM 87034

Mr. Merv Tano General Counsel Council of Energy Resource Tribes 1999 Broadway, Suite 2600 Denver, CO 80202

Ms. Gayle Townley Grants Program Coordinator Cherokee Nation of Oklahoma Junction of Hwy 62 & 82 P.O. Box 948 Tahlequah, OK 74465 Mr. Sam Winder National Tribal Environmental Council 1225 Rio Grande NW Albuquerque, NM 87104

Local Government Representatives

Ms. Joan Glickman
International City/County
Management Association
777 North Capitol Street, NE, #500
Washington, DC 20002

Mr. Phillip A. Niedzielski-Eichner Executive Director Energy Communities Alliance 1925 North Lynn Street, Suite 500 Arlington, VA 22209

State Government Representatives

Mr. Lewis R. Bedenbaugh
Director
Site Engineering & Screening Div.
South Carolina Department of Health
& Environmental Quality Control
2600 Bull Street
Columbia. SC 29201

Mr. Jeff Breckel
Washington\Oregon
Interstate Liaison
Washington Department of Ecology
Nuclear & Mixed Waste Program
P.O. Box 47600
Olympia, WA 98504-7600

FEDERAL FACILITIES ENVIRONMENTAL RESTORATION DIALOGUE COMMITTEE

Mr. Thomas Curtis Director Natural Resources Group 444 North Capitol Street, Suite 250 Washington, DC 20001

Mr. Sam Goodhope
Special Counsel for Environment
and Transportation
Office of the Attorney General
State of Texas
Administration Price Building
8th Floor, 14th & Colorado
Austin, TX 78711-2548

Mr. Thomas Kennedy Executive Director Association of State & Territorial Solid Waste Management Officials 444 N. Capitol Street, N.W., Suite 388 Washington, DC 20001

Mr. Dan Miller
First Assistant Attorney
Office of the Attorney General
Natural Resources Section
1525 Sherman Street, 5th Floor
Denver, CO 80203

Mr. David Shelton
Director
Hazardous Material & Waste
Management Division
Colorado Department of Health
HMWMD-ADM-B2
4300 Cherry Creek Drive South
Denver, CO 80222-1530

Mr. Brian Zwit
Environment Counsel
National Association of
Attorneys General
444 N. Capitol Street, Ste. 339
Washington, DC 20001

FEDERAL FACILITIES ENVIRONMENTAL RESTORATION DIALOGUE COMMITTEE

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

In February 1993, the Federal Facilities Environmental Restoration Dialogue Committee (FFERDC) issued its Interim Report on Recommendations for Improving Federal Facilities Environmental Restoration Decision-Making and Priority-Setting Processes. The Committee recommendations include:

- improving dissemination and exchange of information related to federal facility clean-ups;
- involving affected stakeholders through establishment and consultation with Site Specific Advisory Boards (SSABs); and
- consultation on federal facility environmental restoration funding matters.

Throughout the spring and summer of 1993, the FFERDC conducted seven regional public forums where the Committee's recommendations were presented. Forum participants were invited to provide feedback to the Committee.

During the September 1993 plenary session, FFERDC members agreed the report should not be modified at that time, but that implementation efforts of various agencies needed to be monitored.

At the September plenary session, new members were added to the FFERDC, representing environmental justice and local government interests. These two areas of concern were not included during the first phases of the FFERDC's efforts.

The Committee's recommendations on enhanced public participation are being implemented at DOE and at DoD sites around the country. DOE has established SSABs at more than a dozen of their installations; DoD has developed guidance for establishing and utilizing Restoration Advisory Boards (RABs) at a number of their closing facilities.

The FFERDC is monitoring the implementation of SSABs and RABs, and is planning to continue work on priority-setting issues.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

FEDERAL INSECTICIDE, FUNGICIDE, AND RODENTICIDE ACT (FIFRA) SCIENTIFIC ADVISORY PANEL

- I. <u>PURPOSE</u>. This charter is reissued to renew the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA) Scientific Advisory Panel in accordance with the requirements of the Federal Advisory Committee Act 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c).
- 2. <u>AUTHORITY</u>. The former Panel was created on November 28, l975, pursuant to Section 25(d) of the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA), as amended by Public Law 94-l40, Public Law 95-396, and Public Law 96-539. In accordance with this statute, the Panel terminated on September 30, l98l. It was reestablished by the Administrator pursuant to the Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA) and Section 2l(b) of FIFRA on April 25, l983, and then reauthorized as a statutory committee by amendment to the FIFRA dated December 2, l983 (Public Law 98-20l). Under FIFRA (Public Law 98-20l), the statutory Panel terminated on September 30, l987. It was administratively reestablished on October I, l987 by the Administrator pursuant to FACA until reauthorized as a statutory Panel by amendment to the FIFRA, dated October 25, l988 (Public Law l00-532).
- 3. <u>OBJECTIVE AND SCOPE OF ACTIVITY</u>. The Panel will provide independent scientific advice on pesticides and pesticide-related issues as to the impact on health and the environment of the following regulatory actions:
- a. Notice of intent to cancel a pesticide registration or change its classification under Section 6(b)(l) of FIFRA;
- b. Notice of intent to hold a hearing to determine whether or not a pesticide registration should be canceled or its classification changed under Section 6(b)(2) of FIFRA;
- c. Emergency orders immediately suspending registration of a pesticide before notification of the registrants pursuant to Section 6(c)(3) of FIFRA; and
 - d. Regulations to be issued under Section 25(a) of FIFRA.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

The Administrator shall also solicit from the Panel comments, evaluations, and recommendations for operating guidelines to improve the effectiveness and quality of scientific analyses made by personnel of the Environmental Protection Agency that lead to decisions by the Administrator.

The comments, evaluations, and recommendations of the Panel and the response of the Administrator shall be published in the Federal Register. The Administrator also may use the Panel to provide peer review of major scientific studies.

4. <u>FUNCTION</u>. The fundamental purpose of FIFRA is to ensure that pesticides do not cause "unreasonable adverse effects on the environment," as defined in Section 2(bb) of FIFRA. The Panel will be expected to comment as to the impact on health and the environment of matters arising under Sections 6(b), 6(c) and 25(a) of FIFRA. Analyses prepared by staff of the Environmental Protection Agency will be provided for the Panel's consideration.

The Assistant Administrator for Prevention, Pesticides and Toxic Substances, or his/her designee, will initiate all requests for comment by the Panel in accordance with the following timetable: Notices of intent to cancel or change classification under Section 6(b) of FIFRA and proposed regulations under Section 25(a) of FIFRA will be forwarded to the Panel at least 60 days prior to their issuance to a registrant or publication in the Federal Register. Final regulations will be forwarded to the Panel at least 30 days in advance of publication. Whenever the Administrator exercises authority under Section 6(c) of the Act to immediately suspend the registration of any pesticide to prevent an imminent hazard, the Administrator shall promptly submit to the Panel action taken to suspend the registration of such pesticide. In providing for peer review, the Administrator also may use the Panel or appropriate experts appointed from a current list of nominees maintained by the Panel.

The Panel's comments will be submitted in writing to the Assistant Administrator for Prevention, Pesticides and Toxic Substances. Such comments will be published in the Federal Register, together with the Environmental Protection Agency's response at the time that such notices of intent or proposed or final rulemaking are published in the Federal Register. In any particular case, the Panel may waive comment.

The Panel shall consult and coordinate its activities with the Science Advisory Board established under the Environmental Research, Development, and Demonstration Authorization Act of 1978. The chair of FIFRA Scientific Advisory Panel is a member of the Executive Committee of the Science Advisory Board.

5. COMPOSITION. The Panel is composed of seven members, including the Chairperson, selected and appointed by the Deputy Administrator from twelve nominees - six nominated by the National Institutes of Health (NIH) and six by the National Science Foundation (NSF), utilizing a system of staggered terms of two to four years. Members of the Panel are selected on the basis of their professional qualifications to assess the effects of the impact of pesticides on health and the environment. To the extent feasible to insure multidisciplinary representation, the Panel membership shall include representation from the disciplines of toxicology, pathology, environmental biology, and related sciences (e.g., pharmacology, biotechnology, bio-chemistry, biostatistics, to name a few). If a vacancy occurs on the Panel due to expiration of a term, resignation, or any other reason, each replacement shall be selected by the Deputy Administrator from a group of 4 nominees, 2 each submitted by NIH and NSF. The Deputy Administrator may extend the term of a Panel member until the new member is appointed to fill the vacancy. Should the list of nominees provided be unsatisfactory, the Deputy Administrator may request an additional set of nominees from the nominating entities. No person shall be ineligible to serve on the Panel by reason of his/her membership on any other advisory committees to a Federal department or agency or his/her employment by a Federal department or agency (except the Environmental Protection Agency).

Panel members are subject to the provisions of 40 CFR Part 3, Subpart F -- Standards of Conduct for Special Government Employees, which includes rules regarding conflicts of interest. Each nominee selected by the Deputy Administrator, before being formally appointed, is required to submit a Confidential Statement of Employment and Financial Interests (EPA Form 3l20-l), which shall fully disclose any outside source(s) of financial support. The Deputy Administrator shall require all nominees to the Panel to furnish information concerning their professional qualifications, their educational background, employment history, and scientific publications. The Agency shall publish in the Federal Register the name, address, and professional affiliations of each nominee.

The estimated annual operating cost of the Panel will be approximately \$103,000 which includes an allowance for I.75 work year of staff support. The Office of Pesticide Programs provides the necessary staff and support for the Panel.

6. <u>MEETINGS</u>. The Panel will meet either at the request of the Assistant Administrator for Prevention, Pesticides and Toxic Substances, or his/her designee, or at the request of the Chairperson with the concurrence of the Assistant Administrator for Prevention, Pesticides and Toxic Substances, or his/her designee. Panel meetings will be called, announced, and held in accordance with the Environmental Protection Agency's Manual on Committee Management. In compliance with FACA, Panel meetings shall be open to the public (an exception to this is provided for in 41 CFR Part 101-6, which gives guidance for closing all or part of a meeting); interested persons shall be

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

permitted to file written statements to the extent that time permits. Any such written or oral statements will be taken into consideration by the Panel in formulating its comments or in deciding whether to waive comment. All documents pertaining to each Panel meeting are available to the public (unless exempted by the Freedom of Information Act, such as Confidential Business Information).

The Assistant Administrator for Prevention, Pesticides and Toxic Substances or his/her designee, will serve as the Designated Federal Officer and will attend all meetings. Each meeting of the Scientific Advisory Panel will be conducted in accordance with an agenda approved in advance of the meeting by the Designated Federal Officer. The Designated Federal Officer is authorized under the Federal Advisory Committee Act to adjourn any meeting of the Scientific Advisory Panel whenever such adjournment is determined to be in the public interest. The Panel may not conduct any meeting in the absence of the Designated Federal Officer or his/her designee.

Temporary subpanels may be created at the request of the Assistant Administrator for Prevention, Pesticides and Toxic Substances or the Chairperson of the Panel to review and discuss specific projects. Such subpanels will consist of <u>ad hoc</u> consultants with particular expertise in matters presented to the subpanel, but will always be chaired by a member of the Scientific Advisory Panel.

It is anticipated that the Panel will conduct approximately five meetings, including subpanel meetings, each year. Meetings normally last one day, but can be extended dependent upon the agenda topics and the time needed for review and discussion. A report of each meeting is prepared within IO-I5 working days after the meeting is closed, which summarizes the Panel's recommendations and conclusions regarding the issues presented to it by the Agency. Transcripts of the full meeting are also maintained and available upon request.

7. <u>DURATION</u>. The FIFRA Scientific Advisory Panel shall be needed on a continuing basis. The Charter is subject to the renewal process upon the expiration of each successive two-year period following the date of enactment of the Act establishing the Panel.

October 13, 1992 Agency Approval Date F. Henry Habicht II
Deputy Administrator

October 26, 1992

Date Filed with Congress

FEDERAL INSECTICIDE, FUNGICIDE, AND RODENTICIDE ACT (FIFRA) SCIENTIFIC ADVISORY PANEL

CHAIRPERSON

Dr. Ernest E. McConnell (1/30/96) 3028 Ethan Lane Raleigh, NC 27613

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Mr. Robert B. Jaeger FIFRA Scientific Advisory Panel Office of Pesticide Programs Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street, SW (H7509C) Washington, D.C. 20460 (703) 305-5369 or 5244

MEMBERS

Mr. Marion W. Anders (1/30/96)
Professor and Chairman
Department of Pharmacology
University of Rochester
Medical Center
601 Elmwood Avenue
Rochester, NY 14642

Mr. Charles C. Capen (4/1/98)
Professor/Chairman of
Veterinary Pathobiology
Ohio State University
College of Veterinary Medicine
1925 Coffey Rd.
Columbus, OH 43210

Dr. Harihara M. Mehendale (1/30/96)
Kitty Degree Endowed Chair in
Toxicology
Division of Pharmacology
Northeast Louisiana University
School of Pharmacy
Monroe, LA 71209-0470

Ms. Mary Ann Thrall (6/1/98)
Professor, Department of Pathology
College of Veterinary Medicine &
Biomedical Science
Colorado State University
Fort Collins, CO 80523

Dr. Curtis C. Travis (6/30/94)
Director
Center for Risk Management
Oak Ridge National Laboratory
Bethel Valley Road
P.O. Box 2008
Oak Ridge, TN 37831-6109

Dr. John T. Wilson (5/15/95) Professor of Pharmacology Louisiana State University Medical Center 1501 Kings Highway Shreveport, LA 71130

FEDERAL INSECTICIDE, FUNGICIDE, AND RODENTICIDE ACT (FIFRA) SCIENTIFIC ADVISORY PANEL

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The FIFRA Scientific Advisory Panel (FIFRA SAP) fulfills a critical, independent, and scientific peer review role in the EPA pesticide regulatory program. The Panel is convened at the discretion of the Agency to provide expert comment and advice on various aspects of the Agency's scientific review of pesticide issues. During 1993, the FIFRA SAP met jointly with the Science Advisory Board (SAB) on three occasions, demonstrating a significant enhancement of the integrated scientific peer review process which is operative within the Agency. FIFRA SAP & SAB gave scientific advice on the significance of cholinesterase inhibition and relevance of such measurements in laboratory animal species, particularly as they impact on the risk assessment of similar effects in humans. Secondly, FIFRA SAP & SAB provided expert counsel on the carcinogenicity of 2,4-D, a widely used herbicide in domestic and agricultural settings. The significance of recent epidemiological reports as they related to evidence for carcinogenicity in humans as well as domestic animals resulting from exposures to 2,4-D were investigated and discussed. A report is currently in the final drafting stages for submission to the Administrator.

The FIFRA SAP continues to provide up-to-date scientific advice affecting antimicrobial test methodology research, a program the Agency has funded the past several years. Their input has helped focus the Agency's scientific efforts in this area and continues to provide much needed advice to the Agency.

The FIFRA SAP has also provided expert scientific advice in the rapidly developing science of genetically engineered plant pesticides. These materials show promise as being less toxic alternatives to synthetically produced chemical pesticides. In this context, FIFRA SAP works closely with the Agency's Biotechnology Science Advisory Committee. Their recommendations will be incorporated in the regulatory decisions affecting registration status.

Finally, FIFRA SAP has waived formal regulatory review of three separate issues, one of which was needed in very short turnaround time. In this manner FIFRA SAP provides the Agency with regulatory flexibility needed in the Office of Pesticide Programs to meet changing and challenging demands.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

GULF OF MEXICO PROGRAM POLICY REVIEW BOARD

- 1. <u>PURPOSE</u>. This is issued to renew the Gulf of Mexico Program Policy Review Board in accordance with the requirements of the Federal Advisory Committee Act, 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c). The Board was originally established on September 21, 1989.
- 2. <u>AUTHORITY</u>. It is determined that renewal of this Board is in the public interest in connection with the performance of the Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA's) duties and responsibilities under the Clean Water Act of 1981, as amended, (CWA) P.L. (97-117), 33 U.S.C. 466 <u>et. seq</u>.
- 3. OBJECTIVES AND SCOPE OF ACTIVITY. The objective of the Policy Review Board is to assess and oversee the implementation of coordinated plans to improve and protect the water quality and living resources of the Gulf of Mexico.
- 4. <u>DUTIES</u>. Responsibilities consistent with this charter include the following:
 - Provide an executive forum for discussing the coordination of Gulf of Mexico management plans and other related topics.
 - Evaluate whether Federal and Gulf States' plans are coordinated to the extent that their respective implementation will have the combined effect of managing and protecting the Gulf of Mexico.
 - Assess the progress the Gulf of Mexico Program is making in the implementation of combined plans to manage the Gulf and its resources.
 - Reach consensus on recommendations for the most appropriate use of Federal funds within the general guidelines established by Congress.
 - Report to the EPA Administrator on issues pertaining to implementation of Gulf of Mexico strategies.
- 5. <u>COMPOSITION</u>. The Board consists of approximately twenty-five (25) members, including two Co-Chairs representing the Gulf States and EPA. The EPA Co-Chair shall have the lead responsibility for managing the Board's activities. These members are the Executive Directors or Administrators of Federal or State Agencies with regulatory or management mandates in the Gulf of Mexico. It includes two private citizen

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

representatives who are the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Citizens Advisory Committee of the Gulf of Mexico Program. Ex officio members will also serve on the Policy Review Board. Ex officio members are defined as non-voting members of the Board who represent their agencies by virtue of their positions. The meetings shall be chaired by a Federal and a State Co-Chair. The State Co-Chair shall be elected by majority vote of the states. The Federal Co-Chair will be held by EPA. The State Co-Chair is to be chosen from among the five state representatives nominated by the member states' governors.

The Board seeks consensus on issues; however, if a vote is requested by the membership, each member shall have one vote.

The Policy Review Board will schedule at least two meetings annually. The Board is authorized to form subcommittees or subgroups to consider specific matters and report back to the Board. Most members will serve as representatives of non-federal interests.

- 6. <u>PROGRAM SUPPORT</u>. The Gulf of Mexico Program Office will provide the necessary staff and technical support to assist the Board and subgroups formed as part of the Gulf of Mexico Program. The Program has received a fiscal year 1993 allocation of approximately \$4.0 million. The estimated annual operating cost totals approximately \$150,000, which includes 0.60 workyears of staff support. All travel and per diem expenses except for the citizens will be covered by the participant's organization, indicative of their support for the Gulf of Mexico Program.
- 7. <u>DURATION</u>. The Policy Review Board will be needed on a continuing basis. This charter is hereby issued for a 2-year period and may be extended beyond that date if authorized in accordance with Section 14 of the Federal Advisory Committee Act.

<u>February 20, 1994</u> Agency Approval Date Robert M. Sussman
Deputy Administrator

March 7, 1994 GSA Consultation Date

March 31, 1994
Date Filed with Congress

GULF OF MEXICO PROGRAM POLICY REVIEW BOARD

FEDERAL CO-CHAIR

Mr. Robert Perciasepe Assistant Administrator for Water U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street, S.W. (1101) Washington, DC 20460

STATE CO-CHAIR

Mr. Leigh Pegues AL Dept. of Environmental Management Planning and Projects Branch 1751 Federal Drive Montgomery, AL 36130

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Dr. Douglas A. Lipka EPA/Gulf of Mexico Program Building 1103, Room 202 Stennis Space Center, MS 39529 (601) 688-3726

MEMBERS

Mr. John P. Burt U.S. Soil Conservation Service P.O. Box 2890 Washington, DC 20013

Captain J. W. Calhoun Chief, Marine Safety Division Eighth Coast Guard District 501 Magazine Street New Orleans, LA 70130-3396

Mr. Richard Blais (Alternate) Eighth Coast Guard District Hale Boggs Federal Bldg. 501 Magazine Street New Orleans, LA 70130-3396

Ms. Cornelia Carrier (CAC Vice-Chair) 6128 Benjamin Street New Orleans, LA 70118 Mr. George M. Cason (CAC Chairman) Rt. 1, Box 76 Eagle Lake, TX 77434

Captain Arthur Corsano
Chief of Naval Education & Training
CNET
250 Dallas Street
Pensacola, FL 32508-5220

Mr. George Dodson (ex officio) Air Force Environmental Office 77 Forsythe St., SW Suite 295 Atlanta, GA 30335-6801

Ms. Roxane R. Dow FL Dept. of Environmental Protection 3900 Commonwealth Blvd. Tallahassee, FL 32399-3000

GULF OF MEXICO PROGRAM POLICY REVIEW BOARD

Mr. Charles N. Ehler NOAA, NOS, N/ORCA SSMC4, RM 10409 1305 East West Highway Silver Spring, MD 20910

Dr. Andrew J. Kemmerer NOAA/National Marine Fisheries Service Southeast Region 9450 Koger Blvd. St. Petersburg, FL 33702

Mr. Daniel T. Furlong (Alternate) NOAA/NMFS Southeast Regional Office 9450 Koger Blvd. St. Petersburg, FL 33702

Mr. Gale Martin (ex officio)
MS Soil & Water Conservation Commission
P.O. Box 23005
Jackson, MS 39225-3005

Mr. Garry Mauro Texas General Land Office 1700 N. Congress Ave., Suite 835 Austin, TX 78701

Ms. Susan Reiff (Alternate)
Director of Environmental Policy
Governor's Office
P.O. Box 12428
Austin, TX 78711

Mr. James McIndoe (Alternate State Co-Chair) AL Dept. of Environemntal Management Planning and Projects Branch 1751 Federal Drive Montgomery, AL 36130 Dr. Merrill McPhearson U.S. Food and Drug Administration Fishery Research Branch P.O. Box 158 Dauphin Island, AL 36528

Mr. Kai D. Midboe LA Dept. of Env. Quality Office of the Secretary P.O. Box 82263 Baton Rouge, LA 70884-2263

Mr. Len Bahr (Alternate)
Office of the Governor of LA
P.O. Box 94004
Baton Rouge, LA 70804

Mr. Warren T. Olds U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service 1875 Century Blvd., Suite 200 Atlanta, GA 30345

Mr. James Palmer MS Dept. of Environmental Quality P.O. Box 20305 Jackson, MS 39209

Ms. Martha G. Prothro
(Alternate Federal Co-Chair)
Deputy Assistant Administrator
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
401 M Street, SW (4102)
Washington, DC 20460

Mr. Conrad Fjetland (Alternate)
U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service
P.O. Box 1306
Albuquerque, NM 87103

GULF OF MEXICO PROGRAM POLICY REVIEW BOARD

Mr. Jim Young (Alternate)
MS Dept. of Environmental Quality
P.O. Box 20305
Jackson, MS 39209

Mr. Charles H. Chisolm (Alternate) MS Dept. of Environmental Quality Bureau of Pollution Control P.O. Box 10385 Jackson, MS 39209-0385

Mr. William F. Taylor John C. Stennis Space Center NASA Stennis Space Center, MS 39529

Brig. Gen. Eugene S. Witherspoon U.S. Army Engineering Division Lower Mississippi Valley P.O. Box 80 Vicksburg, MS 39181-0080

Col. James P. King (Alternate)
Commander, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
Southwestern Division
1114 Commerce St.
Dallas, TX 75242-0216

Brig. General Roger Yankoupe (Alternate) U.S. Army Engineering Division S. Atlantic 77 Forsyth St., S.W., Room 313 Atlanta, GA 30335-6801

Dr. John Woeste (ex officio)
Florida Cooperative Extension Service
University of Florida
1038 McCarty Hall
Gainesville, FL 32611-0115

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The First Generation of the Action Agenda process was completed. This consensus process has brought focus to needed actions regarding the eight issues/challenges identified: public health, coastal erosion, nutrient enrichment, living aquatic resources, habitat degradation, marine debris, toxic substances, and freshwater inflow in the Gulf. A part of this process is the selection of ten action items annually from each of the eight Action Agenda and to obtain commitments and initiate implementation.

The Gulf of Mexico Symposium held in Tarpon Springs, in December 1992 brought together over 2000 people including scientists, environmental managers and regulators, industry and non-governmental organization representatives, educators, students, and international representatives from across the region.

The "Partnership for Action" was signed by the governors of all five Gulf states, representatives from eleven federal agencies, and the chair of the Citizens Advisory Committee. The agreement is the first time that these combined federal agencies, Gulf states, and the public have jointly pledged their best efforts to accomplish a common set of environmental challenges for the Gulf of Mexico.

As an outcome of a co-sponsored workshop in Corpus Christi, with the Gulf of Mexico Program, U.S. Coast Guard, and the World Bank to promote technical transfer regarding solid waste management in the prevention of marine debris, the Gulf of Mexico Program is working with the Organization of American States to develop a pilot program with the Eastern Caribbean Islands.

The President proclaimed 1993 the Year of the Gulf of Mexico. The Gulf Program managed the Gulf-wide communication and outreach efforts of the proclamation. Accomplishments included: greatly expanded public awareness and knowledge about the importance of the Gulf's finite resources; improved fostering of public/private partnerships for wise use of the Gulf's resources; and enhanced recognition of regional efforts to preserve the Gulf.

The Gulf of Mexico Program provided leverage funding to initiate 15 individual environmental protection or restoration projects around the Gulf.

The Gulf of Mexico Program Office is working with the leadership of the emerging Gulf of Mexico Business Council for Sustainable Development (GMBCSD). A supporting counterpart organization was established by Mexico's corporate leaders.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE

- 1. <u>AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE</u>. This charter renews the Local Government Advisory Committee, in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA), 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c). It is determined that establishment of this Committee is in the public interest and supports EPA in performing its duties and responsibilities under miscellaneous statutes and as a general means of complying with Executive Orders 12866, 12875, and 12862. The purpose of the Committee is to advise, consult with, and make recommendations to the Administrator of EPA on matters related to the implementation of Federal environmental requirements by local governments.
- 2. <u>SCOPE OF ACTIVITY</u>. The Committee will identify and make recommendations to improve the implementation of environmental programs by local governments. Such recommendations could include, for example, changes in the regulatory planning and development process to involve local governments more effectively; changes needed to allow flexibility to accommodate local needs without compromising environmental performance, accountability, or fairness; and ways EPA and states can help local governments strengthen their capacity to promote environmental quality. The Committee may recommend projects to help local governments deal with the challenge of financing environmental protection, identify ways to encourage innovation by local governments, and explore ways to speed dissemination of new environmental protection techniques and technologies among local governments.
- 3. <u>FUNCTIONS</u>. The Committee's function is to make recommendations concerning development, implementation and evaluation of projects designed to improve the implementation of environmental programs by local governments; analysis of the difficulties local governments experience implementing environmental regulations; and clarification of the environmental consequences of these difficulties.
- 4. <u>COMPOSITION</u>. The Committee will consist of approximately thirty-five (35) members appointed by the EPA Deputy Administrator, and may elect either to have a facilitator serve as Chair or elect the Chair from among the members. Members will represent the following segments of the population in appropriate mix and balance:

Local and State Officials
Public Interest Groups
Environmental Groups
Federal Executive and Congressional Agencies and Offices

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

Appropriate members shall be selected and appointed initially for a one year term and may be reappointed. The Committee is authorized to form subcommittees for any purpose consistent with this Charter. Such subcommittees shall report back to the full Committee and are subject to the requirements of FACA. Subcommittees have no authority to make decisions on behalf of the full Committee nor can they report directly to the Agency.

EPA may pay travel and per diem expenses when necessary and appropriate. The Committee's estimated annual operating cost is approximately \$140,000, which includes 0.4 work years of staff support.

- 5. <u>MEETINGS</u>. A full-time or permanent part-time officer or employee of the Agency will serve as a Designated Federal Officer (DFO) and will be present at all meetings. The DFO is authorized to adjourn any meeting whenever it is determined to be in the public interest to do so. Meetings shall be held as necessary, at the call of the Chairperson, with an agenda approved in advance by the DFO. Committee meetings will be called, announced, and held in accordance with the EPA Committee Management Manual. This manual contains the Agency's policies and procedures for implementing FACA. Among other things, FACA requires open meetings and an opportunity for interested persons to file written comments before or after meetings, or to make oral statements to the Committee as permitted by the Committee's guidelines to the extent that time permits.
- 6. <u>DURATION</u>. The Committee shall be needed on a continuing basis and may be renewed beyond this two year period, as authorized in accordance with Section 14 of the Federal Advisory Committee Act.

<u>December 10, 1993</u> Agency Approval Date Robert M. Sussman
Deputy Administrator

December 17, 1993
GSA Consultation Date

December 30, 1993

Date Filed with Congress

CHAIRPERSON

Mr. George Britton Deputy City Manager 251 West Washington Street Phoenix, AZ 85003-2299

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Denise A. Zabinski
Office of Regional Operations
State/Local Relations
401 M Street, SW (1502)
Washington, DC 20460
(202) 260-0419

MEMBERS

Mr. Ralph O. Bowers City Manager P.O. Box 1148 Jasper, FL 32052

Ms. Maxine Childress Brown City Council 30 Church Street City Hall, Room 310A Rochester, NY 14614

Mr. James D. Cole Genesee County Board of Commissioners 1101 Beach, Room 312 Flint, MI 48502

Mr. Edward N. Cyr Assistant Receiver for Administration and Finance Chelsea City Hall 500 Broadway Chelsea, MA 02150 Mr. Carl Flora
Deputy Commissioner
Maine Department
of Agriculture
State House Station 28
Augusta, ME 04333

Ms. Sara M. Fotopulos Chief Counsel Environmental Protection Commission Hillsborough County 1900 Ninth Avenue Tampa, FL 33605

Mr. Juan Garza City Manager Post Office Box 9277 Corpus Christi, TX 78469-9277

Mr. Michael Hightower Fulton County Board of Commissioners 141 Pryor Street, SW Atlanta, GA 30303

Honorable David Johnson Mayor 15320 Broadway Harvey, IL 60426

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Ms. Lillian Kawasaki General Manager Department of Environmental Affairs 200 North Spring Street Los Angeles, CA 90012

Mr. John M. Kenny
East Bay Regional Park District
2950 Peralta Oaks Court
P.O. Box 5381
Oakland, CA 94605-0381

Honorable Rueben Miller Mayor P.O. Box 14 Fairfield, ID 83327

Ms. Susan Mudd Wisconsin State Director Citizens for a Better Environment 1030 South Twenty-Sixth Street Milwaukee, WI 53204

Honorable Carol Murphy Former Morris County Freeholder State Assemblywoman, District 26 101 Gibralter Drive Morris Plains, NJ 07950

Mr. Sebastian O'Kelly Senate Committee on Governmental Affairs 340 Dirksen Senate Office Bldg. Washington, DC 20510

Mr. Michael J. Pompili Columbus Health Department 181 Washington Boulevard Columbus, OH 43215 Ms. Minerva Regalado-Flores San Antonio Water System 517 Mission Road San Antonio, TX 78210

Mr. Robert E. Roberts
Secretary
Department of Environment and
Natural Resources
P.O. Box 398
Pierre, SD 57501

Ms. Velma Smith
Director, Groundwater Protection
Project, Friends of the Earth
1025 Vermont Avenue, NW
Third Floor
Washington, DC 20005

Mr. Allan Stokes
Environmental Resources Division
Iowa Department of Natural Resources
Henry A. Wallace Building
900 East Grand
Des Moines, IA 50319

Ms. Amy Lou Roth Swann
Director, Public Services District Division
West Virginia Public Service
Commission
201 Brooke Street
Charleston, WV 25301

Honorable Rosemary Tierney Mayor 133 William Street New Bedford, MA 02740

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Ms. Elizabeth Treadway Director Department of Environmental Services Post Office Box 3136 Greensboro, NC 27402

Honorable William C. Westbrook, Jr. Mayor Jackson, WY 83001

Mr. Gregory Wetstone Subcommittee on Health and the Environment 512 House Annex 1 300 New Jersey Avenue, SE Washington, DC 20515

Ms. Joanne Zaumetzer P.O. Box 445 Wilmington, NY 12997

NOTE: Terms expire December 31, 1994

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The Committee conducted its first meeting on March 2 and 3, 1994. The Committee elected to form five subcommittees to address the issues listed below:

Focusing on Environmental Outcomes versus Process (Flexibility/accountability) Chair: William Westbrook

Improve State/Local Access to EPA Rulemaking Process (Involvement) Chair: James Cole and Amy Swann

Program for Communication and Structure and Increased Training (Clearinghouse for Information within Localities and EPA) Chair: Michael Hightower

State/Local Participation in EPA Strategic Plan Development

Chair: Elizabeth Treadway

Customer Service Standards and Survey. Chair: George Britton and Edward Cyr

The Subcommittees are making contacts within EPA, developing work plans, and gathering information in preparation for their next meeting.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

MANAGEMENT ADVISORY GROUP TO THE ASSISTANT ADMINISTRATOR FOR WATER

- 1. <u>PURPOSE</u>. This charter renews the Management Advisory Group (MAG) to the Assistant Administrator for Water for an additional two year period in accordance with the requirements of the Federal Advisory Committee Act, 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c).
- 2. <u>AUTHORITY</u>. The Management Advisory Group was established by the Administrator, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, on January 31, 1972, under Section 5 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, (Section 104 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Amendments of 1972 -- the Clean Water Act) and pursuant to the authority vested in the Administrator by Section 2(a) (1) of Reorganization Plan No. 3 of 1970 and Executive Order 11007: rechartered January 5, 1973, to include requirements of Section 9(c) of the Federal Advisory Committee Act; reconstituted April 24, 1973 to implement provisions (grant and contract review) of the FY 1973 Appropriation Act (PL 92-399); it was renewed January 7, 1975, January 4, 1977, December 1, 1977, November 17, 1978, November 13, 1980, November 29, 1982, November 28, 1984, September 26, 1986, November 18, 1988, November 6, 1990, November 6, 1992, and September 30, 1993. It is determined that this Advisory Group is in the public interest in connection with the performance of duties imposed upon the Agency by law.
- 3. <u>OBJECTIVE AND SCOPE OF ACTIVITY</u>. The Management Advisory Group is essential to the EPA mission under the Clean Water Act (CWA) in the management of water quality programs and activities. The Management Advisory Group provides an independent perspective on issues critical to EPA based on the extensive, diverse, and balanced experience of its members.
- 4. <u>FUNCTIONS</u>. The Management Advisory Group provides expert and independent advice to the Assistant Administrator for Water in the management of water pollution control programs under the above referenced Clean Water Act, as amended. It advises on technical and policy matters pertaining to proposed legislation, new procedures, techniques, and systems developed to enhance the ability of State and local Governments to deal more effectively with water pollution control problems; advises and comments on various regulations, policies, guidelines, and other program material prior to issuance; and provides communication with public agencies, academia, environmental and industry groups and other constituent groups. The Group advises on objectives of the various CWA programs, the feasibility and practicability of achieving those objectives, and the resolution of program issues as they arise or are anticipated.

- 5. <u>COMPOSITION</u>. The Management Advisory Group consists of approximately 20 members appointed by the Deputy Administrator, EPA, for a two-year term. Balanced membership shall consist of a cross-section of interested persons and groups with demonstrated professional or personal qualifications or experience that will enable them to provide advice and guidance to EPA regarding CWA water pollution control programs and related areas of interest. Members may not be represented by alternates. Most members will be appointed as representatives of non-Federal interests. The Group is authorized to form subcommittees or subgroups to consider specific matters and report back to full committee. Subgroups that do not function independently of the parent advisory committee are subject to all FACA requirements except separate chartering.
- Meetings of the MAG are held two to four times a year, to be MEETINGS. scheduled by the Designated Federal Officer in consultation with the MAG members. A full-time or permanent part-time Federal officer or employee of the Agency, who will serve as the Designated Federal Officer, will be present at all meetings and is authorized to adjourn any such meeting whenever it is determined to be in the public interest. The Group may not conduct any meetings in the absence of the DFO or his/her designee. Committee meetings will be called, announced, and held in accordance with the EPA Committee Management Manual. The Manual contains the Agency's policies and procedures for implementing FACA. Among other things, FACA requires open meetings, and an opportunity for interested persons to file comments before or after meetings, or to make statements as permitted by the Group's guidelines, to the extent that time permits. The estimated annual operating cost of the Management Advisory Group with meetings four times a year totals approximately \$70,000 which includes .35 work-year of administrative Federal staff support. The Communications and Information Management Staff provides the necessary administrative staff support for the Management Advisory Group.
- 7. <u>DURATION</u>. The Charter of the Management Advisory Group is hereby renewed for two years from the date it is filed with Congress. The Charter may be extended beyond that date if authorized in accordance with Section 14 of the Federal Advisory Committee Act.

February 28, 1994 Agency Approval Date Robert M. Sussmann Deputy Administrator

March 16, 1994
GSA Consultation Date

March 31, 1994
Date Filed with Congress

MANAGEMENT ADVISORY GROUP TO THE ASSISTANT ADMINISTRATOR FOR WATER

CHAIRPERSON

Mr. Gordon Garner
Executive Director
Louisville & Jefferson County
Metropolitan Sewer District
400 South Sixth Street
Louisville, KY 40202

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Ms. Deborah Ross Office of Water Room 1017 ET (4102) Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street, SW Washington, DC 20460 (202) 260-0173

MEMBERS

Mr. Robert Adler Senior Staff Attorney Director, Clean Water Project Natural Resources Defense Council 1350 New York Ave, N.W. Washington, DC 20005

Ms. Judith Ayres
Principal
The Environmental Group
One Sansome Street
Suite 3900
San Francisco, CA 94104

Ms. Barbara Bedford Professor Department of Natural Resources Cornell University 206B Fernow Hall Ithaca, NY 14853

Mr. David Courtemanch Evaluation & Lake Studies Maine Department of Environmental Protection Statehouse Station 17 Augusta, MA 04333 Ms. Margaret Davidson Executive Director South Carolina Sea Grant Consortium 287 Meeting Street Charleston, SC 29401

Mr. Bill Frank
Chairman, Northwest Indian
Fisheries Commission
6730 Martin Way East
Olympia, WA 98506

Dr. George Hallberg
Chief, Environmental Research
University of Iowa
Hygienic Laboratory
102 Oakdale Campus, #H101 OH
Iowa City, IA 52242-5002

Mr. Jerry Johnson Deputy City Manager City of Richmond 900 East Broad Street Room 201 Richmond, VA 23219

MANAGEMENT ADVISORY GROUP TO THE ASSISTANT ADMINISTRATOR FOR WATER

Ms. Margaret Perkins
Environmental & Hazardous
Materials Manager
Hewlett Packard Company
815 14th Street, SW
Loveland, CO 80537

Ms. Roberta (Robbi) Savage Executive Director ASIWPCA 750 First St., NE Suite 911 Washington, DC 20001

Ms. Susan Seacrest President Nebraska Groundwater Foundation 6540 Crooked Creek Drive Lincoln, NE 68516 Mr. Bill Tracy
Buttonwillow Farm
P.O. Box 505
Buttonwillow, CA 93206

Mr. Hector Villa III Texas Water Commission 7500 Viscount Suite 147 El Paso, TX 79925

Mr. Robert Wetherbee Rancher Route 1 Box 320 Fairmount, ND 58030

NOTE: Terms expire July 31, 1994

MANAGEMENT ADVISORY GROUP TO THE ASSISTANT ADMINISTRATOR FOR WATER

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

In the past fiscal year (FY 1993), the Management Advisory Group (MAG) met one time to finalize recommendations to the Assistant Administrator for the Office of Water (OW). The Combined Sewer Overflows and Nonpoint Source Pollution workgroups finalized their reports and submitted recommendations in December 1993 to the Administrator for the Environmental Protection Agency. Recommendations for Ecosystem Protection reached the draft stage but were not finalized.

- 1. <u>Combined Sewer Overflows (CSQ):</u> The MAG members concentrated their efforts on the development of recommendations to control pollution from combined sewer overflows. The recommended approach specifies the use of minimum technologies to reduce both human health and environmental risks and comply with water quality standards. The committee also recommended that EPA engage in negotiated dialogue with stakeholders. The Office of Wastewater Enforcement and Compliance, Office of Water, has used MAG's recommendations as the fundamental foundation for the CSO policy. EPA has, in fact, engaged in the negotiated dialogue and enjoys support from municipal and environmental groups who see the CSO policy, which includes MAG recommendations, as their product.
- 2. <u>Nonpoint Source Pollution:</u> MAG members recommended a framework for an EPA Nonpoint Sources (NPS) pollution prevention policy that advances water quality goals and allows cities and states to develop realistic NPS pollution policies and plans that can be implemented. The Office of Wetlands, Oceans and Watersheds, Office of Water, is using MAG's recommendations to help formulate an Agency policy on Nonpoint Sources. Issues include:
 - Committing adequate program resources which include linkage with other federal programs;
 - Implementing an aggressive outreach program, focusing on both problem awareness and viable solutions;
 - Developing a strategic plan from the national to state level involving stakeholders at all levels; incorporate pollution prevention and water quality mechanisms; define measurable objectives for program evaluation and problem definition; and
 - Continued development of policy, program, and monitoring tools.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

NATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND TECHNOLOGY

- 1. PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY. This Charter renews the National Advisory Council for Environmental Policy and Technology (NACEPT) which was originally established on July 7, 1988, for an additional two-year period in accordance with the requirements of the Federal Advisory Committee Act, 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c). The purpose of NACEPT is to provide advice and counsel to the Administrator of EPA on issues associated with environmental management and policy. It is determined that NACEPT is in the public interest in connection with the performance of duties imposed on the Agency by law.
- 2. <u>OBJECTIVES</u>. NACEPT provides independent advice and counsel to the Administrator on issues such as:
- developing approaches for reducing barriers to environmental technology development and transfer, institutionalizing public and private pollution prevention programs, ecosystems management and environmental sustainability and community empowerment;
- fostering improved global environmental management, and increasing the focus on environment in international trade and contributions to U.S. competitiveness;
- increasing communication and understanding among all levels of government, business, nongovernmental organizations and academia, with the goal of increasing nonfederal resources and improving the effectiveness of federal and non-federal resources directed at solving environmental economic problems;
- implementing statutes, executive orders and regulations previously enacted or which may be enacted in the future;
- reviewing progress in implementing statutes, executive orders and regulations;
 and
- assessing approaches for measuring the environmental benefits of technology transfer and alternative approaches to environmental protection.

- SCOPE OF THE ACTIVITY. NACEPT advises, consults with and makes recommendations on a continuing basis to the Administrator on issues associated with environmental management generally and on matters relating to activities, functions and policies under the Federal environmental statutes, executive orders, regulations, and policies affecting environmental management responsibilities of EPA. NACEPT conducts meetings, analyzes problems, presents findings, makes recommendations, and performs other activities as necessary for the attainment of its objectives. It advises the Administrator on ways to improve development and implementation of domestic and international environmental management policies, programs, and technologies. Ecosystems protection, NAFTA implementation and Information Resources Management Strategic Planning are some of the issues currently under review. NACEPT also provides external input to Assistant Administrators on selected program topics where appropriate. NACEPT, working with other EPA organizations, advises the Administrator on broad, cross-cutting environmental policy and technology issues and priorities.
- 4. <u>COMPOSITION</u>. NACEPT consists of a group of independent experts selected from among industry and business; academia, government agencies; international organizations; environmental groups, non-profit entities, and other non-governmental organizations. The group shall be of sufficient size and diversity to provide the range of perspective required to evaluate the issues to be addressed. Most members will be appointed as representatives of non-federal interests.

NACEPT will be organized in an Executive Committee and several specialized committees. Subgroups may be established on a temporary or standing basis as necessary to carry out NACEPT responsibilities. Such subgroups shall report back to the Executive Committee unless separately chartered. Subgroups that do not function independently of the Executive Committee are subject to all FACA requirements except separate chartering, unless exempt from such requirements under the GSA Rule 41 CFR section 101-6.1004(k).

The Deputy Administrator of the EPA appoints individuals to serve on the Executive and standing committees. Appointments will be established on a staggered basis for one, two, or three year terms and may be reappointed for terms not to exceed six years unless granted by the Deputy Administrator based on justification regarding why an appropriate replacement cannot be found. The Deputy Administrator or a designee will also appoint members of the Executive Committee to serve as Chair and Vice-Chair.

5. <u>MEETINGS</u>. The Executive Committee meets at least once each year, and subgroups meet as necessary. A full-time or permanent part-time salaried officer or employee of the Agency will act as the Designated Federal Officer who will be present at

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

all meetings and is authorized to adjourn any such meetings whenever the official determines it to be in the public interest. All committee meetings will be called, announced and held in accordance with the EPA Committee Management Manual. The Manual contains the Agency's policies and procedures for implementing FACA. Among other things, FACA requires open meetings, and an opportunity for interested pertons to file comments before or after meetings, or to make statements as permitted by NACEPT quidelines and to the extent time permits.

Each meeting shall be conducted in accordance with an agenda approved in advance by a Designated Federal Officer. Budgetary support for NACEPT is provided through the Office of Cooperative Environmental Management. This office serves as the executive secretariat to the NACEPT and performs staff support and related assignments for NACEPT. The estimated annual operating cost totals approximately \$1.9M, which includes 11 workyears of staff support.

6. <u>DURATION</u>. NACEPT shall be needed on a continuing basis and may be renewed as authorized in accordance with section 14 of the Federal Advisory Committee Act.

May 12, 1994 Agency Approval Date Robert M. Sussmann
Deputy Administrator

June 10, 1994 GSA Consultation Date

June 24, 1994

Date Filed with the Congress

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE NATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND TECHNOLOGY

CHAIRPERSON

Dr. John Sawhill (6/30/95) President and CEO Nature Conservancy 1815 N. Lynn Street Arlington, VA 22209

VICE-CHAIRPERSON

Vacant

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Mrs. Abby J. Pirnie
Director, Office of Cooperative
Environmental Management
401 M Street, SW (1601)
Washington, DC 20460
(202) 260-7567

MEMBERS

Dr. Darryl Banks (9/30/94)
Director
Program in Technology
and the Environment
World Resources Institute
Suite 700
1709 New York Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20006

Mr. George Britton (9/30/94)
Deputy City Manager
Water & Environmental Resources
Phoenix. AZ 85003

Mr. Thomas Davis (6/30/95)
Director
Safety & Engineering Affairs
AT&T
131 Morristown Road
Basking Ridge, NJ 07920

Mr. Terence Foecke (6/30/95)
President
Waste Reduction Institute
for Training and Applications
Research
1313 5th St., SE
Minneapolis, MN 55414-4502

Ms. Lillian Kawasaki (9/30/95) General Manager Dept. of Environmental Affairs City of Los Angeles 200 N. Spring Street Room 1500 (MS-177) Los Angeles, CA 90012

Mr. Wallace Perry (6/30/95)
Professor
American University
Law School
Room 215-A
440 Massachusetts Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20016

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE NATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND TECHNOLOGY

Mr. Bruce Piasecki (6/30/95) Professor Rennselaer Polytechnic Institute 110 8th Street Troy, NY 12180

Mr. Frank R. Pope (6/30/95) Vice President Technology Funding, Inc. 2000 Alameda de las Pulgas San Mateo, CA 99403

Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli (6/30/95) Chairman Dock Resins Corporation 1512 W. Elizabeth Ave. Linden, NJ 07036

ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION AND ASSESSMENTS COMMITTEE NATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND TECHNOLOGY

CHAIRPERSON

Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli (6/30/95) Chief Executive Officer Dock Resins Corporation 1512 W. Elizabeth Ave. Linden, NJ 07036

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Mr. Mark Joyce Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street, SW (1601) Washington, DC 20460 (202) 260-6839

MEMBERS

Mr. Terrence Foecke (6/30/95)
President
Waste Reduction Institute
for Training and Applications Research
1313 5th St., SE
Minneapolis, MN 55414-4502

Ms. Valerie Hudson (9/30/94)
Principle Assistant to the Commissioner
Kentucky Dept. of Environmental Protection
14 Reilly Road
Frankfort, KY 40601

Ms. Susan Wiltshire (9/30/94) League of Women Voters JK Research Associates 77 Fox Run Road South Hamilton, MA 01982

POLICY INTEGRATION COMMITTEE/LEAD SUBCOMMITTEE NATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND TECHNOLOGY

CHAIRPERSON

Dr. Ellen Silbergeld (94)
University of Maryland
School of Medicine
Howard Hall
660 West Redwood Street
Baltimore, MD 21201

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Mr. Robert Hardaker
Office of Cooperative
Environmental Management
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
401 M Street, SW (1601F)
Washington, D.C. 20460
(202) 260-2477

MEMBERS

Mr. Walter G. Farr (94)
Executive Director
National Center for
Lead Safe Housing
500 American City Building
Columbia, MD 21044

Dr. Edward Groth (94) Consumers Union 101 Truman Avenue Yonkers, NY 10703

Dr. Doug Hodgkins (94)
Senior Administrator
Occupational Safety and Health
North American Operations
General Motors Corporation
3044 West Grand Blvd.
Detroit, MI 48202

Ms. Lillian Kawasaki (95) General Manager Dept. of Environmental Affairs City of Los Angeles 200 N. Spring Street Room 1500 (MS-177) Los Angeles, CA 90012 Dr. Marta Kent (94) Meridian Research 1010 Wayne Ave., Suite 1220 Silver Spring, MD 20910

Dr. Philip Landrigen, Chair (94)
Dept. of Community Medicine
Mt. Sinai Medical School
10 East 102nd Street
New York, NY 10029

Dr. Andrew McBride (94)
Director
Stamford Health Department
888 Washington Blvd, 8th Floor
Stamford, CT 06904

Dr. Joel Schwartz (94) U.S. EPA 401 M Street, SW Washington, DC 20460

Mr. Daniel Vornberg (94) Environmental Manager The Doe Run Corporation 881 Main Street Herculaneum, MO 63048

POLICY INTEGRATION PROJECT, LEAD SUBCOMMITTEE NATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND TECHNOLOGY

Mr. William E. Wecker (94) William E. Wecker Associates 505 San Marin Drive Novato, CA 94945

Mr. David Williams, Commissioner (94) Ill State Commerce Commission 100 Randolph St., Suite 9-100 Chicago, IL 60601

Ms. Marcia Williams (94) Williams and Varino, Inc. 11999 San Vincente Blvd., Suite 325 Los Angeles, CA 90049

NOTE: Terms expire on September 30 of the year indicated by member's names

STATE AND LOCAL ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE NATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND TECHNOLOGY

CHAIRPERSON

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Vacant

Mr. Joseph Sierra Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street, SW (1601) Washington, DC 20460 (202) 260-6839

VICE-CHAIRPERSON

Mr. George Britton (94) Deputy City Manager Water & Environmental Resources Phoenix, AZ 85003

MEMBERS

Mr. Terence Foecke (95)
President
Waste Reduction linstitute
Minneapolis, MN 55414-4052

Ms. Lillian Kawasaki (95) General Manager Department of Environmental Affairs 200 N. Main Street Los Angeles, CA 90012

NOTE: Terms expire on September 30 of the year indicated by member's name

SUPERFUND EVALUATION SUBCOMMITTEE NATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND TECHNOLOGY

CHAIRPERSON

Dr. John Sawhill (6/95) President and CEO Nature Conservancy 1815 N. Lynn Street Arlington, VA 22209

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Mrs. Abby J. Pirnie
Director, Office of Cooperative
Environmental Management
Environmental Protection Agency
401 M Street, SW (1601)
Washington, DC 20460
(202) 260-7567

MEMBERS

Ms. Sue Briggum
Director of Legal Issues
WMX Technology and Services
1155 Connecticut Avenue, NW
Suite 800
Washington, DC 20036

Mr. Dennis Eckart Attorney-at-Law Winston & Strawn 1400 L Street, NW Washington, DC 20005

Mr. Jim Ford
Senior Director of Federal
Government Relations
ARCO
1333 New Hampshire Avenue, NW
Suite 1001
Washington, DC 20036

Dr. Michael Gelobter
Director, Environmental
Policy Studies
School of International
and Public Affairs
Columbia University
New York, NY 10027

Ms. Linda Greer Senior Scientist Public Health Program NRDC 1350 New York Avenue, NW Suite 30 Washington, DC 20005-4709

Ms. Jacqueline Hernandez-Beradini Director Multi-Media Focal Group Colorado Department of Health 4300 Cherry Creek Drive South Denver, CO 80222-1530

Mr. Gerald (Jerry) Isom President CIGNA Property & Casualty Companies 1601 Chestnut Street Philadelphia, PA 19192

Ms. Hazel Johnson Executive Director People for Community Recovery 13116 S. Ellis Street Chicago, IL 60627

SUPERFUND EVALUATION SUBCOMMITTEE NATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND TECHNOLOGY

Mr. Charles Lee
Associate Director
United Church of Christ
Commission for Racial Justice
475 Riverside Drive
Suite 1950
New York, NY 10115

Mr. Gerald Lucas First Selectman Town of Killingworth 323 Route 81 Killingworth, CT 06419-1298

Mr. Dennis R. Minano
Vice President
Energy & Environment
General Motors Corporation
12-163 GM Building
3044 W. Grand Boulevard
Detroit, MI 48202

Ms. Nancy Newkirk Vice President General Counsel, Clean Sites 1199 North Fairfax Street Suite 400 Alexandria, VA 22314

Mr. Lee Paddock Assistant Attorney General State Capitol St. Paul, MN 55155

Ms. Shelly Padnos Executive Vice President Padnos Iron and Metal 601 Letellier Street, SW Grand Rapids, MI 49504 Mr. Michael Pierle Vice President Environment, Safety and Health Monsanto Company Building A3NA 800 N. Lindberg Blvd. St. Louis, MO 63167

Ms. Ann Powers
Vice President
General Counsel
162 Prince George Street
Annapolis, MD 21401

Ms. Kate Probst Fellow Resources for the Future 1616 P Street, NW Washington, DC 20036

Mr. Steve Ramsey
Vice President
Corporate Environment Programs
General Electric
3135 Easton Turnpike
Fairfield, CT 06431

Mr. William (Bill) Roberts Legislative Director Environmental Defense Fund 1875 Connecticut Avenue, NW Suite 1916 Washington, DC 20009

Mr. Jon Sesso Director Butte-Silver Bow Planning Butte-Silver Bow Court House 155 West Granite Butte, MO 59701

SUPERFUND EVALUATION SUBCOMMITTEE NATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND TECHNOLOGY

Mr. Michael Soots
Facility Engineer
Kincaid Furniture Company, Inc.
P.O. Box 605
Hudson, NC 28638

Mr. Fred Thiele, Jr.
Town Supervisor
Town of Southhampton
116 Hampton Road
Southhampton, NY 11968

Mr. Steven Thorne Goodard Professor Forestry and Environmental Resources Conservation Pennsylvania State University 101 Ferguson Building University Park, PA 16802-4300

Ms. Patricia Williams Legislative Representative National Wildlife 1400 Federation 1400 16th Street, NW Washington, DC 20036

TECHNOLOGY INNOVATION AND ECONOMICS COMMITTEE NATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND TECHNOLOGY

CHAIRPERSON

Dr. R. Darryl Banks (94)
Director
Program in Technology
and the Environment
World Resources Institute
Suite 700
1709 New York Ave., N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Mr. Mark Joyce Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street, SW (1601) Washington, DC 20460 (202) 260-6839

MEMBERS

Mr. Paul Arbesman (94)
Vice President
Health, Safety and
Environmental Services
Allied Signal Aerospace
2525 West 190 Street
Torrence, CA 90504-6099

Mr. David Bodde (94) Vice President Midwest Research Institute Ventures 425 Volker Blvd. Kansas City, MO 64110

Dr. Pamela Bridgen (94) Vice President ICF/Kaiser International 11808 Northrup Way Suite 104 Bellevue, WA 98005

Mr. Richard Conway (94) Senior Corporate Fellow Union Carbide Corporation P.O. Box 3200 Kanawha Turnpike South Charleston, WV 25303 Mr. Thomas Devine (94) Corporate Vice President Regulatory Affairs RMT, Inc. 100 Verdae Blvd. Greenville, SC 29607

Dr. John W. Liskowitz (94)
Executive Director
Hazardous Waste Institute
New Jersey Institute of Technology
323 Martin Luther King Blvd.
Newark, NJ 07102

Mr. LeRoy Paddock (94) Assistant Attorney General State of Minnesota 102 State Capitol St. Paul, MN 55155

Ms. Nancy Pfund (94) Hambrecht & Quist Venture Partners 50 Rowes Wharf Boston, MA 02110

TECHNOLOGY INNOVATION AND ECONOMICS COMMITTEE NATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND TECHNOLOGY

Dr. Bruce Piasecki (95) Professor Rennselaer Polytechnic Institute 110 8th St. Troy, NY 12180

Mr. Frank Pope (95) General Partner Technology Funding, Inc. 2000 Alameda de las Pulgas San Mateo, CA 94403

Mr. Martin E. Rivers (95)
Executive Vice President
Air and Waste Management Association
Three Gateway Center, Four West
Pittsburgh, PA 15222

Dr. Manik "Nikki" Roy (94) Environmental Defense Fund 1875 Connecticut Ave., NW 10th Floor Washington, DC 20009

Mr. Dag Syrrist (94) Technology Funding, Inc. 2000 Alameda de las Pulgas San Mateo, CA 94403

NOTE: Terms expire on September 30 of the year indicated by member's name

TRADE AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE NATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND TECHNOLOGY

CHAIRPERSON

Mr. Samuel A. Schulhof (94)
Director, Environmental
Research Center
General Electric Corporation
and Development
P.O. Box 8
Schenectady, NY 12301

VICE-CHAIR

Mr. Jonathan Plaut (94)
Director, Worldwide
Environmental Programs
Allied Signal, Inc.
P.O. Box 1013
Morristown, NJ 07962

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Mr. Robert Hardaker
Office of Cooperative Environmental
Management (1601F)
Environmental Protection Agency
401 M Street, SW
Washington, DC 20460
(202) 260-2477

MEMBERS

Dr. Michael Aho (94)
Director of Economic Studies
Director of International
Trade Project
Council on Foreign Relations
58 East 68th Street
New York, NY 10021

Mr. Henry G. Cisneros (94) Cisneros Communications 204 North Presa Suite B-200 San Antonio, TX 78205 Mr. Douglas D. Danforth (94)
Retired Chairman/CEO
Westinghouse Electric Corporation
Pittsburgh Pirates Baseball Club
Westinghouse Building
Gateway Center
Pittsburgh, PA 15222

Dr. Sylvia Alice Earle (96) Chief Scientist, NOAA 14th and Constitution Avenue, NW Room 5809 Washington, DC 20230

TRADE AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE NATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND TECHNOLOGY

Dr. Albert Fishlow (96)
Dean of International
and Area Studies
University of California
206 Stephens Hall
Berkeley, CA 94720

Mr. Frank Friedman (94)
Vice President
Health, Environment and Safety
Occidental Petroleum Corporation
10889 Wilshire Boulevard
Suite 1500
Los Angeles, CA 90024

Mr. R. Michael Gadbaw (94)
Vice Pesident and Senior Counsel
General Electric Company
International Law and Policy
Suite 700S
1331 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20004

Mr. Ira H. Goldman (95)
Special Assistant to the Governor and Governor's Trade Representative Office of Governor Pete Wilson Sacramento, CA 95814

Ambassador Joseph Greenwald (96) 1616 H Street. NW Suite 400 Washington, DC 20006

Mr. Scott Hajost (94)
Environmental Defense Fund
1875 Connecticut Avenue, NW
Suite 1016
Washington, DC 20009

Mr. Stewart J. Hudson (96) Legislative Representative International Affairs Department National Willdlife Federation 1400 16th Street, NW Washington, DC 20036

Mr. Kent Hughes (94)
President
Council on Competitiveness
Suite 1050
900 17th Street, NW
Washington, DC 20006

Dr. William B. Kelly, Jr. (94) 5442 31st Street, NW Washington, DC 20015-1346

Mr. Neil King (94) Wilmer Cutler & Pickering 2445 M Street, NW Washington, DC 20037-1420

Mr. Jeffrey M. Lang (94)
Winthrop, Stimson, Putnam,
and Roberts
1133 Connecticut Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20036

Ms. Sandra Masur (94)
Director of Public Policy Analysis
Eastman Kodak Company
Suite 1050
1776 Eye Street, NW
Washington, DC 20006

TRADE AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE NATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND TECHNOLOGY

Mrs. Jessica Tuchman Matthews (94) World Resources Institute 1709 New York Avenue, NW Washington, DC 20006

Mr. Scott McCallum (94) Lt. Governor of Wisconsin Room 22E, State Capitol Madison, WI 53702

Mr. J. Michael McCloskey (96) Chairman, Sierra Club 408 C Street, NE Washington, DC 20002

Dr. Ambler Moss (94)
Dean, Graduate School
of Internaional Studies
University of Miami
1531 Brescia Avenue
Coral Gables, FL 33146

Mr. Gardiner Patterson (94) 1517 Vermont Avenue, NW Washington, DC 20005

Dr. Susan Kaufman Purcell (95) Vice-President for Latin American Affairs Americas Society 680 Park Avenue New York, NY 10021

Dr. Robert Repetto (94) World Resources Institute 1709 New York Ave., NW Washington, DC 20006 Mr. Martyn J. Riddle (94)
Senior Environmental Advisor
International Finance Corporation (IFC)
I-10145
1818 H Street, NW
Washington, DC 20433

Mr. Alexander B. Trowbridge (94) President, Trowbridge Partners 1155 Connecticut Avenue, NW Suite 800 Washington, DC 20036

Mr. William Cochrane Turner (94) Chairman, Argyle Atlantic Corporation 4350 East Camelback Road Suite 240B Phoenix, AZ 88501

Dr. Konrad von Moltke (96)
President, Bioprime Ltd.
P.O. Box 716 Harriet Partridge House
Main Street
Norway, VT 05055

Professor Perry Wallace (94)
American University
Room 215-A
440 Massachusetts Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20016

NOTE: Terms expire on September 30 of the year indicated by member's name

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The National Advisory Council for Environmental Policy and Technology's committees met 25 times during 1993 to develop advice and recommendations on a number of issues highlighted below. A summary report of NACEPT's recommendations was published in March 1993. Among the most notable was the Superfund Evaluation Committee's efforts. The Administrator has been highly receptive to the Committees' deliberations and subsequent proposals and recommendations and believes that their contributions will be reflected in the Superfund reauthorization in 1994.

The Superfund Evaluation Committee (SEC), established in 1993, was created to ensure that EPA is informed of the views and concerns of key stakeholder groups and to assist the Agency in formulating its position on changes relating to Superfund reauthorization. The objectives of the SEC are to: 1) review the current performance of the Superfund program; 2) examine the concerns of affected constituencies; 3) identify possible administrative and legislative improvements; and 4) develop a creative proposal for change that helps foster improvement in state and local capacities.

The SEC members, selected by the Administrator, broadly represented the affected constituencies. The SEC met seven times between June and November 1993. Commitment to public participation was a very important part of the process. This commitment was demonstrated in a SEC meeting held in Raleigh, NC where video broadcast to all ten EPA Regions allowed local citizens an opportunity to present proposals for Superfund reform. The SEC addressed the following topics: remedy selection, liability scheme, role of the States, municipal liability and environmental justice, public participation, economic redevelopment and voluntary cleanups. A proposal was developed and presented to the Deputy Administrator in November for the topic areas.

The Trade and Environment Committee's (TEC) mandate is to provide guidance to EPA in formulating the Agency's policy on trade and environment, as well as in EPA's participation in the development of U.S. Government policy on trade and environment.

In the Spring of 1993, the (TEC) published its report, "The Greening of World Trade," which summarized its recommendations to EPA and the papers that were developed as a part of the advisory committee process. The Government Printing Office has sold over 500 copies of and recently reprinted the 240-page publication. Over 2500 copies have been distributed in total.

The TEC's recommendations recognize that the two policy spheres of trade and environment are not necessarily in conflict. Reconciling trade and environment policies, while inherently difficult, offers the opportunity for a transition from degradative to restorative commerce and the inclusion of environmental costs and benefits into calculations that determine comparative advantage in the international division of labor. The TEC's recommendations reflect the understanding that trade and environment policies can and should be mutually reinforcing and sustainable. 1993 was also the beginning of work on competitiveness, trade and environment, with particular focus on Section 811 of the Clean Air Act, which requires the President to report to Congress on the competitiveness effects of the Clean Air Act on U.S. business and industry. This aspect of TEC's work will continue in 1994.

The Technology Innovation and Economics Committee (TIE) provides advice and recommendations to EPA on actions that the Agency can take to speed the development, commercialization, and use of environmentally beneficial technologies. TIE has concentrated on identifying regulatory and non-regulatory barriers to the development and diffusion in the marketplace of these environmentally beneficial technologies. Its most recent report to the Administrator examined EPA's permitting and compliance policies, and recommended changes to the Agency relating to programs that promote pollution prevention, technological innovation, and economic productivity.

One TIE report included recommendations to the Agency on improving the effluent guidelines program to encourage pollution prevention. The TIE is also providing advice to the Agency on the development of EPA's Innovative Technology Strategy and on the workplans for the President's Environmental Technology Initiative.

The Environmental Information and Assessment Committee (EIA) was established to examine policy alternatives related to measuring and tracking change in the environment. EIA has provided recommendations on chemical accident prevention, environmental statistics, Toxics Release Inventory issues, the Pollution Prevention Information Clearinghouse, regulations for radiation site cleanup standards, and issues associated with the Waste Isolation Pilot Plant. EIA has also initiated a major project to advise the Agency on developing and implementing an information resources management strategic plan.

The Pollution Prevention Education Committee (PPEC) recommended in prior reports that the Administrator provide a forum where unaddressed needs and concerns of State and local governments could be aired and considered. Additionally, PPEC recommended that the Agency clarify roles and responsibilities within and outside

of the Agency, on improving delivery of information to state and local governments. These recommendations, as well as others submitted by the PPEC underscored the need for the Agency to assume a leadership role in the environmental education field, and were instrumental in EPA's creation of the Office of Environmental Education. As a result, responsibility for addressing pollution prevention education issues were transferred to the Office of Environmental Education, the PPEC membership, as well as NACEPT, considered its work completed. PPEC was terminated in 1993.

The State and Local Environment Committee (SLEC) developed findings and recommendations included in a report published by EPA titled, Building State and Local Pollution Prevention Programs (EPA 130-R-93-001 December 1992). Key findings of this report focus on the increasing value of pollution prevention as a basic strategic approach to achieving environmental and economic health, as well as the critical role of the private sector in voluntary reduction of pollution sources. The SLEC underscored the need for EPA to take advantage of opportunities at the state and local levels for fostering the development of pollution prevention partnerships. SLEC recommendations address the need for EPA to: provide leadership and build broader support for pollution prevention; integrate pollution prevention into mainstream environmental programs; modify management accountability and funding systems to support prevention efforts; improve technical capacity and the infrastructure for information exchange about pollution prevention; clarify the appropriate roles for federal, state, and local governments in fostering pollution prevention; and expand the role of pollution prevention in meeting the environmental goals of the wastewater pretreatment program. The findings and recommendations were provided to EPA's Administrator, the Pollution Prevention Policy Staff, and all major EPA media programs.

The Lead Subcommittee operates under NACEPT's Policy Integration Committee (PIC) in cooperation with the Office of Policy, Planning and Evaluation. The Lead Subcommittee's charge is to advise EPA on integrating policies of differing Federal agencies that have responsibility for reducing lead exposure, to improve EPA coordination of its lead reduction activities, and to improve management of lead reduction activities government-wide. The Lead Subcommittee met four times during 1993. A final meeting and report submission is planned for 1994.

The Lead Subcommittee expects to provide specific recommendations relating to state and local government and small business assistance needs; expanded lead-based paint abatement in public buildings; architectural waste management; and reporting and approval requirements for new uses of lead.

The Subcommittee (composed of representatives from academia, government, industry, nongovernmental organizations, medicine and law) focused its efforts on 12 areas: 1) EPA guidance and information programs to reduce exposure to lead in drinking water; 2) state and local abatement program and funding needs; 3) mechanisms for ensuring that changes in lead use do not add to existing risks of exposure in the workplace and generally; 4) options and processes for managing lead contaminated waste streams; 5) potential use of standardized data collection and reporting systems for lead test results; 6) policy implications of extending lead paint hazard control requirements to schools, day care operations, shelters and other public buildings; 7) need for changes in national ambient air quality standards for lead; 8) research and development needs and opportunities for increased government/industry research cooperation; 9) policy implications of reducing statutory blood lead level exposure standards; 10) opportunities for increased use of training and certification programs for lead based paint abatement personnel; 11) opportunities for increased outreach and assistance to lead using sectors that have a significant small business segment; and 12) international issues, such as transboundary migration of emissions, waste management and recycling of batteries. labelling, prohibition on use of leaded gasoline.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

NATIONAL AIR POLLUTION CONTROL TECHNIQUES ADVISORY COMMITTEE

- 1. <u>PURPOSE</u>. This Charter is reissued to renew the National Air Pollution Control Techniques Advisory Committee for an additional 2-year period in accordance with the requirements of the Federal Advisory Committee Act, 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c).
- 2. AUTHORITY. The Committee was established by the Surgeon General, U. S. Public Health Service, Department of Health, Education, and Welfare, on March 4, 1968. under Section 110(d) of the Clean Air Act, as amended; reestablished by the Administrator, Consumer Protection and Environmental Health Service, pursuant to the Secretary's Reorganization Order of July 1, 1968; transferred to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency pursuant to Reorganization Plan No. 3, December 2, 1970; reconstituted by the Administrator, EPA, on June 8, 1971, pursuant to Sections 108(b)(1) and (2), and 117(f) of the Clean Air Act, as amended; rechartered January 5, 1973, to include requirements of Section 9(c) of the Federal Advisory Committee Act, P.L. 92-463: reconstituted April 24, 1973, to assign an additional function to the Committee (Section 103(a) of the Clean Air Act, as amended) and to implement provisions (grant and contract review) of the FY 1973 Appropriation Act (P.L. 92-399); and renewed January 7, 1975. December 8, 1976, November 30, 1978, November 13, 1980, December 29, 1982, November 28, 1984, November 26, 1986, November 18, 1988, and November 1, 1990. It is determined that this Committee is in the public interest in connection with the performance of duties imposed upon the Agency by law.
- 3. OBJECTIVE AND SCOPE OF ACTIVITY. The Committee, as an ongoing advisory group, provides independent views based upon specialized knowledge and skills unavailable in the Environmental Protection Agency. This advice will be necessary as long as control techniques documents for air pollutants and information documents are published in regard to standard-setting procedures subject to the Clean Air Act, as amended.
- 4. <u>FUNCTIONS</u>. The Committee will advise the Director, Office of Air Quality Planning and Standards, on the latest available technology and economic feasibility of alternative methods to prevent and control air contamination to be published in air quality control techniques documents. It also advises on information documents regarding air pollution control techniques and testing and monitoring methodology for categories of new sources and air pollutants subject to the provisions of Sections 111 and 112 of the Clean Air Act, as amended. In addition, the Committee, through a subcommittee, will periodically review Air Quality Planning and Standards program accomplishment plans and the associated contracts and grants awarded to carry out these plans.

- COMPOSITION AND MEETINGS. The Committee consists of the Director, Office 5. of Air Quality Planning and Standards, or his designee, as Chairperson and 11 members appointed by the Deputy Administrator, EPA, for overlapping terms of from 1 to 4 years. Members are selected from the chemical, engineering, biomedical, and socioeconomic disciplines resident in universities, State and local governments, research institutions, and industry. Members are also selected for their technical expertise and/or interest in the development of air pollution control techniques. Most members will be appointed as Special Government Employees. The Committee is authorized to form subcommittees from time to time to consider specific matters and report back to the Committee. Meetings are generally held two times a year, or as necessary, as called by the Chairperson. A full-time salaried officer or employee of the Agency will serve as the Designated Federal Officer who will be present at all meetings and is authorized to adjourn any meeting whenever it is determined to be in the public interest. The estimated annual operating cost of the Committee totals \$55,000, which includes 0.5 work-years of staff support. The Office of Air and Radiation provides the necessary support for the Committee.
- 6. <u>DURATION</u>. The National Air Pollution Control Techniques Advisory Committee is hereby renewed for 2 years and may be extended beyond that date if authorized in accordance with Section 14 of the Federal Advisory Committee Act.

September 21, 1992 Agency Approval Date F. Henry Habicht II
Deputy Administrator

October 1, 1992 OMB/GSA Review Date

November 2, 1992 Congressional Filing Date

CHAIRPERSON AND DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Mr. Bruce C. Jordan
Director, Emission Standards Division (MD-13)
Office of Air Quality Planning and Standards
U. S. Environmental Protection Agency
Research Triangle Park, North Carolina 27711
(919) 541-5572

MEMBERS

Mr. Paul H. Arbesman (95)
Director, Pollution Control
Allied-Signal, Inc.
Columbia Road and Park Avenue
Morristown, NJ 07962

Mr. Charles A. Collins (95)
Administrator, Air Quality Division
Wyoming Department of Environmental
Quality
122 West 25th Street
Cheyenne, WY 82002

Mr. William J. Dennison (95) Dennison and Associates 17100 Gillette Avenue Irvine, CA 92714

Mr. David Driesen (95) Attorney, Air and Energy Project Natural Resources Defense Council 1350 New York Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20005

Mr. Ralph E. Hise (95)
President
Advanced Technologies
Management, Inc.
2964 Falmouth Road
Cleveland, OH 44122

Mr. Thomas J. McCabe, Jr. (95)
Manager, Corporate Environmental
Management Office
Northrop Corporation
One Northrop Avenue
Hawthorne, CA 90250-3277

Mr. William O'Sullivan (95)
Administrator
Air Quality Regulation Program
N.J. Department of Environmental
Protection and Energy
401 East State Street, CN027
Trenton, NJ 08625

Mr. John A. Paul (95) Supervisor Regional Air Pollution Control Agency 451 West Third Street Post Office Box 972 Dayton, OH 45422

Dr. John E. Pinkerton (95)
Program Director, Air Quality
National Council of the Paper Industry
for Air and Stream Improvement, Inc.
260 Madison Avenue
New York, NY 10016

NATIONAL AIR POLLUTION CONTROL TECHNIQUES ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Ms. Naomi R. Suss (95) Marketing and Sales PPG Industries, Inc. Post Office Box 3510 Troy, Mich. 48007-3510

Mr. Brian L. Taranto (94)
Senior Environmental Conservation
Associate
Exxon Chemical Americas
13501 Katy Freeway
Houston, TX 77079

NOTE: Terms expire on June 30 of the year indicated by member's name

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The National Air Pollution Control Techniques Advisory Committee (NAPCTAC) meets periodically to assess progress in the development of new source performance standards (NSPS) for stationary sources and national emission standards for hazardous air pollutants (NESHAP). The Committee also reviews the development and publication of control techniques documents for specific pollutants and control technique guidelines (CTG) for selected industries.

At its November 17-19, 1992 meeting, the Committee was provided a status report on several Title III projects which included: source category schedule, early reductions, general provisions, modifications under section 112(g), State program guidance under section 112(l), municipal waste combustion regulations, and source category deletion petition process. The Committee was also updated on the maximum available control technology (MACT) standards for several source categories, including: hazardous organic NESHAP (HON), dry cleaning, coke ovens, pulp & paper, secondary lead, gasoline distribution (Stage I), halogenated solvent cleaning-degreasing, polymers and resins, and magnetic tape. Finally, the Committee was provided an overview of the CTG program under Title I and specifically provided a status report on the solvent cleanup CTG.

In each of the above sessions, members of the Committee were polled for their guidance and advice after listening to the EPA presentations as well as presentations from interested participants from the audience. Minutes of the meetings are maintained as official records of the advice provided to EPA by the Committee. The NAPCTAC consists of 11 members with diverse backgrounds. It serves EPA and the public by providing a forum for the expression of different viewpoints and exchange of ideas of the regulatory issues brought before the Committee for evaluation and comment. During the period covered by this report, the NAPCTAC received comments from representatives of EPA, industry, environmental interest groups, government organizations, trade associations, and control equipment manufacturers.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

NATIONAL DRINKING WATER ADVISORY COUNCIL

- 1. <u>PURPOSE</u>. This Charter is reissued for the National Drinking Water Advisory Council in Accordance with the requirements of the Federal Advisory Committee Act, 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c).
- 2. <u>AUTHORITY</u>. The Council was created on December 16, 1974, under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, P.L. 93-523, 42 U.S.C. 300j-5 and the charter was renewed on December 23, 1976; December 1, 1978; November 7, 1980; November 29, 1982; December 7, 1984; December 15, 1986; November 22, 1988 and December 13, 1990.
- 3. <u>OBJECTIVE AND SCOPE OF ACTIVITY</u>. The Council advises, consults with, and makes recommendations on a continuing basis to the Administrator, through the Assistant Administrator for Water, on matters related to activities, functions, and policies of the Agency under the Safe Drinking Water Act.
- 4. <u>FUNCTIONS</u>. The Council provides practical and independent advice to the Agency on matters and policies relating to drinking water quality and hygiene, and maintains an awareness of developing issues and problems in the drinking water area. It reviews and advises the Administrator on regulations and guidelines that are required by the Safe Drinking Water Act; makes recommendations concerning necessary special studies and research; recommends policies with respect to the promulgation of drinking water standards; assists in identifying emerging environmental or health problems related to potentially hazardous constituents in drinking water; and proposes actions to encourage cooperation and communication between the Agency and other governmental agencies, interested groups, the general public, and technical associations and organizations on drinking water quality.
- 5. <u>COMPOSITION AND MEETINGS</u>. The Council consists of fifteen members including a Chairperson, appointed by the Deputy Administrator after consultation with the Secretary, Department of Health and Human Services. Five members shall be appointed from the general public, five members shall be appointed from appropriate State and local agencies concerned with water hygiene and public water supply; and five members shall be appointed from representatives of private organizations or groups demonstrating an active interest in the field of water hygiene and public water supply. Most members will be appointed as Special Government Employees. Except as provided in Section 1446 of the Safe Drinking Water Act, each member of the Council will hold office for a term of three years and will be eligible for reappointment. The Council is authorized to form subcommittees to consider specific matters and report back to the full Council.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

Meetings will be held as necessary and convened by the Assistant Administrator for Water. A full-time salaried officer or employee of EPA will be assigned as the Designated Federal Officer. Each meeting will be conducted in accordance with an agenda approved in advance of the meeting by the Designated Federal Officer. The Designated Federal Officer will be present at all meetings and is authorized to adjourn any meeting whenever it is determined to be in the public interest. The estimated annual operating cost of the Council is approximately \$75,000, which includes .40 work year of staff support. The Office of Water will provide the necessary staff and support for the Council.

6. <u>DURATION</u>. As provided in the Safe Drinking Water Act, "Section 14(a) of the Federal Advisory Committee Act (relating to termination) shall not apply to the Council." However, the Charter is subject to the renewal process upon the expiration of each successive two-year period following the date of enactment of the Act establishing this Council.

November 19, 1992 Agency Approval Date

F. Henry Habicht II
Deputy Administrator

December 16, 1992

Date Filed with Congress

CHAIRPERSON

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Vacant

Ms. Charlene Shaw
Environmental Protection Agency
Office of Ground Water &
Drinking Water (4601)
401 M Street, SW
Washington, DC 20460
(202) 260-2285

MEMBERS

Mr. Maurice L. Arel (95)
President & Chief Executive
Officer
Pennichuck Water Works Inc.
4 Water Street
Nashua, NH 03061

Ms. Beck Cain (95)
President
National League of Women Voters
2313 South Walnut Drive
St. Albans, WV 25177

Ms. Marilyn Hotch (94) Attorney Pinetree Legal Assistance Inc. HC 43, Box 41C Owls Head. MA 04854

Mr. Frederick Marrocco (94)
Chief, Water Supplies Division
Pennsylvania Department of
Environmental Resources
P.O. Box 2357, 101 South 2nd St.
Harrisburg, PA 17105

Dr. L.D. McMullen (95) General Manager Des Moines Water Works 2201 Valley Drive Des Moines, IO 50321

Mr. Erik D. Olson (95)
Senior Attorney
Natural Resources Defense
Council
1350 New York Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20005

Dr. Joan Rose (94)
Assistant Professor
Department of Environmental
& Occupational Health
University of South Florida
13301 Bruce B. Downs Boulevard
Tampa, FL 33612

Ms. Susan Seacrest (94)
President
Groundwater Foundation
6540 Crooked Creek Drive
Lincoln, NE 68516

NATIONAL DRINKING WATER ADVISORY COUNCIL

Ms. Rhonda R. Swaney (95)
Head, Natural Resources
Department
Flathead Nation, Confederated
Salish and Kootenai Tribes
Pablo, MO 59855

Ms. Wilma Warren (94) Former Director Virginia Water Project 2716 Beverly Boulevard, SW Roanoke, VA 24015

NOTE: Terms expire December 15 of the year indicated by member's name

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The National Drinking Water Advisory Council held three meetings since the last reporting period: November 19 and 20, 1992, May 6 and 7, 1993 and December 2 and 3, 1993. The major topic of discussion during this period of time was the reauthorization of the Safe Drinking Water Act. The Agency relied heavily on the recommendations of the Advisory Council concerning changes needed to the current statute. The most controversial of these was the standard setting process. Following the May 1993 meeting, the Agency used the recommendations of the Advisory Council to help formulate the Administration's position on Reauthorization. Issues included: establishing a drinking water state revolving fund; maintaining state primacy through user fees; ensuring the viability of small systems; establishing small system "Best Available Technology"; training and certifying system operators; improving the process of selecting contaminants for regulation; providing EPA flexibility to set compliance timeframes; and streamlining and strengthening enforcement provisions.

The Council advised the Agency to consider all water as part of the total water cycle, choosing the best source for drinking water. They recommended that during reauthorization of the Safe Drinking Water Act, the Clean Water Act and related legislation, efforts should be made to provide comprehensive source protection and watershed management as the bridge to holistically protect ambient water quality. The Council feels that pollution prevention should be the driving force behind any legislative activity.

Research needs were a consistent theme in all three Council meetings. The Council feels that the current regulatory climate may be characterized by detection of new contaminants, the ability to observe lower concentrations of these contaminants and debates by epidemiologists, health professionals and risk assessors as to the possible adverse health effects associated with exposure to these contaminants. In addition, technical advances have been seen in the area of engineering control. This is occurring simultaneously with decreasing expenditures on research and increased costs for regulation in the field of drinking water. The Council expressed dismay and concern over continuing reductions in funding drinking water research, even in the face of rapidly expanding and costly regulatory requirements and the continuing threat to health exemplified by recent outbreaks of cryptosporidiosis, giardia and other diseases. Effective regulations designed to control chemical and microbial risks cannot be developed without a credible scientific basis derived through research. In the absence of adequate research, the Council believes a real threat exists that regulations could be promulgated that are actually adverse to health. In a letter of concern to the Administrator, the Council pointed out that the safety of a substance as essential to life as water, which is actually consumed by every person in this country on a daily basis, should receive high priority in allocating scarce research funds.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION ADVISORY COUNCIL

- 1. <u>AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE</u>. Section 9(a) of the National Environmental Education Act (PL-101-619) 20 U.S.C. §5501 et seq. establishes a National Environmental Education Advisory Council. The purpose of the Council is to advise, consult with, and make recommendations to the Administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) on matters relating to activities, functions, and policies of EPA under the Act.
- 2. <u>SCOPE OF ACTIVITY</u>. The Council will provide advice to the Administrator of EPA through the Office of Environmental Education. Such advice will focus on EPA's overall implementation of the Act, including EPA's development and implementation of the national environmental education and training center and education grant programs, the internship and fellowship programs, as well as the clearinghouse. With respect to the grant programs, the Council will provide general advice on the process EPA develops to administer the grant programs but will not review nor make recommendations on individual grant proposals. Pursuant to section 9(d)(1) of the Act, the Council is responsible for producing a bi-annual report to Congress which assesses the state of environmental education nationally and offers recommendations for improving environmental education. The Council may provide advice on other EPA environmental education activities as directed by the Office of Environmental Education.
- 3. <u>MEMBERSHIP</u>. Pursuant to section 9(b)(2) of the Act, the Council consists of 11 members appointed by the Administrator of EPA after consultation with the Secretary of the Department of Education. The 11 members represent: primary and secondary education; colleges and universities; not-for-profit organizations involved in environmental education; State departments of education and natural resources; business and industry; and senior Americans. Two members represent each category, except for senior Americans which has only one representative. As stipulated by the Act, the conflict of interest provision at section 208(a) of title 18, U.S.C., shall not apply to members' participation in matters which affect the financial interests of employers which they represent pursuant to this subsection. A representative of the Secretary of the Department of Education serves as an ex-officio member. The Council must include representatives from the various geographic regions of the country and must include minority ethnic representation. The professional backgrounds of the members must include scientific, policy, and other appropriate disciplines.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

The Council may form specialized committees on an ad hoc or standing basis to facilitate the conduct of Council business. The Administrator of EPA, through the Office of Environmental Education, may appoint additional expert advisors to serve on such committees if deemed necessary by the Office of Environmental Education.

The Office of Environmental Education appoints a chairperson among the 11 member Council to serve a one year term. The role of the chairperson is to assist the Office of Environmental Education in formulating meeting agendas and in conducting meetings.

Pursuant to section 9(b)(4) of the Act, each member of the Council holds office for a term of three years, except that the terms of members first taking office expire one, two, or three years after the date of enactment of the Act (November 16, 1990) as designated at the time of appointment. Any member appointed to fill a vacancy occurring prior to the expiration of the term for which the predecessor was appointed shall be appointed for the remainder of the term.

- 4. <u>COMPENSATION</u>. Pursuant to section 9(b)(5) of the Act, members receive compensation and allowances while attending meetings of the Council or otherwise engaged in business of the Council. Such compensation will include a fee as well as travel and per diem expenses. The fee is determined by the Administrator, but may not exceed the daily equivalent of the annual rate for a GS-18 federal employee. If expert advisors are selected to serve on specialized committees of the Council, such experts serve on a voluntary and non-compensatory basis.
- 5. <u>MEETINGS</u>. The Council meets at least twice each year and more often if necessary as determined by the Office of Environmental Education. A representative of the Office of Environmental Education serves as the Designated Federal Officer who will be present at all meetings. Each meeting will be conducted in accordance with an agenda to be approved in advance by the Designated Federal Officer. Budgetary support for the Council is provided through the Office of Environmental Education. The estimated annual operating cost of the Council is approximately \$60,000, which includes .5 workyear of staff support.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

6. <u>DURATION</u>. As provided by section 9(b)(6) of the National Environmental Education Act, Section 14(a) of the Federal Advisory Committee Act (relating to termination) shall not apply to the Council. However, the charter is subject to the renewal process upon the expiration of each successive two-year period following the date of enactment of the Act establishing the Council.

January 14, 1992 Agency Approval Date

F. Henry Habicht II
Deputy Administrator

January 30, 1992
Date Filed with Congress

CHAIRPERSON

Dr. Richard Wilke (94)
Associate Dean and Professor
College of Natural Resources
University of Wisconsin, Stevens Point
Stevens Point, WI 54481

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Ms. Kathleen MacKinnon Advisory Council Manager Office of Environmental Education U.S. EPA (A-107) 401 M Street, S.W. Washington, DC 20460 (202) 260-4951

MEMBERS

Mr. Richard Holmgren (94)
Chairman of the Board
James M. Montgomery Consulting
Engineers, Inc.
2375 130th Avenue N.W., Suite 200
Bellevue. WA 98005

Ms. Michelle Perrault (94)
International Vice President and
Director of Summer Workshop
for Teachers
Sierra Club
2979 Rohrer Drive
Lafayette, CA 94549

Mr. John Strickler (94) Extension State Leader Forestry Program Kansas State University 2610 Claflin Road Manhattan, KS 66502

NOTE: Terms expire November 18 of the year indicated by member's name

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

During the past year, the National Environmental Education Advisory Council reviewed applications and nominated individuals to receive awards under the first National Environmental Education Awards Program mandated under section 8 of the National Environmental Education Act. Four awards were presented by EPA Administrator Carol Browner in a ceremony in Washington, D.C. on May 4, 1993, commemorating Rachel Carson (for print media); Gifford Pinchot (for forestry and natural resource management); Theodore Roosevelt (for teaching); and Henry David Thoreau (for literature).

The Advisory Council also provided overall guidance and reviewed several draft reports assessing the state of environmental education nationally. The Advisory Council is required to submit this report to Congress as mandated under section 9 of the National Environmental Education Act. The Council's first biennial report to Congress is expected to be completed in 1994.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE ADVISORY COUNCIL

- 1. <u>AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE</u>. This Charter establishes the National Environmental Justice Advisory Council (NEJAC) in accordance with the requirements of the Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA), 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c). The purpose of the NEJAC is to advise, consult, with, and make recommendations to the Administrator of EPA on matters relating to environmental justice.
- 2. SCOPE OF ACTIVITY. The NEJAC will provide advice to the Administrator of EPA through the Office of Environmental Equity on issues related to managing environmental justice as defined in section 3. The NEJAC shall hold meetings, analyze issues, conduct reviews, perform studies, produce reports, make necessary recommendations and undertake other activities necessary to meet its responsibilities. The NEJAC will also provide advice on the process that the Office of Environmental Equity develops to administer grant programs but will not review nor make recommendations on individual grant proposals. The NEJAC will also give advice and provide recommendations on possible outreach and awareness programs involving environmental justice. NEJAC subcommittees may be formed to facilitate the conduct of NEJAC business and report back to the full Council. The Council will function solely as an advisory body, and will comply fully with the provisions of FACA.
- 3. <u>OBJECTIVES</u>. The NEJAC shall provide independent advice to the Administrator on areas relating to environmental justice that may include the following:
 - EPA's framework for integrating socio-economic programs into strategic planning, annual planning and management accountability for achieving environmental justice results agency-wide.
 - EPA's progress, quality, and adequacy in planning, developing, and implementing environmental justice strategies, projects, and programs.
 - EPA's existing and future information management systems, technologies, data collection, and analyses that support and strengthen environmental justice programs in administrative and scientific areas.
 - EPA's direction, criteria, scope, and adequacy of the Agency's scientific research and demonstration projects relating to environmental justice.

- Participation, cooperation, and communication among the Agency and other Federal, State, or local governments, Federally recognized tribes, environmental justice leaders, interest groups, and the public.
- EPA's administration of grant programs relating environmental justice assistance (not to include review or recommendations of individual grant proposals or awards).
- EPA's awareness, education, training, and other outreach activities involving environmental justice.
- 4. <u>COMPOSITION</u>. The NEJAC will consist of approximately twenty-five members, appointed by the EPA Deputy Administrator for initial terms of one year. At the conclusion of the one-year period, members may be reappointed or new members appointed to serve on the Committee. Appointments made after the initial one year period will be for staggered terms. The Deputy Administrator shall select a member to serve as Chairperson for a two-year term and may be reappointed to serve an additional one-year term. The role of the Chairperson is to assist the Office of Environmental Equity in directing the activities of the NEJAC, formulating meeting agendas, and conducting meetings.

Advisory Council members shall be appointed who have knowledge of, and experience with, environmental conditions in racial minority, ethnic minority, or low income communities. Council members shall include, but not be limited to, individuals who are recognized experts in the fields of socio-economic analysis, health and environmental effects, exposure evaluation, and environmental health science research. Advisory Council members shall be appointed in a balanced representation among the following sectors: Community-based groups, industry and business; academic and educational institutions; federal, state and local governmental agencies; federally recognized tribes and other non-government and environmental groups as deemed appropriate.

Most members shall be appointed as representatives of non-federal interests and will receive travel and per diem expenses while attending meetings of the Council or otherwise engaged in the business of the NEJAC. A full-time salaried official or regular employee of the Agency will serve as the Designated Federal Officer (DFO) and will be present at all meetings. The DFO is authorized to adjourn any meeting whenever it is determined to be in the public interest to do so.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

- 5. <u>MEETINGS</u>. The Council will meet twice each year and more often if deemed necessary by the DFO. Each meeting will be conducted in accordance with an agenda approved in advance by the DFO. Budgetary support for the NEJAC is provided through the Office of Environmental Equity. The estimated annual operating cost of the Council is approximately \$50,000 which includes a .5 work-year for staff support.
- 6. <u>DURATION</u>. The Council shall be needed on a continuing basis and may be renewed beyond its initial two-year period, as authorized in accordance with section 14 of FACA.

July 23, 1993 Agency Approval Date Carol M. Browner
Administrator

September 9, 1993 OMB Approval Date

September 30, 1993
Date Filed with Congress

NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE ADVISORY COUNCIL

CHAIRPERSON

Mr. John Hall Commissioner Texas Natural Resources Conservation Commission P.O. Box 13087 Austin, TX 78711-1000

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Dr. Clarice E. Gaylord
Director
Office of Environmental Justice
Environmental Protection Agency
401 M Street SW
Washington, DC 20460
(202) 260-6357

MEMBERS

Academia

Dr. Robert Bullard Center for Afo-American Studies 170 Haines Hall, UCLA Los Angeles, CA 92521

Dr. Bunyan Bryant University of Michigan School of Natural Resources Ann Arbor, MI 48109

Mr. Richard Lazarus
Washington University
School of Law
One Brookings Drive
St. Louis, MO 63130

Dr. Beverly Wright
Deep South Center for
Environmental Justice
Xavier University
8131 Aberdeen Road
New Orleans, LA 70126

Industry

Dr. Herman Ellis
Rohm and Haas Company (CMA)
Engineering Division Location
P.O. Box 584
Bristol, PA 19007

Mr. Charles McDermott Waste Management Inc. 1155 Connecticut Avenue, NW Suite 800 Washington, DC 20036

Ms. Laurie Morissette EE & G, Inc. 8809 Sudley Road Manassas, VA 22110

Mr. Michael Pierle Monsanto 800 North Lindburgh Street St. Louis, MO 63167

Community Groups

Ms. Dolores Herrera
Albuquerque San Jose
Community Awareness
Council Inc.
P.O. Box 12297
Albuquerque, NM 87195-2297

Ms. Hazel Johnson People for Community Recovery 13116 South Ellis Avenue Chicago, IL 60627

Ms. Jean Sindab National Council of Churches 475 Riverside Dr. Room 572 New York, NY 10115-0050

Ms. Mililani Trask Gibson Foundation 400 Hualani Street Suite 194 Hilo Honolulu, HI 96720

Non-Government

Dr. Jane Delgado COSSMHO 1501 Sixteenth St. N.W. Washington DC 20036

Ms. Deeohn Ferris
Alliance for Washington Office
for Environmental Justice
403 14th St. NW
Washington, DC 20002

Mr. Charles Lee
Director of Research
United Church of Christ
Commission on Environmental Justice
475 Riverside Dr., Suite 1948
New York, NY 10015

Mr. John O'Leary Pierce, Atwood & Scribner One Monument Square Portland, ME 04468

State/Tribal/Local

Ms. Mable Butler County Commissioner P.O. Box 1393 Orlando, FL 32802

Ms. Cindy Thomas State of Alaska 122 First Avenue Fairbanks, AK 99701

Mr. Samual Winder
National Tribal Environmental
Council
1225 Rio Grande N.W.
Albuquerque, NM 87104

Environmental Organizations

Mr. Richard Moore Southwest Network for Environmental and Economic Justice 211 10th Street, S.W. Albuquerque, NM 87102

NATIONA' ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE ADVISORY COUNCIL

Ms. Peggy Saika Asian Pacific Environment Network 3126 California Street Oakland, CA 94602

Ms. Nathalie Walker Sierra Club Legal Defense Fund 400 Magazine Street, Suite 401 New Orleans, LA 70130

NOTE: All terms expire on 3/31/95

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The goal of the NEJAC Committee is to provide independent advice to the Administrator on Environmental Justice (EJ) by reviewing and commenting on the following:

- EPA's framework for integrating socio-economic programs strategic planning;
- EPA's progress, quality, and adequacy in planning, developing, and implementing EJ strategies, projects, and programs;
- EPA's existing and future information management systems, technologies, data collection, and analyses that support and strengthen EJ programs in administrative and scientific areas;
- EPA's direction, criteria, scope, and adequacy of scientific research and demonstration projects relating to EJ;
- Participation and cooperation among the Agency and other federal, state, or local governments, federally recognized tribes, EJ leaders, interest groups, and the public;
- EPA's administration of grant programs relating to EJ assistance (not to include review or recommendations of individual grant proposals or awards);
- EPA's awareness, education, training and other outreach activities involving
 EJ.

Membership selection for the Council was completed in April 1994. Four Several meetings of the Council are planned for FY 1994.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

RISK ASSESSMENT AND MANAGEMENT COMMISSION

- 1. <u>PURPOSE.</u> This charter establishes the Risk Assessment and Management Commission in accordance with requirements of the Federal Advisory Committee Act, 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c).
- 2. <u>AUTHORITY.</u> The Commission was specifically directed under Section 303 of the Clean Air Act, as amended on November 15, 1990.
- 3. OBJECTIVE AND SCOPE OF ACTIVITY. As required by the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990, the Risk Assessment and Management Commission shall make a full investigation of the policy implications and appropriate uses of risk assessment and risk management in regulatory programs various Federal laws to prevent cancer and other chronic human health effects which may result from exposure to hazardous substances.

The Commission shall consider:

- (a) The report of the National Academy of Sciences authorized by section 112(0) of the Clean air Act, the use and limitations of risk assessment in establishing emissions and effluent standards, ambient standards, exposure standards, acceptable concentration levels, tolerances or other environmental criteria for hazardous substances that present a risk of carcinogenic effects or other chronic health effects and reductions in the number of persons exposed at various levels of risk, the incidence of cancer, and other public health factors;
- (b) The most appropriate methods for measuring and describing cancer risks or risks of other chronic health effects from exposure to hazardous substances considering such alternative approaches as the lifetime risk of cancer or other effects to the individual or individuals most exposed to emissions from a source or sources on both an actual and worst case basis, the range of such risks, the total number of health effects avoided by exposures standards, acceptable concentration levels, tolerances and other environmental criteria, reductions in the number of persons exposed at various levels of risk, the incidence of cancer, and other public health factors;
- (c) Methods to reflect uncertainties in measurement and estimation techniques, the existence of synergistic or antagonistic effects among hazardous substances, the accuracy of extrapolating human health risks from animal exposure data, and the

existence of unquantified direct or indirect effects on human health in risk assessment studies:

- (d) Risk management policy issues including the use of lifetime cancer risks to individuals most exposed, incidence of cancer, the cost and technical feasibility of exposure reduction measures and the use of site specific actual exposure information in setting emissions standards and other limitations applicable to sources of exposure to hazardous substances; and
- (e) Comment on the degree to which it is possible or desirable to develop a consistent standard of acceptable risk, among various Federal programs.
- 4. <u>FUNCTIONS.</u> (a) In the conduct of the studies required by this section, the Commission is authorized to contract (in accordance with Federal contract law) with nongovernmental entities that are competent to perform research or investigations within the Commission's mandate, and to hold public hearings, forums, and workshops to enable full public participation.
- (b) The Commission may appoint and fix the pay of such staff as it deems necessary in accordance with the provisions of title 5, United States code. The Commission may request the temporary assignment of personnel from the Environmental Protection Agency or other Federal agencies.
- (c) The members of the Commission who are not officers or employees of the United States, while attending conferences or meetings of the Commission or while otherwise serving at the request of the Chair, shall be entitled to receive compensation at a rate not in excess of the maximum rate of pay for Grade GS 18, as provided in the General Schedule under section 5332 of title 5 of the United States Code, including travel time, and while away from their homes or regular places of business they may be allowed travel expenses, including per diem in lieu of subsistence as authorized by law for persons in the Government service employed intermittently.
- (d) A report containing the results of all Commission studies and investigations under this section, together with any appropriate legislative recommendations or administrative recommendations, shall be made available to the public for comment not later than 42 months after the date of enactment of the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990 and shall be submitted to the President and to the Congress not later than 48 months after such date of enactment. In the report, the Commission shall make recommendations with respect to the appropriate use of risk assessment and risk management in Federal regulatory programs to prevent cancer or other chronic health effects which may result from exposure to hazardous substances.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

- 5. <u>COMPOSITION AND MEETING.</u> The Commission shall be composed of ten members who shall have knowledge or experience in fields of risk assessment or risk management, including three members to be appointed by the President, two members to be appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives, one member to be appointed by the minority Leader of the House of Representatives, two members to be appointed by the Majority Leader of the Senate, one member to be appointed by the Minority leader of the Senate, and one member to be appointed by the President of the National Academy of Sciences.
- 6. <u>DURATION.</u> The Commission shall cease to exist upon the date determined by the Commission, but not later than 9 months after the submission of such report.

October 30, 1992 Agency Approval Date

F. Henry Habicht
Deputy Administrator

December 23, 1992
Date Filed with Congress

RISK ASSESSMENT AND MANAGEMENT COMMISSION

CHAIRPERSON

Mr. Gilbert S. Omenn School Public Health and Community Medicine SC30 University of Washington Seattle, WA 98915

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Mr. Carl Mazza
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Office of Air and Radiation (6101)
401 M Street, SW
Washington, DC 20460
(202) 260-7403

MEMBERS

Mr. Norm Anderson American Lung Association 128 Sewall Street Augusta, ME 04333

Ms. Barbara A. Bankoff President, Bankoff Associates 3733 Yuma Street, NW Washington, DC 20016

Dr. Peter Y. Chiu Kaiser Permanente Department of Urgent Care 770 East Calaveras Blvd. Melpitas, CA 95035-5462

Mr. John Doull Professor, 1012 Breidenthal Kansas University Medical Center 3901 Rainbow Blvd. Kansas City, MO 66160-7417

Dr. Bernard D. Goldstein
Director of Environmental and
Occupational Health Science Inst.
681 Freling-Huysen Road
Piscataway, NJ 08855-1179

Mr. Allan C. Kessler Buchanan Ingr Soll, DC 12 Two Logan Square Philadelphia, PA 19103

Mr. Josha Lederberg Rockerfeller University 1230 York Avenue Suite 400 New York, NY 10021

Dr. Sheila McGuire Iowa Health Research Institute 519 South Greene Street Boone, IO 50036

Mr. David P. Rall Former Head of (NIESH) 5302 Reno Road, NW Washington, DC 20015

Ms. Virginia V. Weldon Vice President Monsanto Company 800 N. Lindbergh Blvd. St. Louis, MO 63167

NOTE: Terms end when Commission terminates

RISK ASSESSMENT AND MANAGEMENT COMMISSION

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Risk Assessment and Management Commission Future Plans:

The first meeting of the Commission will address a range of administrative and organizational issues and begin to develop a plan and schedule for its work. The Commission is expected to meet several times in Fiscal Year 1994.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

SCIENCE ADVISORY BOARD

- 1. <u>PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY</u>. This Charter is reissued to renew the Science Advisory Board in accordance with the requirements of the Federal Advisory Committee Act, 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c). The former Science Advisory Board, administratively established by the Administrator of EPA on January 11, 1974, was terminated in 1978 when the Congress created the statutorily mandated Science Advisory Board by the Environmental Research, Development, and Demonstration Authorization Act (ERDDAA) of 1978, 42 U.S.C. 4365. The Science Advisory Board charter was renewed October 31, 1979; November 19, 1981; November 3, 1983; October 25, 1985; November 6, 1987; November 8, 1989; and November 8, 1991.
- 2. <u>SCOPE OF ACTIVITY</u>. The activities of the Board will include analyzing problems, conducting meetings, presenting findings, making recommendations, and other activities necessary for the attainment of the Board's objectives. Ad hoc panels may be established to carry out these special activities in which consultants of special expertise may be used who are not members of the Board.
- 3. OBJECTIVES AND RESPONSIBILITIES. The objective of the Board is to provide independent advice to EPA's Administrator on the scientific and technical aspects of environmental problems and issues. While the Board reports to the Administrator, it may also be requested to provide advice to the U. S. Senate Committee on Environment and Public Works or the U. S. House Committees on Science and Technology, Energy and Commerce, or Public Works and Transportation. The Board will review scientific issues, provide independent scientific and technical advice on EPA's major programs, and perform special assignments as requested by Agency officials and as required by the Environmental Research, Development, and Demonstration Authorization Act of 1978 and the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1977. Responsibilities include the following:
- Reviewing and advising on the adequacy and scientific basis of any proposed criteria document, standard, limitation, or regulation under the Clean Air Act, the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the Noise Control Act, the Toxic Substances Control Act, the Safe Drinking Water Act, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, or any other authority of the Administrator;
- Reviewing and advising on the scientific and technical adequacy of Agency programs, guidelines, methodologies, protocols, and tests;

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

- Recommending, as appropriate, new or revised scientific criteria or standards for protection of human health and the environment;
- Through the Clean Air Scientific Advisory Committee, providing the technical review and advice required under the Clean Air Act, as amended in 1990;
- Reviewing and advising on new information needs and the quality of Agency plans and programs for research, development and demonstration;
- Advising on the relative importance of various natural and anthropogenic pollution sources;
- As appropriate, consulting and coordinating with the Scientific Advisory Panel established by the Administrator pursuant to section 21 (b) of the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act, as amended; and
- Consulting and coordinating with other Agency advisory groups, as requested by the Administrator.
- 4. <u>COMPOSITION</u>. The Board will consist of a body of independent scientists and engineers of sufficient size and diversity to provide the range of expertise required to assess the scientific and technical aspects of environmental issues. The Board will be organized into an executive committee and several specialized committees, all members of which shall be drawn from the Board.

The Board is authorized to constitute such specialized committees and ad hoc investigative panels and subcommittees as the Administrator and the Board find necessary to carry out its responsibilities. The Administrator will review the need for such specialized committees and investigative panels at least once a year to decide which should be continued. These committees and panels will report through the Executive Committee.

The Administrator also shall appoint a Clean Air Scientific Advisory Committee of the Board to provide the scientific review and advice required by the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990. This group, established by separate charter, will be an integral part of the Board, and its members will also be members of the Science Advisory Board.

5. <u>MEMBERSHIP AND MEETINGS</u>. The Administrator appoints individuals to serve on the Science Advisory Board for two year terms and appoints from the membership a Chair of the Board. The Chair of the Board serves as Chair of the Executive Committee. Chairs of standing committees or ad hoc specialized subcommittees serve as members of the Executive Committee during the life of the specialized subcommittee. Each member of the Board shall be qualified by education, training, and experience to evaluate scientific and technical information on matters referred to the Board. No member of the Board shall be a full-time employee of the Federal Government. Most members will serve as special Government employees.

There will be approximately 50-60 meetings of the specialized committees per year. A full-time or permanent part-time Federal officer or employee of the Agency, who will serve as the Designated Federal Officer (DFO), will be present at all meetings and is authorized to adjourn any such meeting whenever this official determines it to be in the public interest. The Committee may not conduct any meetings in the absence of the DFO or his/her designee. Committee meetings will be called, announced, and held in accordance with the EPA Committee Management Manual. The Manual contains the Agency's policies and procedures for implementing FACA. Among other things, FACA requires open meetings, and an opportunity for interested persons to file comments before or after meetings, or to make statements as permitted by the Committee's guidelines and to the extent that time permits.

Support for the Board's activities will be provided by the Office of the Administrator, EPA. The estimated total annual operating cost will be approximately \$1,689,000 and the estimated Federal permanent staff support will be 16 work-years.

6. <u>DURATION</u>. The Board shall be needed on a continuing basis. This charter will be effective until November 8, 1995, at which time the Board charter may be renewed for another two-year period.

October 27, 1993 Agency Approval Date Carol M. Browner
Administrator

November 8, 1993

Date Filed with Congress

SCIENCE ADVISORY BOARD EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

CHAIRPERSON

Dr. Genevieve Matanoski (95) School of Hygiene & Public Health Johns Hopkins University Baltimore, MD 21205

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Dr. Donald Barnes Staff Director Science Advisory Board Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street S.W., 1400 Washington, DC 20460 (202) 260-4126

MEMBERS

Dr. Joan Daisey (95) Indoor Environment Program Lawrence Berkeley Lab Berkeley, CA 94720

Dr. Paul Deisler (94) Shell Oil (retired) Houston, TX 77024

Dr. Kenneth Dickson (94) Institute of Applied Sciences University of North Texas Denton, TX 76201

Dr. A. Myrick Freeman (95) Department of Economics Bowdoin College Brunswick, ME 04011

Dr. Robert Huggett (94) Institute of Marine Science College of William & Mary Williamsburg, VA 23062

Dr. Margaret Kripke (95) M. D. Anderson Hospital University of Houston Houston, TX 77030 Dr. Morton Lippmann (95) Department of Environmental Medicine New York University Tuxedo, New York 10987

Dr. Raymond Loehr (94)
Department of Civil Engineering
University of Texas at Austin
Austin, TX 78712

Dr. Roger McClellan (94)
President
Chemical Industry Institute
of Toxicology
Research Triangle Park, NC 27709

Dr. Ishwar Murarka (95) Electric Power Research Institute Palo Alto, CA 94303

Dr. Frederica P. Perera (95) Columbia University New York, NY 10032

Dr. Paul R. Portney (95) Resources for the Future 1616 P Street, NW Washington, DC 20036

SCIENCE ADVISORY BOARD EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Dr. Verne Ray (94) Medical Research Lab Pfizer, Inc. Groton, CT 06340

Dr. Richard Schmalensee (94) Dept of Economics Mass. Inst. of Technology Cambridge, MA 02139

Dr. Ellen K. Silbergeld (95) University of Maryland Department of Epidemiology Baltimore, MD 21201

Dr. James E. Watson, Jr. (95)
Department of Environmental Sciences
and Engineering
University of North Carolina
at Chapel Hill
Chapel Hill, NC 27599-7400

Dr. George T. Wolff (94) Principal Scientist General Motors Research Lab Warren, MI 48090

SCIENCE ADVISORY BOARD DRINKING WATER COMMITTEE

CHAIRPERSON

Dr. Verne Ray (94) Medical Research Lab Pfizer Inc. Groton, CT 06340

VICE CHAIR

Dr. Vern Snoeyink (94) Dept of Civil Engineering University of Illinois Urbana, IL 61801

Dr. Judy Bean (95) School of Medicine University of Miami Miami, FL

Dr. Richard Bull (94) College of Pharmacy Washington State University Pullman, WA 99164

Dr. Keith Carns (94)
Director of Water Research
Electric Power Research Institute
Palo Alto, CA 94303

Dr. Lenore Clesceri (94) Materials Research Center Renasslear Polytechnic Institute Troy, NY 12180

Dr. Anna Fan (95) OEHHA/PETS 2151 Berkeley Way - Annex 11 Berkeley, CA 94704

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Mr. Manuel Gomez Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street S.W., 1400F Washington, DC 20460 (202) 260-2563

MEMBERS

Dr. Charles Gerba (95) Program in Microbiology Building No. 90 University of Arizona Tucson, AZ 85721

Mr. Charles C. Johnson (94) Vice President (retired) Malcolm-Pirnie Inc. Bethesda. MD 20810

Dr. Curtis D. Klaassen (95) Department of Pharmacology University of Kansas Medical Center 3901 Rainbow Boulevard Kansas City, KS 66160-7417

Dr. Edo Pellizzari (95)
President
Research Triangle Institute
POB 12194
Research Triangle Park, NC 27709

SCIENCE ADVISORY BOARD DRINKING WATER COMMITTEE

Dr. Richard Reitz (94) Toxicology Division (retired) Dow Chemical Co. Midland, MI 48090

Dr. James Symons (94)
Department of Civil and
Environmental Engineering
University of Houston
Houston, TX 77204

Dr. Marylynn V. Yates (95)
Department of Soil and
Environmental Sciences
Room 2208
University of California
Riverside, CA 92521

SCIENCE ADVISORY BOARD ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING COMMITTEE

CHAIRPERSON

Dr. Ishwar P. Murarka (95) Environmental Division Electric Power Research Institute Palto Alto, CA 94303

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Mrs. Kathleen Conway Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street S.W., 1400F Washington, D.C. 20460 (202) 260-2558

MEMBERS

Dr. Linda Abriola (95) Dept of Civil Engineering University of Michigan Ann Arbor, MI 48109

Mr. Richard Conway (94) Senior Corporate Fellow Union Carbide Corp. South Charleston, WV 25303

Dr. James H. Johnson (94) Chair, Dept of Civil Engineering Howard University Washington, DC 20006

Dr. Wayne Kachel (94) Pilko & Associates, Inc 2707 North Loop West Suite 960 Houston, TX 77008

Dr. Jo Ann Lighty (95) Assistant Professor Dept. of Chemical Engineering University of Utah Salt Lake City, UT 84112 Dr. James W. Mercer (95) President, GeoTrans, Inc. 46050 Manekin Plaza Suite 100 Sterling, VA 20166

Dr. Fredrick G. Pohland (94) Chair, Dept of Env. Engineering University of Pittsburgh 1141 Benedum Hall Pittsburgh, PA 15261

Dr. Robert Pojasek (94) Vice President GEI Consultants Winchester, MA 02115

Dr. Wm. Randall Seeker (95) Energy & Env. Research Corp. Irvine, CA 92718

Dr. Walter Shaub (94)
President, CORRE, Inc.
PO Box 2248
Reston, VA 22090

SCIENCE ADVISORY BOARD **ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH COMMITTEE**

CHAIRPERSON

Dr. Frederica Perera (95) Department of Toxicology Columbia University New York City, NY 10032

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Dr. Samuel Rondberg **Environmental Protection Agency** 401 M Street S.W., 1400F Washington, D.C. 20460 (202) 260-2559

MEMBERS

Dr. William Bunn (95) Dir. for Health, Safety and Env Mobil Oil New Haven, CN 06510

Dr. Kenny Crump (95) Vice President Clement Corporation Ruston, LA 71270

Dr. Michael Gallo (94) Dept of Env and Commum Med Robert Wood Johnson Sch of Med Piscataway, NJ 08854

Dr. Rogene Henderson (95) Senior Scientist Inhalation Toxic Research Institute Albuquerque, NM 87185

Dr. Richard Jackson (95) California Dept. of Health Services Berkeley, CA 94704-1011

Dr. Donald R. Mattison (95) Graduate School of Public Health University of Pittsburgh Pittsburgh, PA 15261

Dr. Richard Monson (95) School of Public Health Harvard University Boston, MA 02115

Dr. Henry Pitot (95) McArdle Lab for Cancer Research University of Wisconsin Madison, WI 53706

Dr. Martha Radike (94) Dept of Env Health University of Cincinnati Cincinnati, OH 45267

Dr. David Wegman (95) Dept of Occupational Health University of Lowell Lowell, MA 02116

SCIENCE ADVISORY BOARD ENVIRONMENTAL ECONOMICS ADVISORY COMMITTEE

CO-CHAIRPERSON

Dr. A. Myrick Freeman (95) Department of Economics Bowdoin College Brunswick, ME 04011

CO-CHAIRPERSON

Dr. Paul Portney (95) Vice President Resources for the Future 1616 P Street, NW Washington, DC 20036

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Dr. Samuel Rondberg Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street S.W., 1400F Washington, D.C. 20460 (202) 260-2559

MEMBERS

Dr. Nancy Bockstael (95)
Dept of Agricultural and Resource
Economics, University of Maryland
College Park, MD 20742

Dr. Allen Kneese (95) Research Fellow Resources for the Future Washington, DC 20036

Dr. Charles Kolstad (94) Department of Economics University of Illinois Urbana, IL 61801

Dr. William Nordhaus (95) Department of Economics Yale University New Haven, CT 06510

Dr. Bryan Norton (94) School of Public Policy Georgia Institute of Technology Atlanta, GA 30332 Dr. Wallace Oates (94)
Department of Economics
University of Maryland
College Park, MD 20742

Dr. Robert Repetto (95) Research Fellow World Resources Institute 1709 New York Avenue, NW Washington, DC 20006

Dr. Richard Schmalensee (94)
Department of Economics
Massachusetts Institute of Technology
Room E52-456
Cambridge, MA 02139

Dr. Robert Stavins (95) JFK School of Government Harvard University Cambridge, MA 02138

SCIENCE ADVISORY BOARD ENVIRONMENTAL ECONOMICS ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Dr. Thomas Tietenberg (95) Department of Economics Colby College Waterville, ME 04901

Dr. W. Kip Viscusi (94)
Department of Economics
Duke University
Durham, NC 27706

SCIENCE ADVISORY BOARD ECOLOGICAL PROCESSES AND EFFECTS COMMITTEE

CHAIRPERSON

Dr. Kenneth Dickson (94)
Director
Institute of Applied Sciences
University of North Texas
General Academics Bldg.
Denton. TX 76201

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Ms. Stephanie Salzone Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street S.W., 1400F Washington, D.C. 20460 (202) 260-6557

MEMBERS

Dr. Edwin Cooper (94) School of Medicine University of California Los Angeles, CA 90024

Dr. William Cooper (95) Zoology Department Michigan State University East Lansing, MI 48824

Dr. Virginia Dale (94) Environmental Sciences Division Oak Ridge National Laboratory Oak Ridge, TN 37831

Dr. Mark Harwell (95)
Rosenstiel School of Marine and
Atmospheric Science
University of Miami
4600 Rickenbacker
Miami, FL 33149

Dr. Robert Huggett (94)
Virginia Inst. of Marine Sciences
College of William and Mary
Gloucester Point, VA 23696

Dr. Alan W. Maki (95) Exxon Company, USA Houston, TX 77204

Dr. Anne McElroy (94) Marine Science Research Center State University of New York Stony Brook, NY 11794-5001

Dr. Frederick Pfaender (95)
Director, Institute for
Environmental Studies
University of North Carolina
Chapel Hill, NC 27709

Dr. William Smith (95)
School of Forestry and
Environmental Studies
Yale University
New Haven, CT 06510

Dr. Terry Young (94) Environmental Defense Fund Oakland, CA 94607

SCIENCE ADVISORY BOARD INDOOR AIR QUALITY/TOTAL HUMAN EXPOSURE COMMITTEE

CHAIRPERSON

Dr. Joan Daisey (95)
Indoor Environment Program
Lawrence Berkeley Lab
Berkeley, CA 94720

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Mr. Manuel Gomez Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street, S.W., 1400F Washington, D.C. 20460 (202) 260-2563

MEMBERS

Dr. Paul Bailey (94) Neurotoxicologist Mobil Oil Princeton, NJ 08540

Dr. Robert Hazen (94)
Chief, Bureau of Risk Assessment
Department of Environmental
Protection & Energy
Trenton, NJ 08854

Dr. Timothy Larson (95)
Department of Civil Engineering
University of Washington
Seattle, WA 98185

Dr. Brian Leaderer (94) Pierce Laboratory Yale University New Haven, CT 06510

Dr. Paul Lioy (95)
Department of Environmental and Commercial Medicine
Robert Wood Johnson School
Piscataway, NJ 08854

Dr. Morton Lippmann (94) Environmental Medicine New York University Tuxedo, NY 10987

Dr. Maria Morandi (94)
School of Public Health
University of Texas
Health Science Center
P.O. Box 20186
Houston, TX 77225

Dr. Roger Morse (94) ENTEK 125 DeFreest Dr. Troy, NY 12180

Dr. Jonathan Samet (94) New Mexico Tumor Registry University of New Mexico School of Medicine Albuquerque, NM 87131

Mr. Ronald H. White (94) American Lung Association 1726 M Street, NW Washington, DC 20036

SCIENCE ADVISORY BOARD RADIATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE

CHAIRPERSON

Dr. James Watson, Jr. (95)
Department of Environmental
Science & Engineering
University of North Carolina
Chapel Hill, NC 27599

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Dr. K. Jack Kooyoomjian Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street, S.W., 1400F Washington, D.C. 20460 (202) 260-2560

MEMBERS

Dr. William J. Bair (95) 102 Somerset Street Richmond, VA 99352

Dr. Stephen Brown (95) Private Consultant 4700 Grass Valley Road Oakland, CA 94605

Dr. June Fabryka-Martin (94) Los Alamos National Lab Los Alamos, NM 78754

Dr. David G. Hoel (95) Chairman and Professor Department of Biometry & Epidemiology Medical University of South Carolina Charleston, SC 29425-2503

Dr. Owen Hoffman (94) Senior Researcher SENES Oak Ridge, Inc. Oak Ridge, TN 37830 Dr. Bernd Kahn (95)
Professor, School of Nuclear Engineering and Health Physics and Director,
Environmental Resources Center
Georgia Institute of Technology
Atlanta, GA 30332

Dr. Arjun Makhijani (94)
Director
Institute for Energy &
Environmental Research
Takoma Park, MD 20912

Dr. Ricardo Gonzalez Mendez (94) School of Medicine University of Puerto Rico G.P.O. Box 5067 San Juan, Puerto Rico 00936

Dr. Richard Sextro (94)
Building Ventilation
& Indoor Air Quality
Building 90, Room 3058
Lawrence Berkeley Lab
Berkeley, CA 94720

SCIENCE ADVISORY BOARD RESEARCH STRATEGIES ADVISORY COMMITTEE

CHAIRPERSON

Dr. Roger McClellan (94)
President
Chemical Industry Institute
of Toxicology
P.O. Box 12137, 6 Davis Drive
Research Triangle Park, NC 27709

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Dr. Edward Bender Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street, S.W., 1400F Washington, D.C. 20460 (202) 260-2562

MEMBERS

Dr. Judy A. Bean (95)
Department of Biostatistics
University of Miami
Miami, FL 33156-3300

Dr. Joan M. Daisey (95) Lawrence Berkley Laboratory Berkeley, CA 94724

Dr. Paul Deisler (94) Shell Oil (retired) Houston, TX 77024 Dr. Kenneth L. Dickson (95) Institute of Applied Sciences University of North Texas Denton, TX 76203-3078

Dr. W. Randall Seeker (95) Energy & Environmental Research Corp. 18 Mason Street Irvine, CA 92718

Dr. George Wolff (94)
Principal Scientist
General Motors Research Lab
Warren, MI 48090

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

During FY 1993, the nine SAB Standing Committees conducted 54 public meetings and one closed meeting, all of which were announced in the Federal Register. In addition, twelve public conference calls were held for planning, writing, and discussion purposes. A wide variety of topics were covered including health effects of specific chemicals, techniques for assessing risks at Superfund sites, aspects of the Agency's research program, and various reports to Congress.

The SAB was involved with nearly every program office of the Agency. The SAB responded to requests for reviews from the Agency and took the initiative in delving into new areas and approaches, providing technical advice to the Agency.

The activities of the individual Committees are summarized in the sections below:

Executive Committee (EC)

In FY 1993 the EC was active beyond its scheduled quarterly meetings. Much of the activity involved exploring new partnerships and interactions to address science-related issues facing the Agency.

This increased involvement was anticipated by the EC-coordinated FY 1993 Annual Membership Meeting which focused on the topic: "The Role of the Science Advisory Board". During this annual meeting, the Vice Chair of the Environmental Financial Advisory Board (EFAB), announced a collaborative effort between EFAB and SAB leaders to explore providing joint advice on topics that have scientific and financial components. Specifically, the groups examined the interface between the selection of environmental risk reduction options and financing those options. While this partnership effort did not generate a specific report, it did develop mutual understandings and relationships that could serve the Board and the Agency in the future.

As noted below, four different SAB committees (EEAC, EEC, EHC, and EPEC) formed a partnership to examine aspects of the Agency's regulatory impact analysis (RIA) of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) Corrective Action rule. Given the breadth and complexity of the issues involved, the EC established a RCRA-RIA Steering Committee to coordinate the SAB's activities and response, including generation of a synthesized, overview report, which will be transmitted to the Agency in FY 1994.

In FY 1993, the Board was mandated by Congress to review and comment on aspects of the Agency's multi-media assessment of risks posed by radon and associated remediation costs. The EC established a Steering Committee to coordinate the review

of two different committees and to prepare an overview report. Under a significant time constraint the Board met the schedule and submitted a report.

The EC continued its FY 1992 effort to provide assistance to the Superfund Office by investigating site-specific issues at the Industrial Excess Landfill Site in Uniontown, OH. This activity is part of the Board's attempt to determine whether and how it might provide advice to Program and Regional Offices, and the public in resolving technical issues in site-specific situations.

At the quarterly meeting, in July the Assistant Administrators asked the Board to initiate a project to anticipate future environmental problems. Following an endorsement from Administrator Browner, the EC established an Environmental Futures Project Steering Committee (EFC) to plan and guide a major effort throughout FY 1994.

The EC issued one letter report and one commentary, both addressing concerns with radon: a) Radon Overview letter report EPA-SAB-EC-LTR-93-010, and b) Radon Commentary EPA-SAB-EC-COM-93-003.

Drinking Water Committee (DWC)

The Drinking Water Committee was formed from a Subcommittee of the Environmental Health Committee and includes experts in the effects and control of microbiological agents and chemicals in drinking water. In the past, the primary client for DWC was the Office of Drinking Water. This year the DWC also served the Office of Science and Technology in a joint review with EPEC of the Great Lakes Water Quality Initiative and in further reviews of water quality criteria methods, as well as the Office of Radiation Programs on drinking water treatment for radon.

The DWC held six committee meetings and issued four reports (one jointly with EPEC), one commentary, and a notice of consultation resulting in: a) Review of the Methodology for Developing Ambient Water Quality Criteria for the Protection of Human Health (EPA-SAB-DWC-93-016), b) Review by the Drinking Water Committee of the Water Program Health Effects at the Research Laboratory (EPA-SAB-DWC-93-001), c) Review of Issues Related to the Cost of Mitigating Indoor Radon Resulting from Drinking Water (EPA-SAB-DWC-93-015) [Multi-media Risks of Review of the Great Lakes Water Quality (EPA-SAB-EPEC/DWC-93-005), Commentary on Requirements for Nationwide Approval of New and Optionally Revised Methods for Inorganic and Organic Analyses in National

SCIENCE ADVISORY BOARD

Primary Drinking Water Regulations Monitoring (EPA-SAB-DWC-COM-93-002), and e) Notification of a Consultation on the Draft Drinking Water Criteria Documents for Chlorine and for Chloramines (EPA-SAB-DWC-CON-93-001).

In addition, other transmittals to the Administrator on what will occur in FY 1994 include: a) Review of the Draft Criteria Document for Arsenic in Drinking Water, b) Review of the Research Program on Disinfectants and Disinfection By-Products in the Risk Reduction Research Laboratory, and c) Commentary on the outcome of the regulatory negotiations regarding disinfectants and disinfection by-products.

Ecological Processes and Effects Committee (EPEC)

In FY 1993, EPEC held 7 meetings and produced two reports (one jointly with DWC), one letter report, and one commentary: a) Review of the Great Lakes Water Quality Initiative (EPA-SAB-EPEC/DWC-93-005), b) Review of Sediment Criteria Development Methodology for Non-Ionic Organic Contaminants (EPA-SAB-EPEC-93-002), c) Review of the Research Program for Environmental Release of Biotechnology Products (EPA-SAB-EPEC-LTR-93-012), and d) Commentary on the Agency's Research and Management Programs for Coastal Ecosystems (EPA-SAB-EPEC-COM-93-005).

In keeping with its commitment the Committee scheduled regular briefings on key programs, and engaged in consultations on the following issues: a) The Agency's draft Habitat Strategy (EPA-SAB-EPEC-CON-93-003), b) Environmental Monitoring and Assessment Program (EMAP) Assessment Hierarchy (EPA-SAB-EPEC-CON-93-005), and c) Proposed Revisions to the Aquatic Life Water Quality Criteria Guidelines (EPA-SAB-EPEC-CON-93-006).

Other reviews begun include: a) an evaluation of draft technical guidance for biological criteria for streams, b) a review of the ecological assessment in the RCRA-RIA, c) a review of the draft testing manual for discharge of dredged material into inland or near coastal waters, d) a review of the EMAP Assessment Framework, and e) a review of portions of the global climate change research program.

Environmental Economics Advisory Committee (EEAC)

During FY 1993, the Committee conducted four meetings and released one letter report: Science Advisory Board's Comments on the Office of Management and Budget's "Health-Health" Concept (EPA-SAB-EEAC-LTR-93-005). The report addresses a contro-

versial theory that regulations imposed to promote specific health benefits could have unintended negative general health consequences. The Committee (in concert with three other SAB Committees) currently has two reports on the RCRA-RIA in preparation for FY 1994 release.

Environmental Engineering Committee (EEC)

The EEC conducted eight meetings; three of the full Committee, and five of various subcommittees, covering 10 topics, of which 4 were continued from the previous fiscal year. In addition to the four reports and three commentaries described below, the Committee conducted a consultation on Groundwater Modeling Pathways for Radioactive Wastes.

The following reports were completed by the EEC and its various Ad Hoc Subcommittees during FY 1993: a) Review of the OSWER/CEPPO Draft Hydrogen A report of the Hydrogen Fluoride Review Fluoride Study: Report to Congress. Subcommittee of the Environmental Engineering Committee (EPA-SAB-EEC-93-004), b) SAB/EEC Consultation on Groundwater Modeling Pathways for Radioactive Wastes (EPA-SAB-EEC-CON-93-004), c) Review of the Office of Research and Development Underground Storage Tank Research Program. A report of the Underground Storage Tank Research Subcommittee of the Environmental Engineering Committee (EPA-SAB-EEC-93-008), d) Review of the Office of Research and Development Indoor Air Engineering Research and Development Program. A report of the Indoor Air Engineering Research Subcommittee of the Environmental Engineering Committee (EPA-SAB-EEC-93-009), e) Review of the OSWER Assessment Framework for Ground-Water Model Applications. A report of the Modeling Project Subcommittee of the Environmental Engineering Committee (EPA-SAB-EEC-93-013), f) Review of Draft Agency Guidance for Conducting External Peer Review of Environmental Regulatory Modeling. A letter report of the Modeling peer Review Subcommittee of the Environmental Engineering Committee (EPA-SAB-EEC-LTR-93-008), g) Review of OSWER/Office of Emergency and Remedial Response's draft Strategic Plan for Ground-Water Remediation at Superfund Sites (EPA-SAB-EEC-LTR-93-009), and h) Review of the Global Climate Change Engineering Research and Development Program -- A letter report of the Global Climate Change Engineering Research Subcommittee of the Environmental Engineering Committee (EPA-SAB-EEC-LTR-93-013).

The EEC is developing two additional reports, the Multimedia Mathematical Model (MMSOILS) review which deals with the Office of Solid Waste's (OSW's) RCRA-RIA, as well as OSW's sponsored research on Quantitative Data Quality Objectives (QDQO) for Monitoring Well Network Design being conducted at the Environmental Monitoring Systems Laboratory (EMSL), Las Vegas, NV.

Environmental Health Committee (EHC)

The EHC met twice (both times in conjunction with the Office of Pesticides' Scientific Advisory Panel), and conducted one public teleconference as part of the RCRA-RIA review. The Committee released three reports during the past year: a) Review of the draft Dermal Exposure Assessment Guidelines (EPA-SAB-EHC-93-006), b) Review of the Superfund Health Risk Assessment Guidance (EPA-SAB-EHC-93-007), and c) Review of the Draft Policy on Risk Assessment with Data on Cholinesterase Inhibition (EPA-SAB-EHC-93-011). The Committee's report on the health benefit estimates incorporated in the RCRA-RIA will be released in FY 1994.

Indoor Air Quality/Total Human Exposure Committee (IAQC)

The IAQC held one committee meeting during FY 1993 and issued one report and two letter reports: a) Review of the Office of Research and Development's Draft Report: "Respiratory Health Effects of Passive Smoking: Lung Cancer and Other Disorders" (EPA-SAB-IAQC-93-003), b) Review of the Risk Assessment Forum's Draft Guidance on Showering with VOC Contaminated Tap (EPA-SAB-IAQC-LTR-93-002), and c) Review of the Risk Assessment Forum's Draft Guidance Assessing on Health Risks of Gasoline Vapors in Buildings (EPA-SAB-IAQC-LTR-93-003).

Radiation Advisory Committee (RAC)

During the year the RAC completed two full reports, one letter report, and two commentaries. The two reports included: a) High Level Radioactive Waste/Carbon-14 Release (EPA-SAB-RAC-93-010), and b) Review of Uncertainty Analysis product of FY 1992 activity. In doing so, the RAC and its Radon Science Initiative Subcommittee conducted seven public meetings and another eleven two-hour conference-call public meetings. The completed reports were: a) Review of High-Level Radioactive Risks Associated with Exposure to Radon (EPA-SAB-RAC-93-014), c) Evaluation of the

SCIENCE ADVISORY BOARD

Agency's Proposed Methodology for Estimating Radiogenic Cancer Risks (EPA-SAB-RAC-LTR-93-004), d) Radon Mitigation Research Preliminary Finding (EPA-SAB-RAC-COM-93-001), and e) Quantitative Uncertainty Analysis for Radiological Assessments (EPA-SAB-RAC-COM-93-006). The Committee has also completed work on a report that will be reviewed by the Executive Committee in FY 1994: Radon Research Needs.

Research Strategies Advisory Committee (RSAC)

During FY 1993, the RSAC held one Subcommittee meeting, and released one report and one letter report: a) Social Science Research Review (EPA-SAB-RSAC-LTR-93-001), and b) Recommendations on Nominations for the 1993 Scientific and Technical Achievement Awards (EPA-SAB-RSAC-93-012).

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

SMALL NONROAD ENGINES NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING ADVISORY COMMITTEE (NRAC)

- 1. <u>PURPOSE</u>. This charter establishes the Small Nonroad Engines Negotiated Rulemaking Advisory Committee, in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA), 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c) and the Negotiated Rulemaking Act, 5 U.S.C. § 581-590.
- 2. <u>AUTHORITY</u>. It is determined that establishment of this Committee is in the public interest and supports EPA in performing its duties and responsibilities under Section 213, 42 U.S.C. 7547 of the Clean Air Act.
- 3. OBJECTIVE AND SCOPE OF ACTIVITY. The committee will serve as an integral part of EPA's development of a proposed rule to reduce air emissions from small nonroad engines under Section 213 of the Clean Air Act. Small nonroad engines are spark-ignition nonroad engines 25 horsepower and below, excluding engines used in marine propulsion or recreational propulsion applications. With the participation of knowledgeable, affected parties, EPA expects to develop a practical approach to a comprehensive regulatory program for control of air emissions from small nonroad engines. The negotiation committee will address key issues during the negotiations including, but not limited to: a control program of emissions related to small nonroad engines; standards and effective date; test procedures; fuel effects; in-use enforcement; evaporative and refueling emissions; market-based incentive programs; and compliance flexibility programs. In addition, the Committee's success or lack thereof will help EPA assess the procedures and circumstances which best foster successful regulatory negotiations.
- 4. <u>FUNCTIONS</u>. The Committee's function is to assist directly in the development of the proposed small nonroad engine regulations. It will attempt, via face-to-face negotiations, to reach consensus on concepts and language to use as the basis of a proposed rule under Section 213, 42 U.S.C. 7547 of the Clean Air Act.
- 5. <u>COMPOSITION</u>. The Committee will consist of approximately fifteen (15) members, plus a facilitator who will serve as chair. Members will represent the following segments of the population in appropriate mix and balance:
 - Engine and equipment manufacturers
 - Emission control manufacturers
 - Environmental and public health interests

- State government air programs
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Members will be selected and appointed for the duration of the negotiation. Most members will serve as representatives of non-Federal interests. A Federal Official or employee of the Agency will serve as the Designated Federal Officer and will be present at all meetings. The Designated Federal Officer is authorized to adjourn any meeting whenever it is determined to be in the public interest to do so. The Committee is authorized to form work groups for any purpose consistent with this Charter. Such work groups shall report back to the full Committee. Work groups have no authority to make decisions on behalf of the full Committee nor can they report directly to the Agency.

EPA may pay travel and per diem expenses when necessary and appropriate, and may compensate members as provided for under the Negotiated Rulemaking Act of 1990. The Committee's estimated annual operating cost is approximately \$120,000, which includes .4 work years of staff support. EPA's Office of Policy, Planning and Evaluation will provide administrative and process support to the Committee.

- 6. <u>MEETING</u>. Meetings shall be held as necessary, at the call of the Chair, with an agenda for each meeting approved in advance by the Designated Federal Officer. Committee meetings will be called, announced, and held in accordance with the EPA Committee Management Manual. This Manual contains the Agency's policies and procedures for implementing FACA. Among other things, FACA requires open meetings and an opportunity for interested persons to file comments before or after meetings, or to make statements to the extent that time permits.
- 7. <u>DURATION</u>. The Committee will terminate by May 31, 1995, unless the Agency determines that the Committee will finish its work within 30 days of the original termination date. If the Agency makes such a determination, it can extend the termination date by 30 days without further consultation with OMB. In the event more time is needed, EPA may seek an extension under Section 14 of FACA.

September 9, 1993

Approval Date

Carol M. Browner

Administrator

September 28, 1993
OMB Approval Date

September 30, 1993
Date Filed with Congress

SMALL NONROAD ENGINES NRAC

FACILITATOR

Ms. Lucy Moore Western Network 616 Don Gaspar Santa Fe. NM 87901

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Mrs. Deborah Dalton Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street, SW., MC-2136 Washington, DC 20460 (202) 260-5495

MEMBERS

Mr. Norman BeckNational Equipment-Servicing DealersAssociation, Inc.P.O. Box 2116Peoria, AZ 85380-2116

Mr. Bruce Bertlesen
Executive Director
Manufacturers of Emission
Controls Association
1707 L Street, NW #570
Washington, DC 20036-4201

Mr. Mac Dunaway
Portable Power Equipment
Manufacturers
Dunaway and Cross
1146 19th Street NW #400
Washington, DC 20036

Mr. Cliff Feldman
Feldman Engineering &
Manufacturing Company, Inc.
Hand-Held Ice & Earth Augur
Manufacturers Association
520 Forest Avenue, PO Box 908
Sheboygan Falls, WI 53085-0908

Mr. Gay MacGregor Assistant Director Certification Division Environmental Protection Agency 2565 Plymouth Road Ann Arbor, MI 48105

Mr. Jed Mandel Engine Manufacturers Association Two North LaSalle Street Chicago, IL 60602

Mr. Art Marin STAAPA/ALAPCO Northeast States Coordinated Air Use Management 129 Portland Street, #501 Boston, MA 02114

Ms. Gladys Meade American Lung Association Box 7000-866 Redondo Beach, CA 90277

Mr. Bill Scott
President-Engineering
Outdoor Power Equipment Institute
Murray Ohio Manufacturing Company
219 Franklin Road
Brentwood. TN 37027

SMALL NONROAD ENGINES NRAC

Ms. Deborah Sheiman Natural Resources Defense Council 1350 New York Avenue, NW, #300 Washington, DC 20005

Mr. Don F. Theiler Director-Bureau of Air Management Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources P.O. Box 7921 Madison, WI 53707

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The Small Nonroad Engines Negotiated Rulemaking Advisory Committee was chartered on September 30, 1993. The Committee adopted negotiation groundrules and a mission statement and generated a list of issues to be considered during the negotiation. The Committee has set dates for six meetings, through December, 1994 and has formed four working groups to present information and recommendations to the Committee. Deliberations are scheduled for completion in the Spring of 1995.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

SMALL TOWN ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING TASK FORCE

- 1. <u>PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY</u>. This charter establishes the Small Town Environmental Planning Task Force in accordance with provisions of the Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA), 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c), and the requirements of the Federal Facilities Compliance Act of 1992, 42 U.S.C. §6908 (b)(1)(Act).
- 2. SCOPE OF ACTIVITY. The Task Force shall:
- -- Identify regulations developed pursuant to federal environmental laws which pose significant compliance problems for small towns;
- -- identify means to improve the working relationship between the Environmental Protection Agency and small towns;
- -- review proposed regulations for the protection for the environment and public health and suggest revisions that could improve the ability of small towns to comply with such regulations; and
- -- identify means to promote regionalization of environment treatment systems and infrastructure service small towns to improve the economic condition of such systems and infrastructure; and provide such other assistance to the Administrator as the Administrator deems appropriate.
- 3. OBJECTIVES. The Task Force's objective is to carry out the requirements of the Act, as described at 42 U.S.C., § 6908(b)(2).
- 4. <u>COMPOSITION</u>. Pursuant to the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 6908(b)(1), the Task Force will be composed of representatives of small towns from different areas of the United States, federal and state governmental agencies, and public interest groups. The Task Force will consist of approximately 15 members appointed by the EPA Deputy Administrator or his designee, and may elect either to have a facilitator to serve as Chair, or elect a Chair from among the members. Members will be appointed for an initial term of one year. At the conclusion of the one-year period, members may be reappointed for one additional year, or new members may be appointed to serve on the Task Force.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

The Task Force is authorized to form subcommittees for any purpose consistent with this charter. Such subcommittees shall report back to the full committee and are subject to the requirements of FACA. Subcommittees have no authority to make decisions on behalf of the full committee nor can they report directly to the Agency.

5. <u>MEETINGS</u>. It is anticipated that the Task Force will meet at least two times each year for two years, or as necessary. An EPA employee will serve as the Designated Federal Officer (DFO) of the Task Force, will be present at all meetings, and is authorized to adjourn meetings whenever it is in the public interest. Committee meetings will be called, announced, and held in accordance with EPA's Committee Management Manual. This Manual contains the Agency's policies and procedures for implementing FACA. Among other things, FACA requires open meetings and an opportunity for interested persons to file written comments before or after meetings, or to make oral statements to the Task Force as permitted by their guidelines to the extent that time permits.

EPA may pay travel and per diem expenses when necessary and appropriate. The Task Force's estimated annual operating cost is approximately \$50,000, which includes 0.2 workyears of staff support. Each meeting will be conducted in accordance with an agenda approved in advance of the meeting by the Designated Federal Officer.

6. <u>DURATION</u>. Pursuant to 42.U.S.C., § 6908(b)(1), the Administrator shall terminate the Task Force not later than two years after the establishment of the Task Force.

January 24, 1994 Agency Approval Date

Robert M. Sussman
Deputy Administrator

January 26, 1994
Date Filed with Congress

CHAIRPERSON

Honorable Rueben Miller Mayor P.O. Box 14 Fairfield, ID 83327

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Ms. Ann Cole U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street, SW (1502) Washington, DC 20460 (202) 260-3953

MEMBERS

Ms. Cherie Aiazzi City Clerk/Treasurer P.O. Box 641 Carlin, NV 89822

Mr. Gerald Borovick, Supervisor Monroe Township Supvs. Clarion County Clarion County, PA R.D. 1, Box 145-A Sligo, PA 16255

Mr. Ralph O. Bowers City of Jasper P.O. Box 1148 Jasper, FL 32052

Mr. Ken Brazelius
Executive Director
Midwest Asst. Program
Lanesburg Twp. Rep.
LeSueur County
Planning and Zoning Commission
P.O. Box 81
New Pargue, MN 56071

Sister Mary Beth Larkin El Paso Interfaith Services Org. 1281 Alabama Street El Paso, TX 79903 Honorable Joan Smith Lawson Mayor P.O. Box 736 Mountain View, MO 65548

Mr. David Lewis, Director Vermont League of Cities and Towns Town Manager Box 8264 Rutland, VT 05701

Honorable Samuel Monrreal, Mayor Village of Vinton 436 Vinton Road Vinton, TX 79835

Mr. Robbie Roberts, Secretary
Department of Environment and
Natural Resources
State of South Dakota
P.O. Box 398
Pierre, SD 57501

Mr. Mike Springer
Office of Economic Policy
U.S. Department of Treasury
National Rural Development
Office of Economic Policy
Initiative
Washington, DC 20220

SMALL TOWN ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING TASK FORCE

Ms. Ginny Tierney City Administrator P.O. Box 19110 Thorne Bay, AK 99919

Mr. Paul Torok Manager Seeley Lake-Missoula County Water Dist. P.O. Box 874 Seeley Lake, MT 59868

Ms. Joanne Zaumetzer, Supervisor P.O. Box 445 Town of Wilmington, NY 12997

NOTE: Terms expire January 26, 1995

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The Task Force held its organizational meeting March 3-4, 1994 and discussed its statutory responsibilities to identify regulations posing significant compliance problems for small towns; identify means to improve the working relationship between EPA and small towns; review proposed regulations and suggest revisions that could improve the ability of small towns to comply; and identify means to promote regionalization.

The Task Force preliminarily identified a list of significant proposed or current regulations:

- surface water treatment
- nonpoint source pollution
- watershed protection
- Safe Drinking Water Act monitoring provisions
- NPDES stormwater
- storage/disposal of low-level radioactive waste
- RCRA Subtitle D Landfills
- sludge disposal
- wetlands
- Davis-Bacon Law on wages
- underground storage tank compliance dates
- lead and copper
- stormwater
- combined sewer overflows
- Oil Pollution Control Act actions

Members stressed that although individual rules can be a problem, the overriding concern is the basic ability of small towns to comply. After a substantive dialogue addressing various facets of small town concerns, the Task Force elected to form a subcommittee for the purpose of drafting a resolution to be considered at the next meeting. The resolution would address the unique nature of America's small communities, and the need to treat small towns differently in the regulatory process.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHARTER

WOOD FURNITURE MANUFACTURING INDUSTRY NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING ADVISORY COMMITTEE (NRAC)

- 1. <u>PURPOSE</u>. This charter establishes the Wood Furniture Manufacturing Industry Negotiated Rulemaking Advisory Committee, in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA), 5 U.S.C. App. 2, §9(c), and the Negotiated Rulemaking Act, 5 U.S.C. Sections 581-590.
- 2. <u>AUTHORITY</u>. It is determined that establishment of this Committee is in the public interest and supports the EPA in performing its duties and responsibilities under Section 112 and Section 183 of the Clean Air Act (CAA), as amended.
- 3. OBJECTIVE AND SCOPE OF ACTIVITY. The Committee will serve as an integral part of the EPA's development of a rulemaking approach to control hazardous air pollutants (HAP's) and volatile organic compounds (VOC's) from wood furniture manufacturing operations. It will attempt, via face-to-face negotiations, to reach consensus on concepts and language to use as the basis of a national emission standard for hazardous air pollutants (NESHAP) implementing Section 112 and a control techniques guideline (CTG) implementing Section 183 of the CAA, as amended.
- 4. <u>FUNCTIONS</u>. The Committee's function is to assist directly in the development of rules to control HAP emissions, and guidelines to reduce VOC emissions from wood furniture manufacturing operations. With the participation of knowledgeable, affected parties, the EPA expects to develop a practical approach to controlling these emissions at less cost than traditional rulemaking. In addition, the Committee's success or lack thereof will help the EPA assess the procedures and circumstances which best foster successful negotiations.
- 5. <u>COMPOSITION</u>. The Committee will consist of approximately 25 members. Members will represent the following segments of the population in appropriate mix and balance:
 - Affected Industry
 - U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
 - State and Local Air Pollution Agencies
 - Environmental Groups

Appropriate members will be selected and appointed for the duration of the negotiation itself. A full-time salaried official or regular employee of the EPA will serve as the Designated Federal Officer and will be present at all meetings. The Designated Federal Officer is authorized to adjourn any meeting whenever it is determined to be in the public interest to do so. The Committee is authorized to form work groups for any purpose consistent with this Charter. Such work groups shall report back to the full Committee. Work groups have no authority to make decisions on behalf of the full Committee nor can they report directly to the EPA.

The EPA may pay travel and per diem expenses when necessary and appropriate, and may compensate members as provided for under the Negotiated Rulemaking Act of 1990. The Committee's estimated annual operating cost is approximately \$50,000, which includes .3 work years of staff support. The EPA's Office of Policy, Planning and Evaluation will provide administrative and process support to the Committee.

- 6. <u>MEETINGS</u>. Meetings shall be held as necessary, at the call of the Chair, with an agenda for each meeting approved in advance by the Designated Federal Officer. Committee meetings will be called, announced, and held in accordance with the EPA Committee Management Manual. This manual contains the EPA's policies and procedures for implementing the FACA. Among other things, FACA requires open meetings and an opportunity for interested persons to file comments before or after meetings, or to make statements to the extent that time permits.
- 7. <u>DURATION</u>. The Committee will terminate 1 year after establishment, unless the Agency determines that the Committee will finish its work within 30 days of the original termination date. If the Agency makes such a determination, we can extend the termination date by 30 days without further consultation with OMB. In the event more time is needed, the EPA may seek an extension under Section 14 of the FACA.

April 21, 1993 Agency Approval Date Carol M. Browner
Administrator

May 26, 1993 OMB Approval Date

June 8, 1993
Date Filed with Congress

WOOD FURNITURE MANUFACTURING INDUSTRY NRAC

FACILITATORS

Mr. John Lingelbach CDR Associates 130 Arapahoe Avenue Suite 12 Boulder, CO 80302

Ms. Susan Wildau CDR Associates 130 Arapahoe Ave. Suite 12 Boulder, CO 80302

DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICER

Mr. Chris Kirtz Environmental Protection Agency 401 M Street, S.W., 2136 Washington, DC 20460 (202) 260-7565

MEMBERS

Business and Institutional Furniture

Mr. William Deal Bernhardt Furniture Co. 1839 Morganton Blud, S.W. P.O. Box 740 Lenoir, NC 28645

Ms. Susan E. Perry Business & Institution Furn. Mfg. Assn. C/O Miller, Johnson, Snell & Cummiskey 800 Calder Plaza Bldg. Grand Rapids, MI 49503

Kitchen Cabinets

Mr. Paul J. Eisele, Ph.D. MASCO Corporation 21001 Van Born Rd. Taylor, MI 48180

Residential Furniture

Broyhill Furniture One Broyhill Park P.O. Box 700 Lenoir, NC 28633

Mr. Mike Soots Kincaid Furniture Inc. P.O.Box 605 Hudson, NC 28648

Coatings

Mr. G.M. Currier AKZO Coatings Inc. P.O. Box 2124 High Point, NC 27261

WOOD FURNITURE MANUFACTURING INDUSTRY NRAC

Mr. Andy Riedell PPG Industries Greensboro Customer Service Lab. 7601 Business Park Dr. Greensboro, NC 27409

Mr. Richard Titus Kitchen Cabinet Mfg. Association 1899 Preston White Drive Reston, VA 22091-4326 Mr. Jack Burgess Pridgen Cabinet Works, Inc. RT. 2, Box 36 Whiteville, NC 28472

Mr. William Dorris Lilly Industries P.O. Box 2358 High Point, NC 27265

Resins

Mr. John P. DeVido Aqualon 1313 N. Market Street P.O. Box 8740 Wilmington, DE 19899-8740

Mr. Peter Nicholson Rohm and Haas West Institute Philadelphia, PA 19105 Mr. David Rothermel Stylecraft Corporation P.O. Box 458 Blueball, PA 17506

Mr. John Zeltsman Architectural Woodwork Independence Mall 17 Westview Avenue Ossining, NY 10562

Medium-Sized Furniture Companies

Mr. Randall B. Shepard McGuire Furniture 1201 Bryant Street San Francisco, CA 94103

Environmental Protection Agency

Mr. Jack Edwardson Emission Standards Division OAQPS, MD-20 RTP, NC 27711

WOOD FURNITURE MANUFACTURING INDUSTRY NRAC

Air Pollution Agencies

Mr. Freeman Allen Sierra Club 394 Blaisdell Drive Claremont, CA 91711

Mr. Terry Black Planning Section PA Dept. of Env. Resources Bureau of Air & Quality Control P.O. Box 2357 Harrisburg, PA 17120-2357

Mr. Jon Heinrich Wisconsin Dept. of Natural Resources Bureau of Air Management, AM-7 101 So. Webster P.O. Box 7921 Madison, WI 53707

Mr. Alan Klimek North Caroline Dept. of Env. Health & Nat. Resources, Planning Unit P.O. Box 29535 Raleigh, NC 27626-0535

Ms. Janet Vail
West Michigan
Environmental Action Council
Research Associate
Water Resources Institute
Grand Valley State University
Allendale, MI 49401

Mr. Stephen Willcox
American Lung Association of
North Carolina
916 West Morgan Street
P.O. Box 27985
Raleigh, NC 27611

Pollution Prevention

Mr. Gary Hunt North Carolina Office of Water Reduction P.O. Box 28687 Raleigh, NC 27611

Mr. Brian Morton North Carolina Environmental Defense Fund 128 E. Hargett Street Suite 202 Raleigh, NC 27601

RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The Wood Furniture Manufacturing Advisory Committee held four plenary and over twenty workgroup meetings. It is now close to full consensus on a proposed rule which would control Volatile Organic Compounds [VOCs] and Hazardous Air Pollutants [HAPs] generated in the manufacturing and finishing of wood furniture. The group also is close to full consensus on a Control Techniques Guideline, a document which the states use to help them determine best available industry pollution abatement techniques.



APPENDICES

COMMITTEE ABBREVIATION	REPORT TITLE	REPORT CODE	DATE REPORT FILED BY
BSAC	PLANT PESTICIDES IN FOOD PLANTS AND EXEMPTION FROM FFDCA, JULY 13, 1993		09/10/93
CAAAC	INTRODUCTORY GUIDE TO SMART IMPLEMENTATIONJUNE 1992		02/28/94
CAAAC	A PRIMER ON CONSENSUS-BUILDINGSEPTEMBER 1992		02/28/94
CAAAC	A GUIDE TO PUBLIC FINANCING OPTIONSSEPTEMBER 1992		02/28/94
CAACAC	REVIEW OF THE OFFICE OF POLICY, PLANNING AND EVALUATION'S AND THE OFFICE OF AIR & RADIATION'S PROGRESS ON PROSPECTIVE STUDY OF IMPACTS OF THE CAA	LTR-93-011	08/12/93
FACILITIES	INTERIM REPORT OF THE FEDERAL FACILITIES ENVIRONMENTAL RESTORATION DIALOGUE COMMITTEE		08/31/93
FIFRA/BSAC	SET OF SCIENTIFIC ISSUES CONSIDERED BY AGENCY IN CONNEC. W/PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO SUBDIV. F GUIDELINE REGRMNTS FOR IMMUNOTOX. TESTING/SCREENING ASSAYS		02/28/94
FIFRA/BSAC	SET OF SCIENTIFIC ISSUES CONSIDERED BY AGENCY IN CONNEC. W/DEVELOPMENT OF HARMONIZED TEST GUIDELINES FOR REPRO. TOXICITY		02/28/94
FIFRA/BSAC	SET OF SCIENTIFIC ISSUES CONSIDERED BY AGENCY IN CONNEC. W/DEVELOPMENT OF A STD EVAL. PROCEDURE FOR REPRODUCTIVE TOXICITY		02/28/94
FIFRA/BSAC	SET OF SCIENTIFIC ISSUES CONSIDERED BY AGENCY IN CONNEC. W/PROPOSED REVISIONS TO A DEVELOPMENT OF TOXICITY GUIDELINE		02/28/94
FIFRA/BSAC	SET OF SCIENTIFIC ISSUES BEING CONSIDERED BY AGENCY IN CONNEC. W/THE DEVELOPMENT OF GUIDELINES FOR DERMAL ABSORPTION		02/28/94
FIFRA/BSAC	SET OF SCIENTIFIC ISSUES BEING CONSIDERED BY AGENCY IN CONNEC. W/PROPOSED REVISIONS TO THE INHALATION TOXICITY GUIDELINES		02/28/94
FIFRASAP	A SET OF SCIENTIFIC ISSUES BEING CONSIDERED BY AGENCY IN CONNECTION W/REVIEW OF ANTIMICROBIAL TEST METHODOLOGY RESEARCH AND PROTOCOL REVIEW PROCESS		10/12/93

COMMITTEE ABBREVIATIO	N REPORT TITLE	REPORT CODE	DATE REPORT FILED BY
FIFRASAP	REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF FIFRA SAP'S REVIEW OF THE NOTICE OF INTENT TO CANCEL SPORICIDIN AND WIPEOUT REGISTRATIONS5/19/93		10/19/93
FIFRASAP	REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF FIFRASAP'S REVIEW OF PROPOSED/FINAL RULE TO EXEMPT NATURAL CEDAR PESTICIDES FR. REGS. UNDER AUTH. OF FIFRA SEC 25(b)6/11/93		10/19/93
FIFRASAP	REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF FIFRA SAP'S REVIEW OF THE PROPOSED RULE REVISING 40 CFR 156.106/24/93		10/19/93
FIFRASAP	A SET OF SCIENTIFIC ISSUES BEING CONSIDERED BY THE AGENCY IN CONNECTION W/REVIEW OF ANTIMICROBIAL TEST METHOD. RESEARCH/PROTOCOL REVIEW PROCESS8/24		10/19/93
FIFRASAP	A SET OF SCIENTIFIC ISSUES BEING CONSIDERED BY THE AGENCY IN CONNECTION W/PROPOSED REGULATION OF PLANT PESTICIDES12/18/92		10/19/93
FIFRASAP	A SET OF SCIENTIFIC ISSUES BEING CONSIDERED BY THE AGENCY IN CONNECTION W/ALDICARB AND ALDICARB SULFONE11/6/92		10/19/93
FIFRASAP	A SET OF SCIENTIFIC ISSUES BEING CONSIDERED BY AGENCY IN CONNECTION W/ DEVELOPMENT OF STANDARD CLINICAL METHOD. FOR ASSESSING CHOLINESTERASE ACTIVITY.		01/10/94
FIFRASAP	SET OF SCIENTIFIC ISSUES BEING CONSIDERED BY AGENCY IN CONNECTION W/DEVELOPMENT OF A STD CLINICAL METHODOLOGY FOR ASSESSING CHOLINESTERASE ACTIVITY		01/10/94
FIFRASAP	SET OF SCIENTIFIC ISSUES BEING CONSIDERED BY AGENCY IN CONNECTION W/PROPOSED REGULATION OF PLANT PESTICIDES		02/28/94
GOMP	ESTUARINE ASSESSMENT AND CONTAMINANT PROBLEM IDENTIFICATION4/23-25/1991		10/19/93
GOMP	PUBLIC HEALTH ACTION AGENDA FOR THE GULF OF MEXICO9/1993	300-K-93-001	10/19/93
GOMP	MARINE DEBRIS ACTION AGENDA FOR THE GULF OF MEXICO9/1993	300-K-93-002	10/19/93

COMMITTEE ABBREVIATION	REPORT TITLE	REPORT CODE	DATE REPORT FILED BY
NACEPT	MEASURING SUCCESS OF SOURCE REDUC. OF TRI CHEM. AND DRAFT CRITERIA FOR EVAL. WASTE MINIMIZATION PROJECTIONS IN STATE'S CAPACITY ASSURANCE PLANS, 1/93		10/18/93
NACEPT	ESTABLISHMENT OF A CENTER FOR ENVIRONMENTAL STATISTICS AT EPA: INTERIM RECOMMENDATIONS, 10/92		10/18/93
NACEPT	MEASURING PROGRESS IN CHEMICAL ACCIDENT PREVENTION, 11/92		10/18/93
NACEPT	TRANSFORMING ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITTING AND COMPLIANCE POLICIES TO PROMOTE POLLUTION PREVENTION: APRIL 1993	100-R-93-004	10/18/93
NACEPT	PROGRESSIVE ENVIRONMENTAL MGMT: LEVERAGING REGULATORY AND VOLUNTARY ACTIONMARCH 1993	100-8-93-001	10/18/93
NACEPT	IMPROVING TECHNOLOGY DIFFUSION FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTIONOCTOBER 1992	130-R-92-001	10/18/93
NACEPT	BUILDING STATE AND LOCAL POLLUTION PREVENTION PROGRAMS: STATUS AND TRENDS/FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONSDECEMBER 1992	130-R-93-001	10/18/93
NACEPT-CAP	MEASURING PROGRESS IN CHEMICAL ACCIDENT PREVENTION		08/17/92
NACEPT-TEC	THE GREENING OF WORLD TRADE	100-R-93-002	05/12/93
NDWAC	REAUTHORIZATION OF THE SAFE DRINKING WATER ACT, MAY 1993		06/17/93
NDWAC	REAUTHORIZATION OF THE SAFE DRINKING WATER ACT, MAY 1993		08/31/93
NDWAC	SAFE DRINKING WATER REAUTHORIZATION ISSUES JUNE 12, 1993		06/07/94
SAB-CAACAC	REVIEW OF AGENCY'S STUDY TO ANALYZE IMPACTS OF CAA	LTR-93-006	04/20/94
SAB-CAACAC	REVIEW OF OFC OF POLICY, PLNG, & EVAL. AND OFC OF AIR AND RADIATION'S PROGRESS ON RETROSPECTIVE AND PROSPECTIVE STUDIES OF IMPACTS OF CLEAN AIR ACT	LTR-93-007	05/14/93
SAB-CASAC	SAB NOTIFICATION OF A CONSULTATION ON PRIORITIZING THE 189 HAZARDOUS AIR POLLUTANTS LISTED IN 1990 CLEAN AIR ACT AMENDMENTS	92-002	01/06/92

COMMITTEE ABBREVIATION	REPORT TITLE	REPORT CODE	DATE REPORT FILED BY	
SAB-CASAC	DATA SETS FOR PM10	COM-94-005	05/19/94	
SAB-DWC	REVIEW OF DRINKING WATER RESEARCH PROGRAM AT THE HEALTH EFFECTS RESEARCH LABORATORY (HERL)	93-001	02/16/93	
SAB-DWC	REVIEW OF OFFICE OF GROUNDWATER AND DRINKING WATER APPROACH TO THE COSTS OF RADON CONTROL OR MITIGATION EXPERIENCED BY HOUSEHOLDS OR COMMUNITIES	93-015	08/12/93	
SAB-DWC	REVIEW OF ISSUES	93-015	04/20/94	
SAB-DWC	REVIEW OF METHODOLOGY	93-016	04/20/94	
SAB-DWC	REVIEW OF INDOOR AIR ISSUE PLAN	94-008	05/19/94	
SAB-DWC	ALTERNATIVE DISINFECTANT AND DISINFECTANT BY-PRODUCTS	COM-92-008	11/10/92	
SAB-DWC	REQUIREMENTS FOR NATIONWIDE APPROVAL OF NEW/OPTIONALLY REVISED METHODS FOR INORGANIC/ORGANIC ANALYSES IN NAT'L PRIMARY DRINKING WATER REGS MONITORING	COM-93-002	04/30/93	
SAB-DWC	NOTIFICATION OF A CONSULTATION ON THE DRAFT DRINKING WATER CRITERIA DOCUMENTS FOR CHLORINE AND FOR CHLORAMINES	CON-93-001	02/16/93	
SAB-DWC	REVIEW OF THE DRINKING WATER CRITERIA DOCUMENT FOR CRYPTOSPORIDIUM	LTR-92-011	11/10/92	
SAB-DWC	REVIEW OF THE DRINKING WATER CRITREIA DOCUMENT FOR CHLORINE DIOXIDE	LTR-92-012	11/10/92	
SAB-DWC	REVIEW OF THE VIRAL TRANSPORT (VIRALT) MODEL	LTR-92-013	11/10/92	
SAB-DWC	REVIEW OF THE CRITERIA DOCUMENT ON OZONE AND OZONATION BY-PRODUCTS	LTR-92-014	11/10/92	
SAB-EC	FY 1992 ANNUAL REPORT TO THE STAFF DIRECTOR		12/01/92	
	REVIEW OF AGENCY'S CHAFEE-LAUTENBERG STUDY OF RISKS FR. RADON EXPOSURE/COSTS OF MITIGATING SUCH RISKS	COM-93-003	05/13/93	

COMMITTEE ABBREVIATION	REPORT TITLE	REPORT CODE	DATE REPORT FILED BY
SAB-EC	REVIEW OF MULTIMEDIA RISK AND COST ASSESSMENT OF RADON IN DRINKING WATER	LTR-93-010	08/12/93
SAB-EEAC	OFFICE OF POLICY, PLANNING, AND EVAULATION'S STUDY OF ENVIRONMENTAL ACCOUNTING, CHEASAPEAKA	COM-92-010	11/10/92
SAB-EEAC	NOTIFICATION OF A CONSULTATION ON THE COMPREHENSIVE ENVIRONMENTAL ECON. POLICY EVAL. SYSTEM (CEEPES)	CON-94-003	03/31/94
SAB-EEAC	NOTIFICATION OF A CONSULTATION ON COMPREHENSIVE ENVIRONMENTAL ECONOMIC POLICY EVALUATION SYSTEMMARCH 31, 1994	CON-94-003	03/31/94
SAB-EEAC	COMMENTS "HEALTH-HEALTH CONCEPT"	LTR-93-005	04/20/94
SAB-EEC	REVIEW OF EXPLOSIVES AND FLAMMABLES CRITERIA	92-020	11/10/92
SAB-EEC	REVIEW OF BIOREMEDIATION RESEARCH PROGRAM STRATEGY	92-026	11/10/92
SAB-EEC	REVIEW OF HYDROGEN FLUORIDE STUDY: REPORT TO CONGRESS	93-004	02/16/93
SAB-EEC	UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS	93-008	04/20/94
SAB-EEC	INDOOR AIR ENGINEERING RESEARCH SUBCOMMITTEE	93-009	04/20/94
SAB-EEC	REPORT OF MODELING PROJECT SUBCOMMITTEE	93-013	04/20/94
SAB-EEC	COMENTARY ON STRATEGIC RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT PLANNING, MAY 16, 1994	COM-94-004	05/26/94
SAB-EEC	REVIEW OF SUPERFUND GROUND-WATER STRATEGIC PLAN & SUPERFUND DENSE NON-AQUEOUS PHASE LIQUIDS (DNAPL'S)	CON-92-005	11/10/92
SAB-EEC	CONSULTATION ON GROUNDWATER MODELING PATHWAYS FOR RADIOACTIVE WASTES	CON-93-004	04/12/93
SAB-EEC	NOTIFICATION OF A CONSULTATION ON SOIL SCREENING LEVELS	CON-94-002	03/29/94
SAB-EEC	NOTIFICATION OF A CONSULTATION ON SOIL SCREENING LEVELSMARCH 29, 1994	CON-94-002	03/31/94

COMMITTEE ABBREVIATION	REPORT TITLE	REPORT CODE	DATE REPORT FILED BY	
SAB-EEC	REVIEW OF DRAFT AGENCY GUIDANCE FOR CONDUCTING EXTERNAL PEER REVIEW OF ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATORY MODELING	LTR-93-008	07/15/93	
SAB-EEC	REVIEW OF OSWER/OFFICE OF EMERGENCY & REMEDIAL RESPONSE'S DRAFT STRATEGIC PLAN FOR GW REMEDIATION AT SUPERFUND SITES	LTR-93-009	07/23/93	
SAB-EEC	LETTER REPORT GLOBAL CLIMATE CHANGE	LTR-93-013	04/20/94	
SAB-EHC	REVIEW OF TTHE OFFICE OF RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT'S DRAFT STRATEGY FOR HEALTH EFFECTS RESEARCH ON CHEMICAL MIXTURES	92-001	11/10/92	
SAB-EHC	REVIEW OF OFFICE OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE'S DRAFT FORMALDEHYDE RISK ASSESSMENT UPDATE	92-021	11/10/92	
SAB-EHC	REVIEW DERMAL EXPOSURE	93-006	04/20/94	
SAB-EHC	REVIEW OF OSW & EMERGENCY RESPONSES DRAFT RISK ASSESSMENT GUIDANCE FOR SUPERFUND HUMAN HEALTH EVALUATION MANUAL BY THE ENVIRON. HEALTH CMTE, FEB 1993	93-007	02/23/93	
SAB-EHC	CHOLINESTERASE INHIBITION	93-011	04/20/94	
SAB-EHC	SCIENCE ADVISORY BOARD/SCIENTIFIC ADVISORY PANEL'S REVIEW OF POTENTIAL CARCINOGENICITY OF THE HERBICIDE 2,4-D.	94-005	03/22/94	
SAB-EHC	REVIEW OF THE POTENTIAL CARCINOGENICITY OF THE HERBICIDE 2,4-DMARCH 22, 1994	94-005	03/31/94	
SAB-EPEC	EVALUATION OF EPA'S ECOLOGICAL RISK ASSESSMENT RESEARCH PROGRAM	92-006	11/10/92	
SAB-EPEC	REVIEW OF THE PROCESS AND RATIONALE FOR DEVELOPING ECOLOGICAL RISK ASSESSMENT GUIDELINES	92-023	11/10/92	
SAB-EPEC	REVIEW OF RATIONALE FOR DEVELOPMENT OF AMBIENT AQUATIC LIFE WATER QUALITY CRITERIA FOR TCDD (DIOXIN)	92-024	11/10/92	
SAB-EPEC	REVIEW OF SYNOPTIC NATIONAL ASSESSMENT OF COMPARATIVE RISKS TO BIOLOGICAL DIVERSITY AND LANDSCAPES TYPES	92-025	11/10/92	

e septim tipo cotto e co de cot

The second of th

COMMITTEE ABBREVIATION	RÉPORT TITLE	REPORT CODE	DATE REPORT
SAB-EPEC	REVIEW OF SEDIMENT CRITERIA	93-002	04/20/94
SAB-EPEC	REVIEW OF THE STRATEGIC PLAN FOR TERRESTRIAL ELEMENTS OF EPA'S GLOBAL CHANGE RESEARCH PROGRAM	94-014	05/14/94
SAB-EPEC	REVIEW OF STRATEGIC PLAN FOR TERRESTRIAL ELEMENTS OF EPA'S GLOBAL CHANGE RESEARCH PROGRAM, MAY 16, 1994	94-014	04/20/94
SAB-EPEC	NOTIFICATION OF A CONSULTATION ON PLANS FOR THE HABITAT	CON-92-006	11/10/92
SAB-EPEC	NOTIFICATION OF A CONSULTATION WITH THE HABITAT CLUSTER ON EPA'S HABITAT STRATEGY	CON-93-003	02/16/93
SAB-EPEC	NOTIFICATION OF A CONSULTATION ON THE ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING AND ASSESSMENT PROGRAM'S ASSESSMENT HIERARCHY	CON-93-005	07/27/93
SAB-EPEC	PROPOSED REVISIONS AQUATIC LIFE	CON-93-006	04/20/94
SAB-EPEC	REVIEW OF THE ALASKAN BIOREMEDIATION OIL SPILL PROJECT	LTR-92-015	11/10/92
SAB-EPEC	COMMENTARYCOASTAL ECOSYSTEMS	LTR-93-012	04/20/94
SAB-EPEC/DW	EVALUATION OF THE GUIDANCE FOR THE GREAT LAKES WATER QUALITY	93-005	02/16/93
SAB-IAQTH	REVIEW OF DRAFT PASSIVE SMOKING HEALTH EFFECTS DOCUMENT	93-003	02/16/93
SAB-IAQTH	REVIEW OF RISK ASSESSMENT FORUM'S DRAFT GUIDANCE DOC ON SHOWERING WITH VOC CONTAMINATED TAP WATER	LTR-93-002	02/16/93
SAB-IAQTH	REVIEW OF THE RISK ASSESSMENT FORUM'S DRAFT GUIDANCE DOC ON ASSESSING HEALTH RISKS OF GASOLINE VAPORS IN BUILDINGS	LTR-93-003	02/16/93
SAB-IAQTHE	REVIEW OF THE UPTAKE BIOKINETIC (UBK) MODEL FOR LEAD	92-016	11/10/92
SAB-RAC	REVIEW OF THE RELEASE OF CARBON-14 IN GASEOUS FORM FROM HIGH-LEVEL WASTE DISPOSAL	93-010	04/29/93
SAB-RAC	REVIEW OF UNCERTAINTY ANALYSIS OF RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH EXPOSURE TO RADON"CHAFEE-LAUTENBERG MULTI-MEDIA RISK STUDY"	93-014	07/27/93

COMMITTEE	REPORT TITLE	REPORT	DATE REPORT
ABBREVIATION		CODE	FILED BY
SAB-RAC	DIFFUSE NATURALLY OCCURRING RADIOACTIVE MATERIALS (NORM) DRAFT SCOP	94-013	05/16/94

PUBLIC LAW 92-463 92ND CONGRESS, H.R. 4383 OCTOBER 6, 1972

"FEDERAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE ACT"

Public Law 92-463

[H. R. 4383]

AN ACT

To authorize the establishment of a system governing the creation and operation of advisory committees in the executive branch of the Federal Government, and for other purposes.

Federal Advisory Committee Act.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States of America in Congress assembled, That this Act may be cited as the "Federal Advisory Committee Act".

FINDINGS AND PURPOSES

Sec. 2. (a) The Congress finds that there are numerous committees, boards, commissions, councils, and similar groups which have been established to advise officers and agencies in the executive branch of the Federal Government and that they are frequently a useful and beneficial means of furnishing expert advice, ideas, and diverse opinions to the Federal Government.

(b) The Congress further finds and declares that-

(1) the need for many existing advisory committees has not

been adequately reviewed;

(2) new advisory committees should be established only when they are determined to be essential and their number should be

kept to the minimum necessary;
(3) advisory committees should be terminated when they are no longer carrying out the purposes for which they were estab-

lished;

(4) standards and uniform procedures should govern the establishment, operation, administration, and duration of advisory committees:

(5) the Congress and the public should be kept informed with respect to the number, purpose, membership, activities, and cost

of advisory committees; and

(6) the function of advisory committees should be advisory only, and that all matters under their consideration should be determined, in accordance with law, by the official, agency, or officer involved.

DEFINITIONS

SEC. 3. For the purpose of this Act—

(1) The term "Director" means the Director of the Office of

- Management and Budget.
 (2) The term "advisory committee" means any committee, board, commission, council, conference, panel, task force, or other similar group, or any subcommittee or other subgroup thereof (hereafter in this paragraph referred to as "committee"), which
 - (A) established by statute or reorganization plan, or (B) established or utilized by the President, or
- (C) established or utilized by one or more agencies, in the interest of obtaining advice or recommendations for the President or one or more agencies or officers of the Federal Government, except that such term excludes (i) the Advisory Commission on Intergovernmental Relations, (ii) the Commission on Government Procurement, and (iii) any committee which is composed wholly of full-time officers or employees of the Federal Government.

(3) The term "agency" has the same meaning as in section

551(1) of title 5, United States Code.
(4) The term "Presidential advisory committee" means an advisory committee which advises the President.

80 Stat. 381.

Restrictions.

APPLICABILITY

Sec. 4. (a) The provisions of this Act or of any rule, order, or regulation promulgated under this Act shall apply to each advisory committee except to the extent that any Act of Congress establishing any such advisory committee specifically provides otherwise.

(b) Nothing in this Act shall be construed to apply to any advisory

committee established or utilized by-

(1) the Central Intelligence Agency; or

(2) the Federal Reserve System.

(c) Nothing in this Act shall be construed to apply to any local civic group whose primary function is that of rendering a public service with respect to a Federal program, or any State or local committee, council, board, commission, or similar group established to advise or make recommendations to State or local officials or agencies.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONGRESSIONAL COMMITTEES

Sec. 5. (a) In the exercise of its legislative review function, each standing committee of the Senate and the House of Representatives shall make a continuing review of the activities of each advisory committee under its jurisdiction to determine whether such advisory committee should be abolished or merged with any other advisory committee, whether the responsibilities of such advisory committee should be revised, and whether such advisory committee performs a necessary function not already being performed. Each such standing committee shall take appropriate action to obtain the enactment of legislation necessary to carry out the purpose of this subsection.

(b) In considering legislation establishing, or authorizing the establishment of any advisory committee, each standing committee of the Senate and of the House of Representatives shall determine, and report such determination to the Senate or to the House of Representatives, as the case may be, whether the functions of the proposed advisory committee are being or could be performed by one or more agencies or by an advisory committee already in existence, or by enlarging the mandate of an existing advisory committee. Any such

legislation shall-

(1) contain a clearly defined purpose for the advisory committee;

(2) require the membership of the advisory committee to be fairly balanced in terms of the points of view represented and the functions to be performed by the advisory committee;

(3) contain appropriate provisions to assure that the advice and recommendations of the advisory committee will not be inappropriately influenced by the appointing authority or by any special interest, but will instead be the result of the advisory committee's independent judgment;

(4) contain provisions dealing with authorization of appropriations, the date for submission of reports (if any), the duration of the advisory committee, and the publication of reports and other materials, to the extent that the standing committee determines the provisions of section 10 of this Act to be inadequate; and

Review.

Guidelines.

(5) contain provisions which will assure that the advisory committee will have adequate staff (either supplied by an agency or employed by it), will be provided adequate quarters, and will have funds available to meet its other necessary expenses.

(c) To the extent they are applicable, the guidelines set out in subsection (b) of this section shall be followed by the President, agency heads, or other Federal officials in creating an advisory committee.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PRESIDENT

Sec. 6. (a) The President may delegate responsibility for evaluating and taking action, where appropriate, with respect to all public recommendations made to him by Presidential advisory committees.

(b) Within one year after a Presidential advisory committee has submitted a public report to the President, the President or his delegate shall make a report to the Congress stating either his proposals for action or his reasons for inaction, with respect to the recommendations contained in the public report.

Annual report to Congress.

Report to Con-

(c) The President shall, not later than March 31 of each calendar year (after the year in which this Act is enacted), make an annual report to the Congress on the activities, status, and changes in the composition of advisory committees in existence during the preceding calendar year. The report shall contain the name of every advisory committee, the date of and authority for its creation, its termination date or the date it is to make a report, its functions, a reference to the reports it has submitted, a statement of whether it is an ad hoc or continuing body, the dates of its meetings, the names and occupa-tions of its current members, and the total estimated annual cost to the United States to fund, service, supply, and maintain such committee. Such report shall include a list of those advisory committees abolished by the President, and in the case of advisory committees established by statute, a list of those advisory committees which the President recommends be abolished together with his reasons therefor. The President shall exclude from this report any information which, in his judgment, should be withheld for reasons of national security, and he shall include in such report a statement that such information is excluded.

Exclusion.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET

Committee Management Secretariat, establishment.

Review.

SEC. 7. (a) The Director shall establish and maintain within the Office of Management and Budget a Committee Management Secretariat, which shall be responsible for all matters relating to advisory committees.

(b) The Director shall, immediately after the enactment of this Act, institute a comprehensive review of the activities and responsibilities of each advisory committee to determine—

(1) whether such committee is carrying out its purpose;
(2) whether, consistent with the provisions of applicable statutes, the responsibilities assigned to it should be revised;
(3) whether it should be merged with other advisory commit-

tees; or

(4) whether is should be abolished. The Director may from time to time request such information as he deems necessary to carry out his functions under this subsection. Upon the completion of the Director's review he shall make recommendations to the President and to either the agency head or the Congress with respect to action he believes should be taken. Thereafter, the Director shall carry out a similar review annually. Agency heads shall cooperate with the Director in making the reviews required by this subsection.

Recommendations to President and Congress.

Agency cooperation. 86 STAT.] PUBLIC LAW 92-463-OCT. 6, 1972

(c) The Director shall prescribe administrative guidelines and management controls applicable to advisory committees, and, to the maximum extent feasible, provide advice, assistance, and guidance to advisory committees to improve their performance. In carrying out his functions under this subsection, the Director shall consider the recommendations of each agency head with respect to means of improving the performance of advisory committees whose duties are related to

(d) (1) The Director, after study and consultation with the Civil guidelines Service Commission, shall establish guidelines with respect to uniform fair rates of pay for comparable services of members, staffs, and consultants of advisory committees in a manner which gives appropriate recognition to the responsibilities and qualifications required and other relevant factors. Such regulations shall provide that-

(A) no member of any advisory committee or of the staff of any advisory committee shall receive compensation at a rate in excess of the rate specified for GS-18 of the General Schedule under section 5332 of title 5, United States Code; and

B) such members, while engaged in the performance of their duties away from their homes or regular places of business, may be allowed travel expenses, including per diem in lieu of subsistence, as authorized by section 5703 of title 5, United States Code, as Stat. 190. for persons employed intermittently in the Government service.

(2) Nothing in this subsection shall prevent-(A) an individual who (without regard to his service with an advisory committee) is a full-time employee of the United States,

(B) an individual who immediately before his service with an advisory committee was such an employee, from receiving compensation at the rate at which he otherwise would be compensated (or was compensated) as a full-time employee of the United States.

(e) The Director shall include in budget recommendations a summendations.

Expense recommendations. mary of the amounts he deems necessary for the expenses of advisory committees, including the expenses for publication of reports where appropriate.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF AGENCY HEADS

SEC. 8. (a) Each agency head shall establish uniform administrative guidelines and management controls for advisory committees established by that agency, which shall be consistent with directives of the Director under section 7 and section 10. Each agency shall maintain systematic information on the nature, functions, and operations of each advisory committee within its jurisdiction.

(b) The head of each agency which has an advisory committee shall designate an Advisory Committee Management Officer who shall-

(1) exercise control and supervision over the establishment, Officer, designaprocedures, and accomplishments of advisory committees established by that agency;

(2) assemble and maintain the reports, records, and other papers of any such committee during its existence; and

(3) carry out, on behalf of that agency, the provisions of section 552 of title 5. United States Code, with respect to such reports, records, and other papers.

81 Stat. 54.

ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE OF ADVISORY COMMITTEES

Sec. 9. (a) No advisory committee shall be established unless such establishment is-

(1) specifically authorized by statute or by the President; or

5 USC \$332

Travel expenses.

80 Stat. 499;

Advisory Comment Control

Publication in Federal Register.

(2) determined as a matter of formal record, by the head of the agency involved after consultation with the Director, with timely notice published in the Federal Register, to be in the public interest in connection with the performance of duties imposed on that agency by law.

(b) Unless otherwise specifically provided by statute or Presidential directive, advisory committees shall be utilized solely for advisory functions. Determinations of action to be taken and policy to be expressed with respect to matters upon which an advisory committee reports or makes recommendations shall be made solely by the Presi-

dent or an officer of the Federal Government.

Charter, filing.

(c) No advisory committee shall meet or take any action until an advisory committee charter has been filed with (1) the Director, in the case of Presidential advisory committees, or (2) with the head of the agency to whom any advisory committee reports and with the standing committees of the Senate and of the House of Representatives having legislative jurisdiction of such agency. Such charter shall contain the following information:

Contents.

(A) the committee's official designation;

(B) the committee's objectives and the scope of its activity; (C) the period of time necessary for the committee to carry out its purposes;

(D) the agency or official to whom the committee reports; (E) the agency responsible for providing the necessary support for the committee;

(F) a description of the duties for which the committee is responsible, and, if such duties are not solely advisory, a specification of the authority for such functions;

(G) the estimated annual operating costs in dollars and man-

years for such committee;

(H) the estimated number and frequency of committee meetings;

(I) the committee's termination date, if less than two years

from the date of the committee's establishment; and

Copy.

(J) the date the charter is filed. A copy of any such charter shall also be furnished to the Library of Congress.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE PROCEDURES

Meetings.

Register.

SEC. 10. (a) (1) Each advisory committee meeting shall be open to

the public.

Notice, publica-(2) Except when the President determines otherwise for reasons of tion in Federal national security, timely notice of each such meeting shall be published Regulations. in the Federal Register, and the Director shall prescribe regulations to provide for other types of public notice to insure that all interested persons are notified of such meeting prior thereto.

(3) Interested persons shall be permitted to attend, appear before, or file statements with any advisory committee, subject to such reason-

able rules or regulations as the Director may prescribe.

81 Stat. 54.

(b) Subject to section 552 of title 5, United States Code, the records, reports, transcripts, minutes, appendixes, working papers, drafts, studies, agenda, or other documents which were made available to or prepared for or by each advisory committee shall be available for public inspection and copying at a single location in the offices of the advisory committee or the agency to which the advisory committee reports until the advisory committee ceases to exist.

Minutes.

(c) Detailed minutes of each meeting of each advisory committee shall be kept and shall contain a record of the persons present, a complete and accurate description of matters discussed and conclusions reached, and copies of all reports received, issued, or approved by the

Certification.

81 Stat. 54.

Annual report.

Federal officer or employee, at-

PUBLIC LAW 92-463-OCT. 6, 1972 86 STAT.]

advisory committee. The accuracy of all minutes shall be certified to

by the chairman of the advisory committee.

(d) Subsections (a) (1) and (a) (3) of this section shall not apply to any advisory committee meeting which the President, or the head of the agency to which the advisory committee reports, determines is concerned with matters listed in section 552(b) of title 5, United States Code. Any such determination shall be in writing and shall contain the reasons for such determination. If such a determination is made, the advisory committee shall issue a report at least annually setting forth a summary of its activities and such related matters as would be informative to the public consistent with the policy of section 552(b) of title 5, United States Code.

(e) There shall be designated an officer or employee of the Federal Government to chair or attend each meeting of each advisory committee. The officer or employee so designated is authorized, whenever he determines it to be in the public interest, to adjourn any such meeting. No advisory committee shall conduct any meeting in the absence of that

officer or employee.

(f) Advisory committees shall not hold any meetings except at the call of, or with the advance approval of, a designated officer or employee of the Federal Government, and in the case of advisory committees (other than Presidential advisory committees), with an agenda approved by such officer or employee.

AVAILABILITY OF TRANSCRIPTS

SEC. 11. (a) Except where prohibited by contractual agreements entered into prior to the effective date of this Act, agencies and advisory committees shall make available to any person, at actual cost of duplication, copies of transcripts of agency proceedings or advisory committee meetings.

(b) As used in this section "agency proceeding" means any proceeding as defined in section 551 (12) of title 5, United States Code.

"Agency proceeding."
80 Stat. 382.

FISCAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

SEC. 12. (a) Each agency shall keep records as will fully disclose the disposition of any funds which may be at the disposal of its advisory committees and the nature and extent of their activities. The General Services Administration, or such other agency as the President may designate, shall maintain financial records with respect to Presidential advisory committees. The Comptroller General of the United States, or any of his authorized representatives, shall have access, for the purpose of audit and examination, to any such records.

(b) Each agency shall be responsible for providing support services for each advisory committee established by or reporting to it unless the establishing authority provides otherwise. Where any such advisory committee reports to more than one agency, only one agency shall be responsible for support services at any one time. In the case of Presidential advisory committees, such services may be provided by the

General Services Administration.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF LIBRARY OF CONGRESS

SEC. 13. Subject to section 552 of title 5, United States Code, the background Director shall provide for the filing with the Library of Congress of at papers. least eight copies of each report made by every advisory committee and, where appropriate, background papers prepared by consultants. The Librarian of Congress shall establish a depository for such reports and papers where they shall be available to public inspection and use.

Recordkeeping.

Audit.

Agency support services.

Reports and

Depository.

Renewal.

Continuation.

TERMINATION OF ADVISORY COMMITTEES

SEC. 14. (a) (1) Each advisory committee which is in existence on the effective date of this Act shall terminate not later than the expiration of

the two-year period following such effective date unless

(A) in the case of an advisory committee established by the President or an officer of the Federal Government, such advisory committee is renewed by the President or that officer by appropriate action prior to the expiration of such two-year period; or

(B) in the case of an advisory committee established by an Act of Congress, its duration is otherwise provided for by law.

(2) Each advisory committee established after such effective date shall terminate not later than the expiration of the two-year period beginning on the date of its establishment unless—

(A) in the case of an advisory committee established by the President or an officer of the Federal Government such advisory committee is renewed by the President or such officer by appropriate action prior to the end of such period; or

(B) in the case of an advisory committee established by an Act

of Congress, its duration is otherwise provided for by law (b) (1) Upon the renewal of any advisory committee, such advisory

committee shall file a charter in accordance with section 9(c). (2) Any advisory committee established by an Act of Congress shall file a charter in accordance with such section upon the expiration of each successive two-year period following the date of enactment of the Act establishing such advisory committee.

(3) No advisory committee required under this subsection to file a charter shall take any action (other than preparation and filing of such charter) prior to the date on which such charter is filed.

(c) Any advisory committee which is renewed by the President or any officer of the Federal Government may be continued only for successive two-year periods by appropriate action taken by the President or such officer prior to the date on which such advisory committee would otherwise terminate.

EFFECTIVE DATE

SEC. 15. Except as provided in section 7(b), this Act shall become effective upon the expiration of ninety days following the date of enactment.

Approved October 6, 1972,

Public Law 92-464

October 6, 1972 [H. J. Res. 807]

Authorizing the President to proclaim the second full week in October of 1972 as "National Legal Secretaries' Court Observance Week"

JOINT RESOLUTION

National Legal Secretaries' Court Observance Week. Designation authorization.

Resulved by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States of America in Congress assembled, That the President is hereby authorized and requested to issue a proclamation designating the second full week in October 1972 as "National Legal Secretaries Court Observance Week", and calling upon the people of the United States to observe such week with appropriate ceremonies and activities.

Approved October 6, 1972.

GSA FINAL RULE, AS AMENDED

SUBPART 101-6.10 -- FEDERAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE MANAGEMENT

\$ 101-6.1001 Scope.

(a) This subpart defines the policies, establishes minimum requirements, and provides guidance to agency management for the establishment, operation, administration, and duration of advisory committees subject to the Federal Advisory Committee Act, as amended. Reporting requirements which keep the Congress and the public informed of the number, purpose, membership, activities, and cost of these advisory committees are also included.

(b) The Act and this subpart do not apply to advisory meetings or groups listed in \$ 101-6.1004.

\$ 101-6.1002 Policy.

The policy to be followed by Federal departments, agencies, and commissions, consistent with the Federal Advisory Committee Act, as amended, is as follows:

- (a) An advisory committee shall be established only when it is essential to the conduct of agency business. Decision criteria include whether committee deliberations will result in the creation or elimination of, or change in regulations, guidelines, or rules affecting agency business; whether the information to be obtained is already available through another advisory committee or source within the Federal Government; whether the committee will make recommendations resulting in significant improvements in service or reductions in cost; or whether the committee's recommendations will provide an important additional perspective or viewpoint impacting agency operations;
- (b) An advisory committee shall be terminated whenever the stated objectives of the committee have been accomplished; the subject matter or work of the committee has become obsolete by the passing of time or the assumption of the committee's main functions by another entity within the Federal Government; or the agency determines that the cost of operation is excessive in relation to the benefits accruing to the Federal Government;
- (c) An advisory committee shall be fairly balanced in its membership in terms of the points of view represented and the functions to be performed; and
- (d) An advisory committee shall be open to the public in its meetings except in those circumstances where a closed meeting shall be determined proper and consistent with the provisions in the Government in the Sunshine Act, 5 U.S.C. 552(b).

§ 101-6.1003 Definitions.

- "Act" means the Federal Advisory Committee Act, as amended, 5 U.S.C., App.
- "Administrator" means the Administrator of General Services.
- "Advisory committee" subject to the Act means any committee, board, commission, council, conference, panel, task force, or other similar group, or any subcommittee or other subgroup thereof, which is established by statute, or established or utilized by the President or any agency official for the purpose of obtaining advice or recommendations on issues or policies which are within the scope of his or her responsibilities.
- "Sissues or policies which are within the scope of his or her responsibilities.

 "Agency" has the same meaning as in section 551(1) of Title 5 of the United States Code.

 "Committee Management Secretariat" ("Secretariat"), established pursuant to the Act is responsible for all matters relating to advisory committees, and carries out the Administrator's responsibilities under the Act and Executive Order 12024.

"Committee member" means an individual who serves by appointment on an advisory committee and has the full right and obligation to participate in the activities of the committee, including voting on committee recommendations.

"Presidential advisory committee" means any advisory committee which advises the President. It may be established by the President or by the Congress, or used by the President in the interest of obtaining advice or recommendations for the President. "Independent Presidential advisory committee" means any Presidential advisory committee not assigned by the President, or the President's delegate, or by the Congress in law, to an agency for administrative and other support and for which the Administrator of General Services may provide administrative and other support on a reimbursable basis.

"Staff member" means any individual who serves in a support capacity to an advisory committee.

"Utilized" (or "used"), as referenced in the definition of "Advisory committee" in this

FEDERAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS (AMENDICINT A-48, AUGUST 1989)

section, means a committee or other group composed in whole or in part of other than full-time officers or employees of the Federal Government with an established existence outside the agency seeking its advice which the President or agency official(s) adopts, such as through institutional arrangements, as a preferred source from which to obtain advice or recommendations on a specific issue or policy within the scope of his or her responsibilities in the same manner as that individual would obtain advice or recommendations from an established advisory committee.

\$ 101-6.1004 Examples of advisory meetings or groups not covered by the Act or this subpart.

The following are examples of advisory meetings or groups not covered by the Act or this subpart:

- (a) Any committee composed wholly of full-time officers or employees of the Federal Government;

 - (b) Any advisory committee specifically exempted by an Act of Congress;(c) Any advisory committee established or utilized by the Central Intelligence Agency;
 - (d) Any advisory committee established or utilized by the Federal Reserve System;(e) The Advisory Committee on Intergovernmental Relations;
- (f) Any local civic group whose primary function is that of rendering a public service with respect to a Federal program, or any State or local committee, council, board, commission, or similar group established to advise or make recommendations to State or local officials or agencies;
- (g) Any committee which is established to perform primarily operational as opposed to advisory functions. Operational functions are those specifically provided by law, such as making or implementing Government decisions or policy. An operational committee may be covered by the Act if it becomes primarily advisory in nature. It is the responsibility of the administering agency to determine whether such a committee is primarily operational. If so, it would not fall under the requirements of the Act and this subpart, but would continue to be regulated under relevant laws, subject to the direction of the President and the review of the appropriate legislative committees;
- (h) Any meeting initiated by the President or one or more Federal official(s) for the purpose of obtaining advice or recommendations from one individual;
- (i) Any meeting initiated by a Federal official(s) with more than one individual for the purpose of obtaining the advice of individual attendees and not for the purpose of utilizing the group to obtain consensus advice or recommendations. However, agencies should be aware that such a group would be covered by the Act when an agency accepts the group's deliberations as a source of consensus advice or recommendations;
- (j) Any meeting initiated by a group with the President or one or more Federal official(s) for the purpose of expressing the group's view, provided that the President or Federal official(s) does not use the group recurrently as a preferred source of advice or recommendations;
- (k) Meetings of two or more advisory committee or subcommittee members convened solely to gather information or conduct research for a chartered advisory committee, to analyze relevant issues and facts, or to draft proposed position papers for deliberation by the advisory committee or a subcommittee of the advisory committee; or
- (1) Any meeting with a group initiated by the President or one or more Federal official(s) for the purpose of exchanging facts or information.
- \$ 101-6.1005 Authorities for establishment of advisory committees.

An advisory committee may be established in one of four ways:

- (a) By law where the Congress specifically directs the President or an agency to establish it;
- (b) By law where the Congress authorizes but does not direct the President or an agency to establish it. In this instance, the responsible agency head shall follow the procedures provided in § 101-6.1007; (c) By the President by Executive Order; or
- (d) By an agency under general agency authority in Title 5 of the United States Code or under other general agency-authorizing law. In this instance, an agency head shall follow

FEDERAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS (AMENDMENT A-48, AUGUST 1999)

624

the procedures provided in \$ 101-6.1007.

\$ 101-6.1006 (Reserved)

g 101-6.1007 Agency procedures for establishing advisory committees.

(a) When an agency head decides that it is necessary to establish a committee, the agency must consider the functions of similar committees in the same agency before submitting a consultation to GSA to ensure that no duplication of effort will occur.

(b) In establishing or utilizing an advisory committee, the head of an agency or

designee shall comply with the Act and this subpart, and shall:

(1) Prepare a proposed charter for the committee which includes the information listed in section 9(c) of the Act; and

(2) Submit a letter and the proposed charter to the Secretariat proposing to establish or use, reestablish, or renew an advisory committee. The letter shall include the following information:

(i) An explanation of why the committee is essential to the conduct of agency

business and in the public interest;

- (ii) An explanation of why the committee's functions cannot be performed by the agency, another existing advisory committee of the agency, or other means such as a public
- hearing; and (iii) A description of the agency's plan to attain balanced fairly membership. plan will ensure that, in the selection of members for the committee, the agency will consider a cross-section of those directly affected, interested, and qualified, as appropriate to the nature and functions of the committee. Committees requiring technical expertise should include persons with demonstrated professional or personal qualifications

and experience relevant to the functions and tasks to be performed.

(3) Subcommittees that do not function independently of the full or parent advisory committee need not follow the requirements of paragraphs (b)(1) and (b)(2) of this

- section. However, they are subject to all other requirements of the Act.

 (4) The requirements of paragraphs (b)(1) and (b)(2) of this section shall apply for any subcommittee of a chartered advisory committee, whether its members are drawn in whole or in part from the full or parent advisory committee, which functions independently of the parent advisory committee such as by making recommendations directly to the agency rather than for consideration by the chartered advisory committee.
- (c) The Secretariat will review the proposal and notify the agency of GSA's views within 15 calendar days of receipt, if possible. The agency head retains final authority for

establishing a particular advisory committee.
(d) The agency shall notify the Secretariat in writing that either:

(1) The advisory committee is being established. The filing of the advisory committee charter as specified in \$ 101-6.1013 shall be considered appropriate written notification in this instance. The date of filing constitutes the date of establishment or renewal. The agency head shall then comply with the provisions of \$ 101-6.1009 for an established advisory committee; or

(2) The advisory committee is not being established. In this instance, the agency shall also advise the Secretariat if the agency head intends to take any further action

with respect to the proposed advisory committee.

\$ 101-6.1008 The role of GSA.

(a) The functions under section 7 of the Act will be performed for the Administrator by the Secretariat. The Secretariat assists the Administrator in prescribing administrative guidelines and management controls for advisory committees, and assists other agencies in implementing and interpreting these guidelines. In exercising internal controls over the management and supervision of the operations and procedures vested in each agency by section 8(b) of the Act and by § 101-6.1009 and § 101-6.1017 of this rule, agencies shall conform to the guidelines prescribed by GSA.

(b) The Secretariat may request comments from agencies on management guidelines and

policy issues of broad interagency interest or application to the Federal advisory

committee program.

(c) In advance of issuing informal guidelines, nonstatutory reporting requirements, and administrative procedures such as report formats or automation, the Secretariat shall

> FEDERAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS (AMENDMENT A-48, AUGUST 1989)

request formal or informal comments from agency Committee Management Officers.

(d) The Secretariat shall assure that follow-up reports required by section 6(b) of the Act are prepared and transmitted to the Congress as directed by the President; either by his delegate, by the agency responsible for providing support to a Presidential advisory committee, or by the responsible agency or organization designated pursuant to paragraph (c) of § 101-6.1011. In performing this function, GSA may solicit the assistance of the Office of Management and Budget and other appropriate organizations, as deemed appropriate.

\$ 101-6.1009 Responsibilities of an agency head.

The head of each agency that uses one or more advisory committees shall ensure:

(a) Compliance with the Act and this subpart;(b) Issuance of administrative guidelines and management controls which apply to all advisory committees established or used by the agency;

(c) Designation of a Committee Management Officer who shall carry out the functions specified in section 8(b) of the Act;

- (d) Provision of a written determination stating the reasons for closing any advisory
- committee meeting to the public;
 (e) A review, at least annually, of the need to continue each existing advisory committees, consistent with the public interest and the purpose and functions of each committee:

(f) Rates of pay are justified and levels of agency support are adequate;

(g) The appointment of a Designated Federal Officer for each advisory committee and its subcommittees;

(h) The opportunity for reasonable public participation in advisory committee activities;

(i) That the number of committee members is limited to the fewest necessary to

accomplish committee objectives.

- (j) That the interests and affiliations of advisory committee members are reviewed consistent with regulations published by the Office of Government Ethics in 5 CFR Parts 734, 735, and 737, and additional requirements, if any, established by the sponsoring agency pursuant to Executive Order 12674, the conflict-of-interest statutes, and the
- Ethics in Government Act of 1978, as amended; and (k) Unless otherwise specified by the President, the preparation and transmittal of a follow-up report report to the Congress detailing the disposition of the public recommendations of a Presidential advisory committee supported by the agency, in accordance with section 6(b) of the Act.
- **\$** 101-6.1010 (Reserved)
- \$ 101-6.1011 Responsibilities of the chairperson of an independent Presidential advisory committee.

The chairperson of an independent Presidential advisory committee shall comply with the Act and this subpart and shall:

- (a) Consult with the Administrator concerning the role of the Designated Federal Officer and Committee Management Officer;
- (b) Fulfill the responsibilities of an agency head as specified in paragraphs (d), (h) and (j) of § 101-6.1009; and
- Unless otherwise specified by the President, consult with the Administrator regarding the designation of an agency or organization responsible for implementing section 6(b) of the Act.
- \$ 101-6.1012 (Reserved)
- \$ 101-6.1013 Charter filing requirements.

No advisory committee may operate, meet, or take any action until its charter has been filed as follows:

(a) Advisory committee established, used, reestablished, or renewed by an agency. The agency head shall file -

> FEDERAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS (AMENDMENT A-48, AUGUST 1989)

626

- (1) The charter with the standing committees of the Senate
- and the House of Representatives having legislative jurisdiction of the agency; (2) A copy of the filed charter with the Library of Congress, Exchange and Gift Division, Federal Documents Section, Federal Advisory Committee Desk, Washington, DC 20540; and
- (3) A copy of the charter indicating the Congressional filing date, with the Secretariat.
- (b) Advisory committee specifically directed by law or authorized by law. Procedures are the same as in paragraph (a) of this section.
- (c) Presidential advisory committee. When either the President or the Congress establishes an advisory committee that advises the President, the responsible agency head or, in the case of an independent Presidential advisory committee, the President's designee shall file -
 - (1) The charter with the Secretariat;
- (2) A copy of the filed charter with the Library of Congress; and (3) If specifically directed by law, a copy of the charter indicating its date of filing with the Secretariat, with the standing committees of the Senate and the House of Representatives having legislative jurisdiction of the agency or the independent Presidential advisory committee.

§ 101-6.1014 (Reserved)

\$ 101-6.1015 Advisory committee information which must be published in the Pederal Register.

- (a) Committee establishment, reestablishment, or renewal.
- (1) A notice in the Federal Register is required when an advisory committee, except a committee specifically directed by law or established by the President by Executive Order, is established, used, reestablished, or renewed. Upon receiving notification of the completed review from the Secretariat in accordance with paragraph (c) of § 101-6.1007, the agency shall publish a notice in the Federal Register that the committee is being established, used, reestablished, or renewed. For a new committee, such notice snall also describe the nature and purpose of the committee and the agency's plan to attain fairly balanced membership, and shall include a statement that the committee is necessary and in the public interest.
- (2) Establishment and reestablishment notices shall appear at least 15 calendar days before the committee charter is filed, except that the Secretariat may approve less than 15 days when requested by the agency for good cause. The 15-day advance notice requirement does not apply to committee renewals, notices of which may be published concurrently with the filing of the charter.
 - (b) Committee meetings.
- (1) The agency or an independent Presidential advisory committee shall publish at least 15 calendar days prior to an advisory committee meeting a notice in the Federal Register, which includes:
 - (i) The exact name of the advisory committee as chartered;
 - (ii) The time, date, place, and purpose of the meeting;(iii) A summary of the agenda; and
- A statement whether all or part of the meeting is open to the public or (iv) closed, and if closed, the reasons why, citing the specific exemptions of the Government in the Sunshine Act (5 U.S.C. 552(b)) as the basis for closure.

 (2) In exceptional circumstances, the agency or an independent Presidential advisory
- committee may give less than 15 days notice, provided that the reasons for doing so are included in the committee meeting notice published in the Federal Register.

\$ 101-6.1016 (Reserved)

\$ 101-6.1017 Responsibilities of the agency Committee Management Officer.

In addition to implementing the provisions of section 8(b) of the Act, the Committee Management Officer will carry out all responsibilities delegated by the agency head. The Committee Management Officer should also, ensure that sections 10(b), 12(a) and 13 of the

> FEDERAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS (AMENDMENT A-48, AUGUST 1989)

Act are implemented by the agency to provide for appropriate recordkeeping. Records include, but are not limited to:

- (a) A set of approved charters and membership lists for each advisory committee;
- (b) Copies of the agency's portion of the Annual Report of Federal Advisory Committees required by paragraph (b) of \$ 101-6.1035;
- (c) Agency guidelines on committee management operations and procedures as maintained
- and updated; and
 (d) Agency determinations to close advisory committee meetings as required by paragraph (c) of \$ 101-6.1023.
- \$ 101-6.1018 (Reserved)
- § 101-6.1019 Duties of the Designated Federal Officer.

The agency head or, in the case of an independent Presidential advisory committee, the

Administrator shall designate a Federal officer or employee, who may be either full-time or permanent part-time, to be the Designated Federal Officer for each advisory committee and its subcommittees, who:

- (a) Must approve or call the meeting of the advisory committee;
- (b) Must approve the agenda;
- (c) Must attend the meetings;
- (d) Shall adjourn the meetings when such adjournment is in the public interest; and

(e) Chairs the meeting when so directed by the agency head.

- (f) The requirement in paragraph (b) of this section does not apply to a Presidential advisory committee.
- \$ 101-6.1020 (Reserved)
- § 101-6.1021 Public participation in advisory committee meetings.

The agency head, or the chairperson of an independent Presidential advisory committee,

- shall ensure that (a) Each advisory committee meeting is held at a reasonable time and in a place reasonably accessible to the public;
- (b) The meeting room size is sufficient to accommodate advisory committee members,
- committee or agency staff, and interested members of the public; (c) Any member of the public is permitted to file a written statement with the advisory committee; and
- (d) Any member of the public may speak at the advisory committee meeting if the agency's guidelines so permit.
- \$ 101-6.1022 (Reserved)
- \$ 101-6.1023 Procedures for closing an advisory committee
- (a) To close all or part of a meeting, an advisory committee shall submit a request to the agency head or, in the case of an independent Presidential advisory committee, the Administrator, citing the specific provisions of the Government in the Sunshine Act (5 U.S.C. 552(b)) which justify the closure. The request shall provide the agency head or the Administrator sufficient time to review the matter in order to make a determination

prior to publication of the meeting notice required by \$ 101-6.1015(b).

(b) The general counsel of the agency or, in the case of an independent Presidential advisory committee, the general counsel of the General Services Administration should

review all requests to close meetings.

- (c) If the agency head or, in the case of an independent Presidential advisory committee, the Administrator agrees that the request is consistent with the provisions in the Government in the Sunshine Act and the Federal Advisory Committee Act, he or sne snall issue a determination that all or part of the meeting be closed.
- (d) The agency head, or the chairperson of an independent Presidential advisory committee, shall:

FEDERAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS

(AMENDMENT A-48, AUGUST 1989)

- (1) Make a copy of the determination available to the public upon request; and (2) State the reasons why all or part of the meeting is closed, citing the specific exemptions used from the Government in the Sunshine Act in the meeting notice published in
- the Federal Register.

§ 101-6.1024 (Reserved)

- \$ 101-6.1025 Requirement for maintaining minutes of advisory committee meetings.
- (a) The agency head or, in the case of an independent Presidential advisory committee, the chairperson shall ensure that detailed minutes of each advisory committee meeting are kept. The minutes must include:

 - (1) Time, date, and place;(2) A list of the following persons who were present:
 - (i) Advisory committee members and staff;
 - (11) Agency employees; and

 - (iii) Members of the public who presented oral or written statements;(3) An estimated number of other members of the public present;
- (4) An accurate description of each matter discussed and the resolution, if any, made by the committee of such matter; and
 (5) Copies of each report or other document received, issued, or approved by the
- committee.
- (b) The chairperson of each advisory committee shall certify to the accuracy of all minutes of advisory committee meetings.
- 5 101-6.1026 (Reserved)
- 5 101-6.1027 Termination of advisory committees.
- (a) Any advisory committee shall automatically terminate not later than 2 years after it is established, reestablished, or renewed, unless:
 - (1) Its duration is otherwise provided for by law;
 - (2) The President or agency head renews it prior to the end of such period; or (3) The President or agency head terminates it before that time by revoking or
- abolishing its establishment authority. (b) If an agency head terminates an advisory committee, the agency shall notify the
- Secretariat of the effective date of termination.
- S 101-6.1028 (Reserved)
- \$ 101-6.1029 Renewal and rechartering of advisory committees.
 - (a) Advisory committees specifically directed by law:
- (a) Advisory committees specifically directed by law:

 (1) Whose duration extends beyond 2 years shall require rechartering by the filing of a new charter every 2 years after the date of enactment of the law establishing the committee. If a new charter is not filed, the committee is not terminated, but may not meet or take any action.
- (2) Which would terminate under the provisions of section 14 of the Act, and for which renewal would require reauthorization by law, may be reestablished by an agency provided that the agency complies under general agency authority with the provisions of \$ 101-6.1007.
- (b) Advisory committees established by the President may be renewed by appropriate action of the President and the filing of a new charter.
- (c) Advisory committees authorized by law or established or used by an agency may be renewed, provided that at least 30 but not more than 60 days before the committee terminates, an agency head who intends to renew a committee complies with the provisions of § 101-6,1007.
- \$ 101-6.1030 (Reserved)

FEDERAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS (AMENDMENT A-48, AUGUST 1989)

628.1

- \$ 101-6.1031 Amendments to advisory committee charters.
- (a) Committees specifically directed by law or authorized by law; or established by the President. The agency head shall be responsible for ensuring that any minor technical changes made to current charters are consistent with the relevant statute or Executive Order. When the Congress by law, or the President by Executive Order, changes the authorizing language which has been the basis for establishing an advisory committee, the agency head, or the chairperson of an independent Presidential advisory committee, shall:

(1) Amend those sections of the current charter affected by the new law or Executive

Order; and

- (2) File the amended charter as specified in § 101-6.1013.
- (b) Committees established or used by an agency. The charter of an advisory committee established under general agency authority may be amended when an agency head determines that the existing charter no longer accurately reflects the objectives or functions of the committee. Changes may be minor, such as revising the name of the advisory committee, or modifying the estimated number or frequency of meetings. Changes may also be major such as those dealing with the objectives or composition of the committee. The agency head retains final authority for amending the charter of an advisory committee. Amending any existing advisory committee charter does not constitute renewal of the committee under \$ 101-6.1029.
 - (1) To make a minor amendment to a committee charter, an agency shall:

(1) Amend the charter language as necessary, and

- (ii) File the amended charter as specified in \$ 101-6.1013.
- (2) To make a major amendment to a committee charter, an agency shall:(i) Amend the charter language as necessary,
- (ii) Submit the proposed amended charter with a letter to the Secretariat requesting GSA's views on the amended language, along with an explanation of the purpose of the changes and why they are necessary. The Secretariat will review the proposed changes and notify the agency of GSA's views within 15 calendar days of the request, if possible; and (iii) File the amended charter as specified in § 101-6.1013.
- \$ 101-6.1032 (Reserved)
- \$ 101-6.1033 Compensation and expense reimbursement of advisory committee members, staffs and consultants.
- (a) Uniform pay guidelines for members of an advisory committee. Nothing in this subpart shall require an agency head to provide compensation, unless otherwise provided by law, to a member of an advisory committee. However, when compensation is deemed appropriate by an agency, it shall fix the pay of the members of an advisory committee to the daily equivalent of a rate of the General Schedule in 5 U.S.C. 5332 unless the members are appointed as consultants and compensated under 5 U.S.C. 3109. In determining an appropriate rate of pay for the members, an agency shall give consideration to the significance, scope, and technical complexity of the matters with which the advisory committee is concerned and the qualifications required of the members of the advisory committee. An agency may not fix the pay of the members of an advisory committee at a rate higher than the daily equivalent of the maximum rate for a GS-15 under the General Schedule, unless a higher rate is mandated by statute, or the head of the agency has personally determined that a higher rate of pay under the General Schedule is justified and necessary. Such a determination must be reviewed by the head of the agency annually. Under this subpart, an agency may not fix the pay of the members of an advisory committee at a rate of pay higher than the daily equivalent of a rate for a GS-18, as provided in 5 U.S.C. 5332.
- (b) Pay for staff members of an advisory committee. An agency may fix the pay of each advisory committee staff member at a rate of the General Schedule in which the Staff member's position would appropriately be placed (5 U.S.C. Chapter 51). An agency may not fix the pay of a staff member at a rate higher than the daily equivalent of the maximum rate for GS-15, unless the agency head has determined that under the General Schedule the staff member's position would appropriately be placed at a grade higher than GS-15. This
- determination must be reviewed annually by the agency head.

 (1) In establishing rates of compensation, the agency head shall comply with any applicable statutes, regulations, Executive Orders, and administrative guidelines.

FEDERAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS (AMENDMENT A-48, AUGUST 1989)

628.2

- (2) A staff member who is a Federal employee shall serve with the knowledge of the Designated Federal Officer and the approval of the employee's direct supervisor. If a non-Federal employee, the staff member shall be appointed in accordance with applicable agency procedures, following consultation with the advisory committee.
- (c) Pay for consultants to an advisory committee. An agency shall fix the pay of a consultant to an advisory committee after giving consideration to the qualifications required of the consultant and the significance, scope, and technical complexity of the work. The compensation may not exceed the maximum rate of pay authorized by 5 U.S.C. 3109, and shall be in accordance with any applicable statutes, regulations, Executive Orders and administrative guidelines.

(d) Gratuitous services. In the absence of any special limitations applicable to a specific agency, nothing in this subpart shall prevent an agency from accepting the gratuitous services of an advisory committee member, staff member, or consultant who agrees in advance to serve without compensation.

- (e) Travel expenses. Advisory committee members and staff members, while engaged in the performance of their duties away from their homes or regular places of business, may be allowed travel expenses, including per diem in lieu of subsistence, as authorized by section 5703 of Title 5, United States Code, for persons employed intermittently in the Government service.
- (f) Services for handicapped members. While performing advisory committee duties, an advisory committee member who is blind or deaf or who qualifies as a handicapped individual may be provided services by a personal assistant for handicapped employees if the member:
- (1) Qualifies as a handicapped individual as defined by section 501 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794); and
- (2) Does not otherwise qualify for assistance under 5 U.S.C. 3102 by reason of being an employee of an agency.
- (g) Exclusions.
 (1) Nothing in this section shall prevent any person who (without regard to his or her service with an advisory committee) is a full-time Federal employee from receiving compensation at a rate at which he or she otherwise would be compensated as a full-time Federal employee.

(2) Nothing in this section shall prevent any person who immediately before his or her service with an advisory committee was a full-time Federal employee from receiving compensation at the rate at which he or she was compensated as a full-time Federal employee.

(3) Nothing in this section shall affect a rate of pay or a limitation on a rate of pay that is specifically established by law or a rate of pay established under the General Schedule classification and pay system in chapter 51 and chapter 53 of Title 5, United States Code.

§ 101-6.1034 (Reserved)

- \$ 101-6.1035 Reports required for advisory committees.
- (a) Within one year after a Presidential advisory committee has submitted a public report to the President, a follow-up report will be prepared and transmitted to the Congress as determined under paragraph (d) of \$101-6.1008, detailing the deposition of the committee's recommendations in accordance with section 6(b) of the Act. Reports shall be consistent with specific instructions issued periodically by the Secretariat;

 (b) The President's annual report to the Congress shall be prepared by GSA based on
- (b) The President's annual report to the Congress shall be prepared by GSA based on reports filed on a fiscal year basis by each agency consistent with the information specified in section 6(c) of the Act. Reports from agencies shall be consistent with instructions provided annually by the Secretariat. Agency reports shall also include information requested to enable the Secretariat to carry out the annual comprehensive review of each advisory committee as required by section 7(b) of the Act. These reports have been cleared in accordance with FIRMR 201-45.6 in 41 CFR Chapter 201 and assigned interagency report control number 0304-GSA-XX.
- (c) In accordance with section 10(d) of the Act, advisory committees holding closed meetings shall issue reports at least annually, setting forth a summary of activities consistent with the policy of Section 552(b) of Title 5, United States Code.

FEDERAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS
(AME:IDMENT \48, AUGUST 1989)

(d) Subject to section 552 of Title 5, United States Code, eight copies of each report made by an advisory committee, including any report on closed meetings as specified in paragraph (c) of this section, and, where appropriate, background papers prepared by consultants, shall be filed with the Library of Congress as required by section 13 of the Act, for public inspection and use at the location specified in paragraph (a)(2) of § 101-6.1013.

(Next page is 628.5)

FEDERAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS
(AMENDMENT A-48, AUGUST 1989)

628.4

200

INDEX OF MEMBERS AND DESIGNATED FEDERAL OFFICERS

Α

Dr. Linda M. Abriola 144	Mr. Earl K. Borman 3
Mr. Robert Adler 86	Mr. Gerald Borovick 165
Dr. Michael Aho 103	Mr. Karl Bourdeau
Ms. Cherie Alazzi	Mr. Greg Bourne
Mr. Freeman Allen 172	Mr. Ralph O. Bowers 80,165
Dr. Harvey Alter	Mr. Jack J. Bracco
Mr. Marion W. Anders 70	Mr. Ken Brazelius
Mr. Norm Anderson 135	Mr. Jeff Breckel
Mr. Mike Andrews 3	Mr. Barry Breen
Hon. Beryl F. Anthony, Jr 48	Dr. Pamela Bridgen 101
Mr. Bernie Appleman 3	Ms. Sue Briggum 98
Mr. Paul H. Arbesman101,112	Mr. Vincent J. Brisini
Mr. Maurice L. Arel 117	Mr. George W. Britton
Mr. William M. Auberle 17	Ms. Maxine Childress Brown 80
Ms. Judith Ayres 86	Dr. Stephen L. Brown 150
Dr. Stephen Ayres	Dr. Bunyan Bryant 128
	Ms. Pat Bryant 62
В	Dr. Patricia Buffler 25
	Dr. Richard Bull
Mr. Alan P. Babbitt 60	Dr. Robert Bullard
Mr. Len Bahr 75	Dr. William Bunn
Mr. John C. Bailar	Mr. Jack Burgess 171
Dr. Paul Bailey 149	Mr. William H. Burke 63
Dr. William J. Bair	Mr. John P. Burt
Dr. R. Darryl Banks 92,101	Mr. Daniel R. Bushman
Mr. Joseph Baretincic 39	Mr. George H. Butcher 48
Dr. Donald Barnes 140	Mr. Pete Butkus
Mr. Herbert Barrack	Ms. Mabel Butler 129
Dr. Mark M. Bashor	•
Dr. Judy A. Bean 142,151	C
Mr. Norman Beck 160	
Mr. S. William Becker 3,16	Ms. Beck Cain
Mr. Richard Beckman	Mr. James H. Caldwell, Jr 19
Mr. Lewis R. Bedenbaugh 63	Captain J.W. Calhoun
Ms. Barbara Bedford 86	Mr. Robert H. Campbell
Mr. Dan Belik	Mr. Charles C. Capen
Dr. Edward S. Bender	Mr. Drew Caputo 62
Mr. Mitchell W. Berger 48	Dr. Keith E. Carns
Ms. Jodie Bernstein 47	Ms. Cornelia Carrier
Mr. Bruce Bertlesen	Mr. Ron Carver
Mr. Terry Black	Mr. George M. Cason
Mr. Joseph D. Blair 47	Mr. William H. Chew 48
Mr. Richard Blais	Mr. Charles H. Chisolm
Dr. Nancy Bockstael	Dr. Peter Y. Chiu
Mr. David Bodde	Mr. Iwan Choronenko
Dr. F. Peter Boer	Mr. Henry G. Cisneros
Mr. Randall Bond	Dr. Lenore Clesceri

Mr. John F. Cochrane 39	Mr. Nihua Duan 56
Mr. Lawrence R. Codey 18	Dr. Daniel Dudek
Mr. James D. Cole 80	Mr. Mac Dunaway 160
Mr. Charles A. Collins	Ms. Jacolyn Dziuban 39
Mr. Tim Connor	
Ms. Kathleen Conway 144	E
Mr. Richard Conway101,144	
Mr. Ben Cooper 18	Gov. Tony Earl
Dr. Edwin Cooper 148	Dr. Sylvia Alice Earle 103
Mr. Eufard L. Cooper 48	Mr. Dennis Eckart 98
Ms. Josephine S. Cooper 18	Mr. Robert L. Ecklin 19
Dr. William Cooper 148	Mr. Jack Edwardson 171
Mr. Phil Coram	Mr. Charles N. Ehler
Captain Arthur Corsano 74	Mr. John Ehrmann 3
Dr. C. Richard Cothern 56	Mr. Paul J. Eisele 170
Mr. David Courtemanch 86	Dr. Richard F. Eizember 19
Hon. William J. Coyne 46	Dr. Herman Ellis 128
Dr. Kenny Crump 145	Mr. Norman Emerson 20
Dr. Ronald Cummings 29	Mr. Peter M. Emerson 49
Mr. Michael Curley 48	Ms. Sarah W. Eubanks 46
Mr. G.M. Currier 170	Ms. Bonnie L. Exner-Rader 62
Mr. Thomas Curtis 64	
Mr. Edward N. Cyr 80	F
D	Dr. June Fabryka-Martin 150
	Dr. Anna Fan 142
Dr. Joan M. Daisey 140,149,151	Mr. Walter G. Farr 95
Dr. Virginia Dale 148	Mr. Larry Feldcamp 20
Mrs. Deborah Dalton 39,160	Mr. Cliff Feldman 160
Mr. Douglas D. Danforth 103	Ms. Deeohn Ferris
Dr. Peter Day	Mr. Charles Field 4
Mr. George A. Davidson, Jr 19	Mr. Timothy Fields 60
Ms. Margaret Davidson 86	Dr. Albert Fishlow 104
Mr. Paul Davidson	Mr. Conrad Fjetland 75
Mr. Thomas Davis 92	Mr. Carl Flora 80
Mr. William Deal 170	Ms. Karen Florini
Dr. Jonathan P. Deason 61	Mr. Richard A. Flye 39
Mr. Donald A. Deieso	Mr. Terence Foecke92,94,97
Dr. Paul Deisler140,151	Dr. Jean Ford
Dr. Jane Delgado 129	Mr. Jim Ford 98
Mr. Steve Del Gludice 16	Mr. Richard Fortuna
Mr. William J. Dennison 112	Ms. Sara M. Fotopulos 80
Mr. John P. DeVido 171	Mr. Bill Frank 86
Mr. Thomas Devine 101	Dr. A. Myrick Freeman29,140,146
Dr. Kenneth L. Dickson 140,148,151	Mr. Frank B. Friedman 104
Mr. George Dodson 74	Mr. Daniel T. Furlong 75
Hon. Pete V. Domenici 46	
Mr. William Dorris 171	G
Mr. John Doull	
Ms. Roxane R. Dow 74	Mr. R. Michael Gadbaw 104
Mr. J. Andrew Doyle 4	Ma Mama A Oad
Mr. David Driesen	Ms. Mary A. Gade

Mr. Shockley D. Gardner, Jr 46	Ms. Cathy Hinds 62
Mr. Gordon Garner 86	Mr. Larry D. Hinson 40
Mr. Marcel Gaschke 4	Mr. Ralph E. Hise 112
Ms. Patricia Garrison-Corbin 48	Dr. Doug Hodgkins 95
Mr. Juan Garza 80	Mr. David G. Hoel
Dr. Clarice Gaylord 128	Mr. George C. Hofer 60
Dr. Michael Gelobter	Dr. Owen Hoffman
Mr. Richard B. Geltman 46	Mr. Mel Hohman
Dr. Charles Gerba 142	Mr. Richard Holmgren 123
Mr. Stephen L. Gerritson 17	Mr. Mark Hopkins
Mr. G. Lawrence Gettier 4	Ms. Marilyn Hotch
Mr. Richard Gilbert 56	Mr. Stewart J. Hudson 104
Ms. Joan Glickman 63	Ms. Valerie Hudson 94
Dr. Thomas J. Godar 18	Dr. Robert J. Huggett 140,148
Mr. Ira H. Goldman 104	Mr. Kent Hughes
Hon. Stephen Goldsmith 47	Mr. Gary Hunt
Mr. William Goldsmith 17	Mr. Ralph Hutchison 62
Dr. Bernard D. Goldstein 135	
Mr. Manuel Gomez 142,149	l
Dr. Ricardo Gonzalez Mendez 150	
Mr. Sam Goodhope 64	Mr. Charles R. Imbrecht 17
Mr. Charles H. Goodman 18	Mr. Robert Irvine 4
Ms. Sherri W. Goodman 60	Mr. Gerald Isom 98
Mr. Daniel S. Greenbaum 16	Dr. Conrad Istock 11
Ambassador Joseph Greenwald 104	
Ms. Linda Greer	J
Dr. Edward Groth 95	
Mr. Michael Guerrero 62	Hon. Maynard Jackson 48
	Dr. Richard Jackson 145
Н	Mr. Robert B. Jaeger 70
	Mr. William B. James 48
Mr. Jay Haines 4	Ms. Joyce Jatko 61
Mr. Scott Hajost 104	Mr. Russell Jim 63
Mr. Bob Hall 40	Mr. Charles C. Johnson 142
Mr. John Hall	Hon. David Johnson 80
Dr. George Hallberg 86	Ms. Hazel Johnson 98,129
Mr. Fred Hanson33,34	Dr. James H. Johnson 144
Mr. Robert L. Hardaker 95,103	Mr. Jerry Johnson 86
Ms. Madelyn Harding 4	Mr. John A. Johnson 19
Ms. Beverly Hartsock 16	Mr. Jon D. Johnston 60
Dr. Mark Harwell 148	Mr. Peter E. Jonker
Mr. David G. Hawkins 4,18	Mr. Bruce C. Jordan 4,112
Dr. Robert Hazen 149	Mr. Mark Joyce94,101
Mr. Jon Heinrich 172	
Dr. Rogene Henderson 145	K
Mr. Ben G. Henneke, Jr 19	
Ms. Jacqueline Hernandez-Beradini 98	Dr. Wayne M. Kachel 144
Ms. Dolores Herrera 129	
Mr. Charles E. Hess 11	Ms. Lillian Kawasaki 81,92,95,97
Mr. Michael Hightower 80	Ms. Kathleen H. Keeler
Mr. Sam Higuchi 61	Ms. Cindy Kelley 61

Dr. William B. Kelly, Jr.	104	M	
Dr. Andrew J. Kemmerer			
Mr. Thomas Kennedy	34,64	Mr. Gay MacGregor	160
Mr. John M. Kenny	81	Ms. Kathleen MacKinnon	123
Dr. Marta Kent		Mr. Douglas MacMillan	33
Mr. Allan C. Kessler	135	Ms. Denise R. Madigan	35
Col. James P. King	76	Dr. Arjun Makhijani	150
Mr. Neil King	104	Dr. Alan W. Maki	148
Mr. Chris Kirtz	3,4,33,170	Mr. Charles D. Malloch	19
Mr. Ned B. Kisner	5	Mr. Jed Mandel	160
Dr. Curtis D. Klaassen		Mr. Art Marin	160
Mr. Robert J. Klepser	5	Mr. Frederick A. Marrocco	117
Mr. Alan Klimek		Mr. Gale Martin	75
Dr. Allen Kneese		Ms. Sandra Masur	104
Dr. Charles Kolstad		Dr. Genevieve Matanoski	140
Dr. K. Jack Kooyoomjian		Ms. Jessica T. Matthews	105
Mr. Dan Krewski		Dr. Donald R. Mattison	145
Dr. Margaret Kripke	140	Mr. Pat Matuseski	34
		Mr. Gary Mauro	17,75
L		Mr. Carl Mazza	135
		Dr. Andrew McBride	95
Ms. Connie Landers		Mr. Thomas J. McCabe Jr	112
Dr. Philip Landrigen	95	Mr. Scott McCallum	105
Mr. Jeffrey M. Lang	104	Dr. Mildred McClain	62
Sister Mary B. Larkin	165	Dr. Roger O. McClellan 14	
Dr. Timothy Larson	149	Mr. J. Michael McCloskey	105
Mr. James F. Lawrence	5	Dr. Ernest E. McConnell	70
Hon. Joan S. Lawson		Mr. Charles McDermott	128
Mr. Richard Lazarus		Dr. Anne McElroy	148
Mr. Brian Leaderer		Dr. Sheila McGuire	135
Mr. Joshua Lederberg	135	Mr. James McIndoe	75
Mr. Charles Lee		Dr. L.D. McMullen	117
Ms. Susan P. LeGros		Mr. David McNaught	40
Mr. David Lennett		Mr. Eugene McNeil	40
Mr. Paul F. Levy		Dr. Merrill McPhearson	75
Mr. David Lewis		Ms. Gladys Meade	160
Mr. William H. Lewis		Dr. Harihara M. Mehendale	70
		Dr. Robert Mendelsohn	29
Dr. Jo Ann Lighty		Dr. James W. Mercer	144
Dr. Paul Lioy		Mr. Kai D. Midboe	75
Dr. Douglas A. Lipka	74	Dr. Paulette Middleton	25
Dr. Morton Lippmann			11
Dr. John W. Liskowitz		Mr. Dan Miller	64
Dr. Benjamin Y.H. Liu		Hon. Rueben Miller	•
Mr. Mike Lloyd		Mr. Richard Miller	62
Dr. Raymond Loehr		Mr. Dennis R. Minano	99
Mr. Larry Longanecker		Mr. Carl Minchew	5 165
Mr. Gerald Lucas		Dr. Richard Monson	165 145
····· -		PITTUGICI INCHISULT	140

Ms. Lucy Moore 160	Mr. George V. Pedraza
Mr. Richard Moore18,129	Mr. Leigh Pegues
Mr. John B. Moran 62	Dr. Edo Pellizzari
Dr. Maria Morandi 149	Mr. Robert Perciasepe 74
Mr. E.O. Morris 40	Dr. Frederica Perera 140,145
Ms. Laurie Morissette 128	Ms. Margaret Perkins 87
Dr. Roger Morse	Ms. Michelle Perrault
Mr. Brian Morton 172	Ms. Susan E. Perry
Mr. Marlin L. Mosby, Jr 48	Mr. Wallace Perry
Dr. Ambler Moss	
Ms. Susan Mudd 81	
	Ms. Helen O. Petrauskas
Mr. Jim Mulligan 40	Dr. Frederick Pfaender
Mr. Robert J. Mulready 47	Ms. Nancy E. Pfund 101
Ms. Elsie Munsell 61	Ms. Deborah A. Photiadis 47
Dr. Ishwar P. Murarka 140,144	Dr. Bruce Piasecki93,102
Hon. Carol Murphy 81	Mr. Michael Pierle
Mr. Kenneth J. Murray 5	Dr. John E. Pinkerton 112
	Mrs. Abby J. Pirnie 92,98
N	Dr. Henry Pitot
	Mr. Jonathan Plaut 103
Ms. Nancy Newkirk 99	Dr. Frederick G. Pohland 144
Ms. Mary D. Nichols 16	Ms. Jeanne Poindexter
Mr. Peter Nicholson 5,171	Dr. Robert Pojasek 144
Mr. Phillip A. Niedzielski-Eichner 63	Mr. Michael J. Pompili 81
Dr. William Nordhaus29,146	Mr. Frank R. Pope93,102
Dr. Bryan Norton	Dr. Paul R. Portney
Ms. Marilyn Null	
Wis. Marilytt Null	
^	Dr. James Price
0	Mr. John Prinz 5
B W II	Ms. Kate Probst
Dr. Wallace E. Oates 29,146	Mr. Scott Prothero 40
Mr. Warren T. Olds 75	Ms. Martha G. Prothro 75
Mr. Sebastian O'Kelly 81	Dr. Susan K. Purcell 105
Mr. John O'Leary 129	
Mr. Erik D. Olson 117	Q
Mr. Rick Olson	
Mr. Gilbert S. Omenn 135	Mr. Walter Quanstrom 20
Mr. Bill Opfer 61	
Mr. William O'Sullivan 112	R
Mr. Steve Owens 20	
	Mr. Tim Race 5
P	Mr. Doug Rader 40
	Dr. Martha Radike
Mr. LeRoy Paddock99,101	Mr. George A. Raftelis 47
Ms. Shelly Padnos 99	Mr. Patrick Rahrer
Mr. James Palmer	
Ms. Theresa Parrone	The state of the s
	Mr. David P. Rall
	Mr. Steve Ramsey
Mr. John A. Paul	Dr. Verne A. Ray
Mr. Stanley Paytiamo 63	Mr. Manervas Regalado-Flores 81
Mr. John Peart 5	Ms. Susan Reiff

Dr. Dishard Daim	Maria Language to Oli
Dr. Richard Reitz	Mr. Joseph Sierra 97
Dr. Robert Repetto	Dr. Ellen Silbergeld
Mr. Martyn Riddle 105	Ms. Jean Sindab
Mr. Andy Riedell 171	Ms. Karen Smith
Mr. Martin E. Rivers 102	Ms. Velma Smith 81
Mr. Robbie Roberts 165	Dr. William Smith 148
Mr. Robert E. Roberts 81	Dr. Vernon L. Snoeyink
Mr. William Roberts	Mr. Andrew Solow 56
Mr. Paul Robinson	Mr. Michael Soots 100,170
Dr. Samuel Rondberg29,145,146	Ms. Myra M. Soroczak 41
Dr. Joan Rose	Mr. Mike Springer 165
Ms. Deborah Ross	Ms. Christine Stanley
Mr. David Rothermel 171	Dr. Robert Stavins 146
Dr. Manik Roy 102	Mr. William Stewart 6
Ms. Suzi Ruhl 41	Mr. Allan Stokes 81
Ms. Heather L. Ruth	Mr. John Stone 6
Ms. Louise Ryan 56	Dr. Bruce Stram 20
_	Mr. John Strickler
\$	Mr. J. William Sugar 20
	Ms. Naomi R. Suss
Mr. Mark Sagoff	Ms. Rhonda R. Swaney 118
Ms. Peggy Saika 130	Ms. Amy Swann 81
Mr. Jim Sainsbury 5	Dr. James M. Symons 143
Ms. Stephanie Salzone 148	Mr. Dag Syrrist 102
Dr. Jonathan M. Samet 149	
Mr. Vincent R. Sandusky 5	Т
Ms. Roberta H. Savage49,87	·
Ms. Roberta H. Savage49,87 Dr. John Sawhill92,98	Ms. Kitty Taimi 61
Ms. Roberta H. Savage	Ms. Kitty Taimi 61 Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli
Ms. Roberta H. Savage	Ms. Kitty Taimi
Ms. Roberta H. Savage .49,87 Dr. John Sawhill .92,98 Mr. Robert Scarberry .33 Mr. Henry B. Schacht .20 Mr. Robert Schaffhauser .20	Ms. Kitty Taimi
Ms. Roberta H. Savage	Ms. Kitty Taimi 61 Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli 93,94 Mr. Merv Tano 63 Mr. Brian L. Taranto 113 Ms. Peggy Taricco 66
Ms. Roberta H. Savage	Ms. Kitty Taimi
Ms. Roberta H. Savage	Ms. Kitty Taimi 61 Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli 93,94 Mr. Merv Tano 63 Mr. Brian L. Taranto 113 Ms. Peggy Taricco 6 Mr. William F. Taylor 76 Mr. Don F. Theiler 161
Ms. Roberta H. Savage	Ms. Kitty Taimi 61 Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli 93,94 Mr. Merv Tano 63 Mr. Brian L. Taranto 113 Ms. Peggy Taricco 6 Mr. William F. Taylor 76 Mr. Don F. Theiler 161 Mr. Fred Thiele Jr. 100
Ms. Roberta H. Savage	Ms. Kitty Taimi 61 Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli 93,94 Mr. Merv Tano 63 Mr. Brian L. Taranto 113 Ms. Peggy Taricco 6 Mr. William F. Taylor 76 Mr. Don F. Theiler 161 Mr. Fred Thiele Jr. 100 Ms. Cindy Thomas 129
Ms. Roberta H. Savage	Ms. Kitty Taimi 61 Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli 93,94 Mr. Merv Tano 63 Mr. Brian L. Taranto 113 Ms. Peggy Taricco 6 Mr. William F. Taylor 76 Mr. Don F. Theiler 161 Mr. Fred Thiele Jr. 100 Ms. Cindy Thomas 129 Mr. Steven Thorne 100
Ms. Roberta H. Savage	Ms. Kitty Taimi 61 Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli 93,94 Mr. Merv Tano 63 Mr. Brian L. Taranto 113 Ms. Peggy Taricco 6 Mr. William F. Taylor 76 Mr. Don F. Theiler 161 Mr. Fred Thiele Jr. 100 Ms. Cindy Thomas 129 Mr. Steven Thorne 100 Ms. Mary Ann Thrall 70
Ms. Roberta H. Savage .49,87 Dr. John Sawhill .92,98 Mr. Robert Scarberry .33 Mr. Henry B. Schacht .20 Mr. Robert Schaffhauser .20 Mr. Bernard J. Scheiner .41 Mr. William A. Schimming .41 Dr. Richard Schmalensee .29,141,146 Mr. Samuel A. Schulhof .103 Dr. Joel A. Schwartz .6,95 Mr. Robert P. Schwartz .47 Mr. Bill Scott .160 Ms. Susan Seacrest .87,117	Ms. Kitty Taimi 61 Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli 93,94 Mr. Merv Tano 63 Mr. Brian L. Taranto 113 Ms. Peggy Taricco 6 Mr. William F. Taylor 76 Mr. Don F. Theiler 161 Mr. Fred Thiele Jr. 100 Ms. Cindy Thomas 129 Mr. Steven Thorne 100 Ms. Mary Ann Thrall 70 Ms. Ginny Tierney 166
Ms. Roberta H. Savage .49,87 Dr. John Sawhill .92,98 Mr. Robert Scarberry .33 Mr. Henry B. Schacht .20 Mr. Robert Schaffhauser .20 Mr. Bernard J. Scheiner .41 Mr. William A. Schimming .41 Dr. Richard Schmalensee .29,141,146 Mr. Samuel A. Schulhof .103 Dr. Joel A. Schwartz .6,95 Mr. Robert P. Schwartz .47 Mr. Bill Scott .160 Ms. Susan Seacrest .87,117 Dr. Wm. Randall Seeker .144,151	Ms. Kitty Taimi 61 Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli 93,94 Mr. Merv Tano 63 Mr. Brian L. Taranto 113 Ms. Peggy Taricco 6 Mr. William F. Taylor 76 Mr. Don F. Theiler 161 Mr. Fred Thiele Jr. 100 Ms. Cindy Thomas 129 Mr. Steven Thorne 100 Ms. Mary Ann Thrall 70 Ms. Ginny Tierney 166 Hon. Rosemary Tierney 81
Ms. Roberta H. Savage .49,87 Dr. John Sawhill .92,98 Mr. Robert Scarberry .33 Mr. Henry B. Schacht .20 Mr. Robert Schaffhauser .20 Mr. Bernard J. Scheiner .41 Mr. William A. Schimming .41 Dr. Richard Schmalensee .29,141,146 Mr. Samuel A. Schulhof .103 Dr. Joel A. Schwartz .6,95 Mr. Robert P. Schwartz .47 Mr. Bill Scott .160 Ms. Susan Seacrest .87,117 Dr. Wm. Randall Seeker .144,151 Mr. Jon Sesso .99	Ms. Kitty Taimi 61 Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli 93,94 Mr. Merv Tano 63 Mr. Brian L. Taranto 113 Ms. Peggy Taricco 6 Mr. William F. Taylor 76 Mr. Don F. Theiler 161 Mr. Fred Thiele Jr. 100 Ms. Cindy Thomas 129 Mr. Steven Thorne 100 Ms. Mary Ann Thrall 70 Ms. Ginny Tierney 166 Hon. Rosemary Tierney 81 Dr. Thomas H. Tietenberg 29,147
Ms. Roberta H. Savage .49,87 Dr. John Sawhill .92,98 Mr. Robert Scarberry .33 Mr. Henry B. Schacht .20 Mr. Robert Schaffhauser .20 Mr. Bernard J. Scheiner .41 Mr. William A. Schimming .41 Dr. Richard Schmalensee .29,141,146 Mr. Samuel A. Schulhof .103 Dr. Joel A. Schwartz .6,95 Mr. Robert P. Schwartz .47 Mr. Bill Scott .160 Ms. Susan Seacrest .87,117 Dr. Wm. Randall Seeker .144,151 Mr. Jon Sesso .99 Dr. Richard Sextro .150	Ms. Kitty Taimi 61 Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli 93,94 Mr. Merv Tano 63 Mr. Brian L. Taranto 113 Ms. Peggy Taricco 6 Mr. William F. Taylor 76 Mr. Don F. Theiler 161 Mr. Fred Thiele Jr. 100 Ms. Cindy Thomas 129 Mr. Steven Thorne 100 Ms. Mary Ann Thrall 70 Ms. Ginny Tierney 166 Hon. Rosemary Tierney 81 Dr. Thomas H. Tietenberg 29,147 Mr. Thomas C. Tighe 17
Ms. Roberta H. Savage 49,87 Dr. John Sawhill 92,98 Mr. Robert Scarberry 33 Mr. Henry B. Schacht 20 Mr. Robert Schaffhauser 20 Mr. Bernard J. Scheiner 41 Mr. William A. Schimming 41 Dr. Richard Schmalensee 29,141,146 Mr. Samuel A. Schulhof 103 Dr. Joel A. Schwartz 6,95 Mr. Robert P. Schwartz 47 Mr. Bill Scott 160 Ms. Susan Seacrest 87,117 Dr. Wm. Randall Seeker 144,151 Mr. Jon Sesso 99 Dr. Richard Sextro 150 Mr. Michael Shapiro 33	Ms. Kitty Taimi 61 Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli 93,94 Mr. Merv Tano 63 Mr. Brian L. Taranto 113 Ms. Peggy Taricco 6 Mr. William F. Taylor 76 Mr. Don F. Theiler 161 Mr. Fred Thiele Jr. 100 Ms. Cindy Thomas 129 Mr. Steven Thorne 100 Ms. Mary Ann Thrall 70 Ms. Ginny Tierney 166 Hon. Rosemary Tierney 81 Dr. Thomas H. Tietenberg 29,147 Mr. Thomas C. Tighe 17 Mr. Richard Titus 171
Ms. Roberta H. Savage .49,87 Dr. John Sawhill .92,98 Mr. Robert Scarberry .33 Mr. Henry B. Schacht .20 Mr. Robert Schaffhauser .20 Mr. Bernard J. Scheiner .41 Mr. William A. Schimming .41 Dr. Richard Schmalensee .29,141,146 Mr. Samuel A. Schulhof .103 Dr. Joel A. Schwartz .6,95 Mr. Robert P. Schwartz .47 Mr. Bill Scott .160 Ms. Susan Seacrest .87,117 Dr. Wm. Randall Seeker .144,151 Mr. Jon Sesso .99 Dr. Richard Sextro .150 Mr. Michael Shapiro .33 Ms. Catherine Sharp .34	Ms. Kitty Taimi 61 Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli 93,94 Mr. Merv Tano 63 Mr. Brian L. Taranto 113 Ms. Peggy Taricco 6 Mr. William F. Taylor 76 Mr. Don F. Theiler 161 Mr. Fred Thiele Jr. 100 Ms. Cindy Thomas 129 Mr. Steven Thorne 100 Ms. Mary Ann Thrall 70 Ms. Ginny Tierney 166 Hon. Rosemary Tierney 81 Dr. Thomas H. Tietenberg 29,147 Mr. Thomas C. Tighe 17 Mr. Richard Titus 171 Mr. Paul Torok 166
Ms. Roberta H. Savage 49,87 Dr. John Sawhill 92,98 Mr. Robert Scarberry 33 Mr. Henry B. Schacht 20 Mr. Robert Schaffhauser 20 Mr. Bernard J. Scheiner 41 Mr. William A. Schimming 41 Dr. Richard Schmalensee 29,141,146 Mr. Samuel A. Schulhof 103 Dr. Joel A. Schwartz 6,95 Mr. Robert P. Schwartz 47 Mr. Bill Scott 160 Ms. Susan Seacrest 87,117 Dr. Wm. Randall Seeker 144,151 Mr. Jon Sesso 99 Dr. Richard Sextro 150 Mr. Michael Shapiro 33 Ms. Catherine Sharp 34 Mr. William Sharpiro 20	Ms. Kitty Taimi 61 Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli 93,94 Mr. Merv Tano 63 Mr. Brian L. Taranto 113 Ms. Peggy Taricco 6 Mr. William F. Taylor 76 Mr. Don F. Theiler 161 Mr. Fred Thiele Jr. 100 Ms. Cindy Thomas 129 Mr. Steven Thorne 100 Ms. Mary Ann Thrall 70 Ms. Ginny Tierney 166 Hon. Rosemary Tierney 81 Dr. Thomas H. Tietenberg 29,147 Mr. Thomas C. Tighe 17 Mr. Richard Titus 171 Mr. Paul Torok 166 Ms. Gayle Townley 63
Ms. Roberta H. Savage 49,87 Dr. John Sawhill 92,98 Mr. Robert Scarberry 33 Mr. Henry B. Schacht 20 Mr. Robert Schaffhauser 20 Mr. Bernard J. Scheiner 41 Mr. William A. Schimming 41 Dr. Richard Schmalensee 29,141,146 Mr. Samuel A. Schulhof 103 Dr. Joel A. Schwartz 6,95 Mr. Robert P. Schwartz 47 Mr. Bill Scott 160 Ms. Susan Seacrest 87,117 Dr. Wm. Randall Seeker 144,151 Mr. Jon Sesso 99 Dr. Richard Sextro 150 Mr. Michael Shapiro 33 Ms. Catherine Sharp 34 Mr. William Sharpiro 20 Dr. Walter M. Shaub 144	Ms. Kitty Taimi 61 Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli 93,94 Mr. Merv Tano 63 Mr. Brian L. Taranto 113 Ms. Peggy Taricco 6 Mr. William F. Taylor 76 Mr. Don F. Theiler 161 Mr. Fred Thiele Jr. 100 Ms. Cindy Thomas 129 Mr. Steven Thorne 100 Ms. Mary Ann Thrall 70 Ms. Ginny Tierney 166 Hon. Rosemary Tierney 81 Dr. Thomas H. Tietenberg 29,147 Mr. Thomas C. Tighe 17 Mr. Richard Titus 171 Mr. Paul Torok 166 Ms. Gayle Townley 63 Dr. Jim J. Tozzi 47
Ms. Roberta H. Savage 49,87 Dr. John Sawhill 92,98 Mr. Robert Scarberry 33 Mr. Henry B. Schacht 20 Mr. Robert Schaffhauser 20 Mr. Bernard J. Scheiner 41 Mr. William A. Schimming 41 Dr. Richard Schmalensee 29,141,146 Mr. Samuel A. Schulhof 103 Dr. Joel A. Schwartz 6,95 Mr. Robert P. Schwartz 47 Mr. Bill Scott 160 Ms. Susan Seacrest 87,117 Dr. Wm. Randall Seeker 144,151 Mr. Jon Sesso 99 Dr. Richard Sextro 150 Mr. Michael Shapiro 33 Ms. Catherine Sharp 34 Mr. William Sharpiro 20 Dr. Walter M. Shaub 144 Ms. Charlene E. Shaw 117	Ms. Kitty Taimi 61 Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli 93,94 Mr. Merv Tano 63 Mr. Brian L. Taranto 113 Ms. Peggy Taricco 6 Mr. William F. Taylor 76 Mr. Don F. Theiler 161 Mr. Fred Thiele Jr. 100 Ms. Cindy Thomas 129 Mr. Steven Thorne 100 Ms. Mary Ann Thrall 70 Ms. Ginny Tierney 166 Hon. Rosemary Tierney 81 Dr. Thomas H. Tietenberg 29,147 Mr. Thomas C. Tighe 17 Mr. Richard Titus 171 Mr. Paul Torok 166 Ms. Gayle Townley 63
Ms. Roberta H. Savage 49,87 Dr. John Sawhill 92,98 Mr. Robert Scarberry 33 Mr. Henry B. Schacht 20 Mr. Robert Schaffhauser 20 Mr. Bernard J. Scheiner 41 Mr. William A. Schimming 41 Dr. Richard Schmalensee 29,141,146 Mr. Samuel A. Schulhof 103 Dr. Joel A. Schwartz 6,95 Mr. Robert P. Schwartz 47 Mr. Bill Scott 160 Ms. Susan Seacrest 87,117 Dr. Wm. Randall Seeker 144,151 Mr. Jon Sesso 99 Dr. Richard Sextro 150 Mr. Michael Shapiro 33 Ms. Catherine Sharp 34 Mr. William Sharpiro 20 Dr. Walter M. Shaub 144 Ms. Charlene E. Shaw 117 Ms. Deborah A. Sheiman 161	Ms. Kitty Taimi 61 Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli 93,94 Mr. Merv Tano 63 Mr. Brian L. Taranto 113 Ms. Peggy Taricco 6 Mr. William F. Taylor 76 Mr. Don F. Theiler 161 Mr. Fred Thiele Jr. 100 Ms. Cindy Thomas 129 Mr. Steven Thorne 100 Ms. Mary Ann Thrall 70 Ms. Ginny Tierney 166 Hon. Rosemary Tierney 81 Dr. Thomas H. Tietenberg 29,147 Mr. Thomas C. Tighe 17 Mr. Richard Titus 171 Mr. Paul Torok 166 Ms. Gayle Townley 63 Dr. Jim J. Tozzi 47 Mr. Bill Tracy 87 Ms. Mililani Trask 129
Ms. Roberta H. Savage 49,87 Dr. John Sawhill 92,98 Mr. Robert Scarberry 33 Mr. Henry B. Schacht 20 Mr. Robert Schaffhauser 20 Mr. Bernard J. Scheiner 41 Mr. William A. Schimming 41 Dr. Richard Schmalensee 29,141,146 Mr. Samuel A. Schulhof 103 Dr. Joel A. Schwartz 6,95 Mr. Robert P. Schwartz 47 Mr. Bill Scott 160 Ms. Susan Seacrest 87,117 Dr. Wm. Randall Seeker 144,151 Mr. Jon Sesso 99 Dr. Richard Sextro 150 Mr. Michael Shapiro 33 Ms. Catherine Sharp 34 Mr. William Sharpiro 20 Dr. Walter M. Shaub 144 Ms. Charlene E. Shaw 117 Ms. Deborah A. Sheiman 161 Mr. David Shelton 64	Ms. Kitty Taimi 61 Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli 93,94 Mr. Merv Tano 63 Mr. Brian L. Taranto 113 Ms. Peggy Taricco 6 Mr. William F. Taylor 76 Mr. Don F. Theiler 161 Mr. Fred Thiele Jr. 100 Ms. Cindy Thomas 129 Mr. Steven Thorne 100 Ms. Mary Ann Thrall 70 Ms. Ginny Tierney 166 Hon. Rosemary Tierney 81 Dr. Thomas H. Tietenberg 29,147 Mr. Thomas C. Tighe 17 Mr. Richard Titus 171 Mr. Paul Torok 166 Ms. Gayle Townley 63 Dr. Jim J. Tozzi 47 Mr. Bill Tracy 87
Ms. Roberta H. Savage 49,87 Dr. John Sawhill 92,98 Mr. Robert Scarberry 33 Mr. Henry B. Schacht 20 Mr. Robert Schaffhauser 20 Mr. Bernard J. Scheiner 41 Mr. William A. Schimming 41 Dr. Richard Schmalensee 29,141,146 Mr. Samuel A. Schulhof 103 Dr. Joel A. Schwartz 6,95 Mr. Robert P. Schwartz 47 Mr. Bill Scott 160 Ms. Susan Seacrest 87,117 Dr. Wm. Randall Seeker 144,151 Mr. Jon Sesso 99 Dr. Richard Sextro 150 Mr. Michael Shapiro 33 Ms. Catherine Sharp 34 Mr. William Sharpiro 20 Dr. Walter M. Shaub 144 Ms. Charlene E. Shaw 117 Ms. Deborah A. Sheiman 161	Ms. Kitty Taimi 61 Dr. A. Wayne Tamarelli 93,94 Mr. Merv Tano 63 Mr. Brian L. Taranto 113 Ms. Peggy Taricco 6 Mr. William F. Taylor 76 Mr. Don F. Theiler 161 Mr. Fred Thiele Jr. 100 Ms. Cindy Thomas 129 Mr. Steven Thorne 100 Ms. Mary Ann Thrall 70 Ms. Ginny Tierney 166 Hon. Rosemary Tierney 81 Dr. Thomas H. Tietenberg 29,147 Mr. Thomas C. Tighe 17 Mr. Richard Titus 171 Mr. Paul Torok 166 Ms. Gayle Townley 63 Dr. Jim J. Tozzi 47 Mr. Bill Tracy 87 Ms. Mililani Trask 129

Mr. Robert J. Trunek 20	Y
Mr. William Cochrane Turner 105	
Mr. Warren W. Tyler 49	Brig. Gen. Roger Yankoupe 76
	Dr. Marylynn V. Yates
V	Mr. Howard Yerusalim
	Dr. Olan Yoder
Ms. Janet Vail 172	Mr. Neil Yoskin
Mr. Hector Villa III 87	Mr. Jim Young
Mr. J. Ross Vincent 62	Ms. Linda J. Young
Dr. W. Kip Viscusi 29,147	Mr. Michael Young
Ms. Susan F. Vogt 47	Dr. Terry Young
Dr. Konrad von Moltke 105	Ms. Elizabeth Ytell 49
Mr. Jeff Voorhis 41	_
Mr. Daniel Vornberg 95	Z
	Ma Danisa E Zahinaki 90.165
W	Ms. Denise E. Zabinski 80,165
	Mr. Sam Zamani
Mr. Edward E. Walker 41	Ms. Joanne Zaumetzer
Mr. Lewis D. Walker 61	Mr. John Zeltsman
Ms. Nathalie Walker	Will Highligo Edoc Title
Prof. Perry Wallace 105	Mr. Brian Zwit 64
Ms. Frieda K. Wallison 49	
Mr. Bob Warland	
Ms. Wilma Warren 118	
Dr. James E. Watson, Jr 141,150	
Mr. William E. Wecker	
Dr. David Wegman	
Ms. Virginia V. Weldon 135	
Mr. Robert Wendoll 6	
Mr. James D. Werner 61	
Hon. William C. Westbrook Jr 82	
Mr. Robert Wetherbee 87	
Mr. Gregory Wetstone 81	
Mr. Ronald H. White6,149	
Ms. Mary Allen Whitworth 47	
Ms. Robin L. Wiessmann	
tin. Otopilon timooti i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	
Ms. Susan Wildau	
Mr. David Williams 96	
Ms. Marcia Williams 96	
Ms. Patricia Williams 100	
Mr. R. Sam Williams 6	
Mr. Richard Williamson 6	
Dr. John T. Wilson	
Ms. Susan Wiltshire	
Mr. Sam Winder 63,129	
Brig. Gen. Eugene Witherspoon 76	
Dr. John Woeste	
Dr. George T. Wolff	
Dr. Beverly Wright	
Mr. Robert A. Wyman 21	
mil Hoboltzia trymun	